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Strive for excellence; it is what our clients and colleagues expect
and what we endeavour to deliver.

Ouvur purpose Our vision Our mission
To be the trusted provider Enabling the future of RF, Creating value for our
of innovative RF solutions. Microwave and mmWave clients through technology
communication. leadership.
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Chairman’s
statement

“The technology we offer and the
markets we serve align closely with the
sovereign capability requirements of
both the UK and US governments.”

06

Chief Executive'’s

review

“The specific market segments that
we have identified for future growth
continue to develop at pace, and as
we embark on a new financial year, |
believe we are well placed to continue
to deliver on our leng-term growth
objectives.”

17

Obijective and
strategy

“Being o trusted supplier of technically
advanced products in markets that
place value on quality and reliability
enables us to differentiate curselves
from competition and deliver
profitable growth and a positive return
for our shareholders.”

20

Financial review

"A year of continued progress
delivering revenue growth and
another year of successive adjusted
EBITDA growth... providing a sclid
platform from which we will invest in
the future of the business.”
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History of Innovation

1980
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1970
®

1977 Company 1979 First employees 1989 Filtronic AN

founded by Professor recruited components receive \

David Rhodes at a Queens award for \

Leeds University. technology. Wireless i
infrastructure business )
established.

1
e . . T ——

1994 Filtronic Comtek
plc listed on the UK
stock exchange.

1992 Filtronic Comtek
established to focus
on 2G -global

1999 Acquisition of
/ : Fuijitsu Silicon plant
‘ in Newton Aycliffe to
produce GoAs (Gallium systems for mobile
] arsenide) wafers. communications

' (GSM).

: 2000 2010
.

® VWWW—@ i RN

2013 Headquarters \

relocate to NETPark
science park in
Sedgefield,

2002 Triton chipset,
transmit and receive
multi-function MMICs
developed for mobile

2003 Company
reorganises into three
divisions: Wireless
Infrastructure,

2011 Development of
mmWave capabilities,
including Neptune,
Proteus and later

backhoul. Handset Products and versions including County Durham.
Integrated Products. Theseus, Orpheus and
Morpheus Il.
R @ ® 7

2021 Awarded
Queens Award
for Enterprise:
International Trade.

2020 Launched
Morpheus I, market
leading transceiver
product and Tower
Top Amplifier range.

2022 LLaunched Hades
E-band Active Diplexer
and extended range

of Cerus high-power
amplifiers.

THE QUEEN'S AWARDS
FOR ENTERPRISE:
INTERNATIONAL TRADE
2021

2017 Launch

of contract
manufacturing
services, principally
for defence and

aerospace.

2015 Company listing
moves to the AIM
stock market.
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Strategic report

Financial highlights

Operational highlights

Revenue » .
* Healthy cash position provides a platform for

£ 1 7 1 A continued investment in growth initiatives.
m o Delivered on existing development contracts
® (‘I O /0) and secured initial production orders.

Built our channels to market, strengthened the

Adjusted EBITDA* order book, improved customer engagement
and developed the opportunity pipeline with a

£ 2 8 ‘ number of growth opportunities.
Sales of our "best-in-class” Tower To
o, P
® m (58 A’) Amplifier supplied to the market leading

Original Equipment Manufacturer ("OEM") in
critical communications surpassed £1min the
Adjusted operating profit** financial year.

‘ Series of recent contract wins, totalling £1.9m

m across a diverse range of new customers, 5

® ('] 74 /O) demonstrating the execution of our objective o

to broaden our client base. ey

’ j

Successfully managed the ongoing headwinds IS

* Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before interest, from global semiconductor shortages, v
taxation, depreciation, amortisation and ensuring continuity of supply to our customers,

exceptional items. and generated new opportunities as
consequence.

** Adjusted operating profit is operating profit
before exceptional items. Margin improvement from a stronger sales mix

leading to stronger adjusted EBITDA.

Strengthened our engineering and business
development teams with active recruitment
campaign.

Cash at bank

£40 O m (3?/0)

Net cash (net of all lease obligations
except right of use property lease)

£301 m(();/o) |

SV
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Chairman’s statement

Dear fellow shareholder

Welcome to the Filironic ple Annual Report for the year
anded 37 Mav 2022, | have written previously of the long-
term potential of the business that attracted me 1o join
the Board of Filironic ple ("Filironic”Y and | am pleased to
report that good progress continues 1o be made on this
overarching aim.

We have delivered revenue growth, and another
succassive year of udjusied earnings before interest,
taxation, depreciation und amortisation {"adjusted
EBITDA") growth. This has strengthenad our cash posifion
and balance sheet providing us with the opportunity to
further invest in the business for continued growth and
sustainable value.

The Markets

The Group's key addressable markets continue to benefit
from long-term growth drivers. The cerospace & defence
and security markets have rraditionally long sales cycles
but refain strong spending trends both domestically and
overseas particularly given current events. Qur capability,
products and know-how are very relevant in this sector,
and with graater emphasis on security sourced from
domestic or alliad supply for governmant er originad
equipment manufacturer ({OEM") coniracts, it is an
opportunity for growth and diversification of our existing
customer base.

In the telecommunications market 5G rollouts continue 1o
gather pace as the drive to build infrastructure capacity
continues with an increasing number of governments
licencing their E-band spectrum to enable this. Whilst
there is alwavs price pressure on established technologies
as they mature, the emergence of important new
frequencies and technologies remain strong opportunities
for growih.

The space market is an area that is becoming increasingly
important as global invesiment has gathered pace

over the last few years. Satellites in low earth orbit

{"LEO") are ideal for enabling high-speed, low-iatency
communication. Approximately 60 to 70 percent of space-
company investment is now directed at LEQ endeavours.
Filironic has products and know-how derived from our
high-alritude pseudo satellite ("HAPS”) projects that offar
strong potential for us 1o play a significant role in these
important communications sectors for both ground and
flight plarforms:

In the USA, the critical communications sector has shown
some recovery post covid as domestic spending has

been re-pricritisecl. However, this sector remains under
pressure on the demand side, due to semiconductor
supply impaciing the availability of non-Filtronic system
coimponents.

At o macro-economic level, we face the same cost
pressuras of energy. cost of living and continved
compoenent cost increases and lead times as other
businessas. The Company has worked well ro adapt,

PICTURE TO FOLLOW

innovate and mitigate these challenges where possible,
whilst continuing to invest and find growth.

Our core ability to design and produce high performance
rachnology demonstrators to o high-quality which are
manufacturable at scale volume, continues ta be a critical
competitive differentiator. The ability of our clients to
customise cur products to their particular requirement,
further strengthens our proposition in our markets.

Financial performance summary
Group sales increased inthe year by 10%610 £17.1m
{FY2021:£15.6m).

A strong sales mix improved the quality of earnings
giving adjusted operating profit of £1.6m (2021: £0.6m),
operating profitof £2.0m {2021: £0.6m) and adjusted
EBITDA growth of 55% 1o £2.8m (2021 £1.8m).

The Group closed the year with £4.0m of cash at bank
(20217: £2.9m) in addition to the availability of undrawn
working capital debt facilities in the UK and USA.

The Group’s net cash position. when including all delot
except right of use proparty leases, was £3.7m i the end
of the financial year (2021: £1.9m). Net cash including
right of use property leases was £2.2m (2027: £0.8m).

Dividend

As with previous years, the Board continues 1o believe
shareholders are beiter served by cash being retfained

in the business to fund future businass development.
Consequently, no dividend is proposed for the year (2027:
£nil).

Board and Senior Management

FY2022 has seen a couple of changes fo Filirenic's board
composition. Reg Goftt retired as Chairman in Ociober
2021, which caused the Board to undertake a rigorous
search process resulting in my appointment fo the Board
as Chairman in November 2021,

Maura Moynihan, the Group's Company Secretary

took the decision to retire in May 2022 having served
the business well for aver 20 years. On behalf of the
Board, I would like to thank Maura for her significant
and sustained contributions. She leaves alegacy of @
strong governance framework. Her duties as Company
Secretary have been adopted by the Group's Chief
Financial Officer. Michael Tyerman, who will fulfil both
functions which we will keep under review in accordance
with the QCA governance codle.

Filtronic ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Outlook

We have successfully strengthened our sales and
enginaering organisations in the vaar with the intention of
addressing the growth opportunities that we believe exist

inthese markets as well as diversifving our customer base.

The techneology we offer and the markets we serve
align closely with the sovereign capability requirements
of both the UK and US governments. Advances in
telecommunication high frequency technology and
commerciol satellite constellations are growth markets
in which we have relevant capability and whilst there
are evidently continuing factors producing turbulence,
affecting many markets, there are also opportunities in
the radic frequency and microwave demain. The Group
remains well placed in the market to deliver revenue
growth supported by o healthy order ook and balance
sheet.

Jonathan Neale
Chairman
T August 2022

What we specialise in:

Mission critical Customised
communications RF Sub-systems

05

Pictured: Hades active E-band mmWave diplexers

300MHz to 300GHz
design, manufacture
& test
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Hybrid
manufacturing
services
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Chief Executive's review

| am pleased to report that sustained growth in our
vertical markets over the last twelve months has resulied
in a solid set of finuncial results for FY2022. With vear-
on-year revenue growth of 10%, and a third year of
adjusted EBITDA growth, based on increased operational
etticiencies and demand for higher margin products,

we see momenfum in the business continue fo build as

we make goed progress with our long-term sirategic
ohijectives.

Customers in our core markets of aerospace, defence,

5G, telecommunications infrastructure and critical
communications have sirong underlying demand for
their products and services, and remain committed to
investing in new technology and emerging markets.

Radio frequency ("RF”) design is a notoriously complex
engineering discipline, but with our global reputation,
combined with over 40 years of iterative IP development
in the field, we continue to see demand from muktinational
corporations wanting to engage our services in the design
cind manufucture of next genaration RF products.
Despite the lingering impact of the Covid pandemic,

and censiraints on the supply chain caused by the global
shorrage of critical semiconducior components, the

first hulf of FY2022 continued the gradual recovery we
axperienced at the close of the prior vear. The second

half of FY 2022 was sironger still, with customers in critical
communication and telecommunications infrastructure
delivering on delayed project implementations, and the
benetit of new, higher margin, product introductions in
iha defence and fest instrument market. Once again,

our frading resulis reveal the underlying strengih

and profitability of the Filtronic business despite
unprecedentead levels of business uncertainty. Our cash

at bank at year end of £4.0m (May 2021: £2.9m) affords
us the ability to make the invesiments we need to address
new adjacent markets and provision for future supply
chain challenges. whilst maintaining ¢ robust balance
sheet.

In addition to our established markets, there is now
a significant inferest in RF communication solutions
for low earth orbit ('LEO") space, and high-altitude
pseudo satellires ("HAPS"), wheare our exisfing
E-band rechnelogy can be adapted for use in

the converging terrestrial and non-terrestricl
telecommunication networks. Our growing family
of E-band hackhaul relecommunications products,
developed over 10 years have the benefit of being
compact, highly infegrated, and extremely reliable.
They are also manufactured in commercial
volumes, ar a competitive price, which allows LEO
space equipmeant manufacturers fo get solutions to
market quickly, at cost not usually associated with
custom developed space products.

The healthy balance sheet has enabled us to
continue to build on investiments made af our
Sedgefield manufaciuring site. The addition of

Pictured: Cerus E-band power amplifier.

sitate-of-the-art equipment for rapid process and product
development has significantly enhanced cur abiliry 1o
bring new products to market. The abilitv fo develop
engineering prototypes and create new manutaciuring
processes without the need to disrupt the volume
manufacturing lines has greatly improved delivery of
engineering programmes and eased the transition from
protfotype into production.

Talented people remain at the heart of our cibility to
deliver leading edge products and future business
growth. We have made significant efforts this year o
find and recruit the specialist engineering and marketing
skills required to realise cur growth ambition. To further
penetrate the UK aerospace and defence markerwe
have strengthened our business development ream with
the addition of seasoned industry experts who have «
strong track-record of sales delivery. InFY2023 we will
open a new engineering design office in Manchester
having recruited a high-calibre team of RF engineers in
the region specifically to address the emerging space and
telecommunication market.

The most significant management challenge of the last
few vaars has been Covid, and the associared restrictions
placed on engaging directlv with cusiomers which we
previously communicated as our biggest challenge of the
pandemic. The strengthening of our marketing team has
yielded great results since the national lockdowns and
brand awareness has been raised in the mairkets we serve,
However, the welcome return of tradeshows, conferences
and a willingness of customars fo accept face to face
meetings and site visits to Filironic facilities in a normalised
business development environment is a critical factor for

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



our future growth prospects.

In 2020 we macde the decision to consolidate
manufacturing of critical communication products in the
USA, to better support our customers, and respond to an
increasad prefarence for onshoring and "buy America”
sentiment. This move has been well received by customers
and enabled us to respond quickly as the critical
communicution markat recovered and supplv chain issues
in China started 1o impact our competitors. Qur made in
America TTA product lounched in FY2020, achieved the
milestone of surpassing £1m of scles in January 2022,
and it continues to be the TTA product of choice for P25
programmes thet will be implemented in the next 24
months.

The global semiconductor shortage has impacted

o business, and undoubtably restricted our abilitv fo
recoqnise revenue in FY2022. We believe these supply
shorteiges mav continue to be a challenge in the FY2023
tracling period andd beyond. Throughout the lost twelve
months we have invested in criticol inventory as the
opportunity has become available, hewever reacting

te schedule changes and fluctuating material delivery
dates has become o significant additional workload for
the business. As a manufacturer and design authority,

we have the flexibility to be proactive in the sourcing of
components, and in some cases we can reclesign and
requalify products to make use of alternative material at
<hort netice. However, Filtronic RF products generally form
part of a larger communication solution, and increasingly
it is other elements of the equipment supply chain that
cause customers to reschedule product deliveries, adjust
demand farecasts and in extreme cases, postpone new
procluct introductions until a later date.

Customers and markets

The critical communications market has almost returned
to pre-pandemic levels of demand, with state and federal
spending programs redirected back to the upgrading and
deplovment of “first responder” netwaorks. Qur combiner
prochucts are used in most P25 network base stations, and
our filter and amplifier products are extensively deployed
across the Land Mobile Radic ("LMR") network. LTE
telecommunication networks carry more Jata traffic, but
the reliability of the LMR network when all other telecom
natworks become saturated, makes it an important part
of any private network selution. Netwithstanding some
short-term disruption to customer schedules from supply
chainissues we expect Filtrenic products to remain a part
of the P25 network solution for some vears to come.

The aerospace market remains a strong and steady
revenue contributor, with shipments supported bv a
strotegic inventory helding, and consistent availability

of custemer supplied materials. The multi-year
manufacturing supply agreements won in FY2020, will
runinte FY2024, and we are locking to secure follow-

on demand as future aerospace radar contracts are
released. We have expanded our foctprint in the Active
Electronically Scanned Array ("AESA") radar market by
capturing several reloted filter design opportunities in the

07

past year. Initial volumes are low, but it has enabled us to
strengthen our positien with the maojor cerospace primes,
broadening our customer register, which is a kev strarecic
cbjective of ours.

We have made inrcads inte the UK defence murket

with the successful completion und delivery of our first
battlefield communications product to the UK Ministrv of
Defence ("MOD"). The product is undergeing field trials
and we believe we are positioned faveurablv for any
repeat arders that may materialise as well as cther future
design programmes as part of the framework.

5G telecommunication network deplovment around the
world is accelerating, and critical to true 5G performance
is the quality and reliobilitv of high-frecuuency backhaul
communications. Filtronic’s 71-76GHz ond 81-86GHz
mmWaove transceivers ore designed teo deliver cost-
effective, multi-gigabit connectivity for mebile backhaul
networks, in gecgraphies where the F-hand frequency
has been licenced. The demand for cur praducis will
continue as usars come to expect true 3G performance,
and individual countries make the E-band frequency
available for use, with Indic expected to be a kev market
and licence approval anticipated shortly.

HAPS and LEO space communications are an aftractive
application for our proven E-band technology, and
initial customer engagements are evelving into tangible
commercial epportunities. We have undertuken two
important development programmes with large west-
coast USA technology companies that were early
pioneers in this field of converging telecommunication
solutions. Consequentlv, we now have a gead
understanding of how ta apply our IP in both stratespheric
and LEO space platforms. We are further encouvraged
by the UK gevernment's interest in the commercia
space market and the publication of the National Space
Strategy in September 2021.

There have been several notable achievements aver tha
last yeor which set the potential for sustainable growth
and future revenues, to which end, would highlight the
following:

¢ Two separate clesign contracts with UK aerespace and
defence primes for hespoke, low power handpass filters
and switch filter banks, for use in next generation radar
systems. Design and protetypes were delivered within
the year and initial prociuction orders were placed for
delivervin FY2023.

¢ The successful delivery of a £71.3m defence contract
for the design, development, and production of
a battlefield radic communication product. This
represents cur first direct engagament with the UK MoD
and the timely delivery of the initial production units
positions us favourakly for future production volumes.

e The Tower Top Amplifier (TTA") product, launched
in FY2020, passed the milestene of £1.0m of sales in
FY2022. with some important design wins for future
svstem upgrades and new state-wide installcations in the
USA.

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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o Successful transition of a long running development
programme for over-the-air, mm\Vave fest equipment.
from prototype into full production. We are working
with the cusiomer to explore future production run rates
based on marker acceprance of the end product.

e Successful deliverv of cusiom, high-performance
E-bund tfransceivers for use in several separate
private nerwork applications associated with high-
fraquency trading platforms. Extreme low latency data
communications being critical for the delivery of timely
trading data.

e Continued deliverv of the Morpheus E-band transceiver
in volume production with over 60,000 units shipped
worldwide. This achievement earned Filtronic the
coveted Queen's Award for Exportin November 2021,

» We closed the year with a significant opportunity
pipeline of new cerospace, defence and HAPS and
LEQ space opportunities, that have the potential to
materially drive the business forward in the medium
ferm.

Outlook

Ve cre undoubtably in ¢ period of economic and
geopolitical uncerfainty but one in which our rechnelogy
will be in demand, the RF design expertise we offerisin
short-supply and our core markets well positioned for
growth. The current disruption to semiconductor supply
chains will impact our business in the short term. However,
we feel we have the resources and reserves necessary to
weather the shori-term impacts, and look forward to the
new tracling period.

Filtronic’s core markets of mobile telecommunications,
critical communications and cerospace and defence,
represent industry segments that have remained robust
over the last few vears. They also align well with the needs
of the posr-pandemic world, where public safety, mobile
communications, sovereign defence capability and
development of LEQ non-terresirial telecommunication
nerwarks, resonate with governments and other
sicikeholders alike.

Business plans for FY 2023 will reflect the somewhat
unpredictable naiure of the economy and the current
geopolirical situation, but in general we remain committed
to the growth opportunities and technology roadmaps
identified in our strafegic plan. We have a culture that

is prouctive and highly motivared to creare growth and
diversification of our custamer base. With this in mind, we
haive a number of initiatives to develop our capability,

Our core markets

—= a Aerospace & defence

and secure a range of well-defined business opportunities
including:

» Davelopment of next generation MMIC designs that
will enable us to continue the evolution of our mobile
telecom backhaul solutions, from E-band into the
adjacent licence bands of V-band, W-band and
ultimately D-band;

 Develop our scalable Cerus power amplifier platform
fo maximise the range of power options af selected
frequency bands;

» Develop our E-band transceiver platform to include
active diplexer and SiP solutions;

+ Continued investment in our rarketing cctivities with
an updated website platform, enhanced web content,
and strategic use of social media platforms;

 Sirengthening the sales organisation with the
deployment of additional direct sales and business
development resource in the UK and \Western Europe;

» Expand our indiract channels to market through the
Manufacturing Representative Nerwork across the
USA and in Europe through distribution and reps;

o Further investment in capital equipment fo confinue
the extension of our engineering, design and rest
capability, production capability aligned to new
business opportunities and incorporation of alrernative
frequency bands required for LEO space applications;
and

s Align our business processes and equip our facilities
to achieve the accreditation necessary fo undertake
higher level of UK Defence programmes.

[ am pleased with the progress we have made to date

and remain excited by the potential that exists at Filtronic.
There is an increasing demand for our high-performance
products and unique RF design capabilities, and | believe
we have the resources and expertise necessary to
navigate the business challenges that will come our way in
the next twelve months. The specific marker segments that
we have identified for future growth continue fo develop at

‘pace, and as we embark on a new financial year, | believe

we are well placed to continue to deliver on our long-term
growth objectives.

Richard Gibbs
Chief Executive Officer
1 August 2022

@ Critical communications
Our markets .——L.’—J

0 Telecommunications infrastructure

Filtronic ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Market review - mega trends

Infographic

BIG DATA:

In 2020, every person
generated 1.7 megabytes
per second

{Source: IBM)

D

Every second, oll over the world,
there are 127 new devices
connected to the internet
{Source: IDC)

O seconds

To download the content of a DVD (4.7
GB) over a DSL line with a bandwidth

of 50 Mbit/s it would take 13 mins. A
5G-enabled smartphone or laptop could
download the content of an entire DVD
over a mobile 5G data link in just four
seconds (10Gbit/s)

CLIMATE CHANGE:

Digitalisation is an enabling
technology representing a fast,
scalable tool to help address climate
change. As an accelerator, it has the
potential to reduce global emissions
by up to 15 percent by 2030

N

5G-enabled technology could help

the combined G7 manufacturing

sectors reduce their total carbon
emissions by 182 million tonnes of

. CO2e by 2035
1 28 milllon (Sour:-h):lobileUK)

20%

5G is projected to make a 20%
> contribution toward US 2025 climate
change goals

(Source: Accenture (NYSE: ACN) study commissioned by
CTIA, the wireless industry ossociation)

SOCIAL CHANGE:

By 2030, consumers in large
cities, will generate 81% of
global consumption and 91% of
global consumption growth
(Source: 3M)

o

O The % of global population living
in cities by 2040 Cities are using
O smart-city innovation to become

more efficient and sustainable, to
advance well-being, and to boost
competitiveness

43

i
e
Hi
i
i
AT
i

By 2030

the number of megacities (Cities with
more than 10 million inhabitants) is
expected to rise to 43

(Source: United Notiens, Department of Economic and Social
Affairs, Population Division (2018)

MULTI-POLARITY:

The number of countries able to put
satellites into space using their own
launch facilities has increased from
two in the 1950s (US and Russia) to
over 22 in 2022

{Source: worldpopulationreview.com)

According to SIPRI, global military
spend reached almost $2 trillion in
2020. The top 10 countries represent
roughly 75% of this figure, and have
increased their spending by $51 billion
since the year prior

(Source: SIPRI Military expenditure
database, Apr 2021)

Global military spending figures
are at a 32-year high, despite the
pandemic’s effect on shrinking
economic output

(Source: SIPRI Military expenditure datobose,
Apr2021)

www filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Market review - mega trends continued

Filtronic serves several distinct markets with advanced

RF communications equipment, the main applications
being mobile felecommunications infrastructure ("Xhaul?),
critical communication netwarks and aerospace &
defence. In addition o these terresrrial applications,

we also see increasing opportunity for our technology

in sirataspheric and low earth orbit {'LEO") space
applications, where we add value thraugh leveraging

our existing intellectual property and over 40 vears of RF
design expertise.

Mobile telecommunications infrastructure
(Xhaul)

Xhaulis a collecrive term that covers front, mid and
backhaul, representing the various connections between
the edge of the telecoms nefwork, base stations, remote
radio heads and the core fibre network. Specifically, it
does not include the highly commoditised Radio Access
Nerwvark (‘RAN"/ "open RAN") or mobile handset
connections 1o the mobile relecommunications network.
Xhaul infrastructure is achieved through a combination of
fibre and wireless links, with the RF solutions traditionally
emploving licensed microwave bands (between 6GHz
and 42GHz). However, as the data demands on
telacommunication networks increases, the capacity

of Xhaul links has had to adapt, by incorporating the
signiticant extra bandwidih available with the lightly
licensed mm\Wave bands, primarily E-band (71-76GHz /
81-86GHz). W-band (92-114.5GHz) and D-band (130-
175GHz) remain as possible frequency bands for future
ulrra-high bandwidrh requirements.

For several vears, Mobile Network Operators around

the world have been building networks o deliver 5G
performance in accordance with recegnised infernational
standards. Initial neiwork implementations have been
based on Non-Stand Alone ("NSA”) technology, whereby
tha existing 4G Long Term Evolution (“LTE") network
infrastructure is augmented by increasing capacity
through carrier aggregation techniques. Thisinitial
deplovment enabled the basic 5G New Radio ("5G NR"
phase 1 performance requirements fo be met. More
racently, Stand Alone ("SA”) network rallouts are delivering
the full 5G NR phase 2 performance which is necessary 1o
meet increased end user expeciaiions.

The full range of 5G SA performance requires higher
capucity mmWave frequencies to be uiilised in volumea.

Higher frequencies dramatically increase the network
carrying capacity, but typically result in shorter wireless
link clistances, and more cell sites are needed within

the network. Consequently, the overall market size for
wireless Xhaul links connecting the cell sites back into the
network s increasing, and the use of E-band backhaul
connections (now licenced in 86 couniries worldwide) is
more prevalent.

Microwave transport is & well-astablished backhaul
technology and has been used in mobile networks for
decades. To alarge extent, 4G LTE's success has been
built on the capacity, flexibility and short roll-out times
that microwave links provide. The use of fibre optic links
in networks has increased in recent years as the use of
copper has declined, however, fibre and wireless have co-
existed in networks for many years, and there cre severcl
factors to consider in deciding whether fo deploy fibre or
wireless:

¢ Fibreis not ubiquitously available, especially
in suburban/rural areas and in the network
configurations of fasi-growing economies like Indic
and parts of Asia and Latin America. When a fibre
Point of Presence ("PoP"} is a few hundred meires away
from the radio access point, the cost of adding new
fibre may be significantly higher than adding a wireless
link.

s In current mobile networks, wireless is used in more
than 50 percent of cell sites. Replacing existing lower
frequency wireless backhaul with fibre is not always
practical, or economically viable, and therefore
upgrading to E-band microwave links is the most
effective way to increase capacity.

o Whilst the cost of fibre cable itself mav be reducing,
ihis is often a fraction of the invesiment required fo
trench and install the cable, whereas the cost to supply
and install point-to-point, line-of-sight wireless links
confinues fo reduce, while performance continues to
improve.

¢ E-band backhaul technology links that meer 5G
capacity requirements can offer the user lowear latency
than that of @ fibre cable of the same length. This
makes dedicated point to point mm\Wave links a more
attractive solution for certain well-defined latency-
critical applications.

Frequency Table: Traditional microwave to D-Band Souce ITU
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In summary, the rol out of true 5G networks is a majer
driver for the deplovment of wireless, E-band Xhoul
products. Current market estimates predict that by 2027,
microwave will account for 65% of installed base of
backhaul connections, and with 119 CAGR, at leaist 30%
of these wireless links will be high frequency mmWave,
deployed in areas of high traffic density such as airports,
sports stadiums, and metropelitan areas. The technical
and ecenomic advantages of microwaove over fibre

will unclerpin the continued growth and deployment

of E-band wireless links, and our intent is to become

the independent “go to” partner of choice for these
demanding mmWave product designs.

Filtronic’s approach to the 5G backhaul

market

Filtronic differentiates itself from other plavers in the

5G backhaul market by offering highly integrated, fully
calibrated transceiver modules which simply drop-in
between the baseband modem module and the antenna.
This plug and play architecture eliminates the need for
customers to develop in-house mmVW ave expertise, and
results in significantly reduced time to market, lower
development costs and simplified integration with the
radio.

Filtrenic's Morpheus Il fransceiver module is an upclate
on our class leading Orpheus module first introduced

in 2018. It represents the latest product in a long line of
E-band transceiver developments going back 10 vears.
Morpheus Il has the advantage of being backwards
compatible with Orpheus, enabling simple insertion,
butis also more compact, lighter in weight, lower in

cost and higher in performance. Therefore, it offers
customers a significant upgrade to both new and legacy
designs. In addition, Morpheus Il has an Enhanced Tx

2025 2026 2027
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Market review - mega trends continued

performance option which more than doubles the

linecir Tx power, significantly extendling link range. Like
Orpheus, Morpheus Il incorporates our own design MMIC
chipsets fo ensure cost effective, cluss-leading module
performance. However, we remain device agnostic

and have considerable experience of working with

clients ro integrate their preferred chipset solutions into
appropriate, high vielding module archirectures.

Whilst some OEMs choose to maintain their own in-house
RF design and manufacturing capabilities, Filironic's
unique approach has allewed us to create a highly
differentiaied offering that provides our clients with
flexibility, cost and, crucially, fime to market advantages.
Furthermore, our class-leading chipsets and dedicated
rmanufacivring capability mean that our 3G backhaul
products continue to offer users a significant performance
advantage. Current fransceiver products operate af
E-band frequencies, but by 2030 the 6G performance
standards will be on the agenda, and with it, the
requirement for extreme low-latency and uninterrupted
connactions fo even more mobile and Internet of Things
{"loT"} devices. This will create a significant number of
fechnical challenges for the tefecoms industry. Filtronic
have initiated the development of solutions for W-band
and D-band, and we are well placed to provide the
mm\Vave sub-systems required to support a world of
universal high-speed connectivity.

Critical communications networks

Critical communication networks are operated for the
benefit of emergency services, federal agencies, defence
installations and private security networks. Reliability,
availability, and security are critical attributes for these
services, and for this reason they are normailly provided
over separate infrastructure, independent of commercial
telecoms nefworks.

Filtronic has historically focussed on the North American

Master site

market which deploys the P25 network standard, and
where the market dynamics and the demand for higher
resilience and longer-range communication, have allowed
us to differentiate our products.

Overall expenditure on critical communication netwaorks
continues to grow as emergency services look ro expand
coverage, infegrate services, and continue fo replace
legiacy Frequency Modulation (“FM?) analogue networks.
The global Land Mobile Radio (“LMR™ marker is forecast
to grow at 9% CAGR between 2021-2025, based on an
upgrade of analogue to digital networks, combined with
the convergence of LTE networks and LMR technology.
Product life cycles in this industry tend to be significantly
longer than those in the commercial mebile phone
network market, and therefore return on investrment cases
are very attractive for Filtronic.

Critical communication networks have historically been
designed to supply high-quality, high-reliability voice
communication, as a result these networks tend to
operate at narrowband microwave frequencies (700-
S00MHz). In recent years there has been an increcse

in first responders wishing to exploit technologies such

as body worn cameras to augment the on-scene voice
communications. The marker is therefore prograssively
developing hybrid solutions, whereby the mission-criticail
voice communications continue to run over dedicated and
secure private communication networks, whilst non-critical
data communications are carried over commercicil grade
mobile telecommunication LTE networks.

Filtronic's approach to the critical

communications market

Filtronic has concentrated on supplying mission-critical
filters and combiners to the North American P25 market
and has established a strong relationship with the leading
OEMinthis sector. In FY2020 we launchad a range of
TTAs to expand our product offering. Although our TTA

Critical Communications
700MHz, BOOMHz & 900MH2

Technologies

Filiersincluding vehicle

Inrerfererce miti

NViNAELISBAN
ZUNUE AN S

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Hah orirude

.
.
B
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

" Decrronk counrer
meaun e ond commt

e

products have been designed to be OEM agnostic, and
are marketed under our own brand, our lead client in this
market, the P25 infrastructure market leader, has odopted
our TTA range and declared it to have “best in class”
performance. We are actively working with customers to
develop and quolify additional products to expand our
P25 network portfolio. These products will be designed
bosed en market demand whilst recognising that the cycle
for accraditation, approval and adoption associated with
new products can be lengthy.

Filtronic took the decision in 2020 to in-source and on-
shore the manufacturing of P25 critical communication
network products intc our own facility in Salisbury,
Marvland, USA, and reduce the relionce on cur Chinese
subcontroctor. This move was primarily designed to
improve lead-time and customer response times, but it
has also positioned us well as concerns increase relative
to security of supply during the realigning of trade
agreements between China and the USA.

The critical communications market continues to show
good levels of investment at both the city and stote level,
and in private networks requiring secure communications
not found with the public telecoms network. Our solutions
are trusted. reliable and generallv the product choice for
system designers planning new instollations and network
upgrades. Filtronic’s strategic objective is to maximise

the opportunity in this sector by expanding our range of
prodlucts, deepening existing customer relotionships, and
building new ones by virtue of a natienwide network of
representatives that can influence the design of Filtronic
praducts into network preposals.

Aerospace and defence
Filtronic has been a supplier of RF compeonents and
sub-systems to the aerospace industry for many vears,

13

Aerospace & defence
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in particular the delivery of filters, switch filter banks
and electronic modules for successive generations of
airborne radar systems. The latest generation of Active
Electronically Steered Array ("AESA") e-scan phased
array radars are an array of antennas. which form a
beam of high frequency radio waves that can be cimed
in different directions, witheut physically moving the
antenna themselves. This functionality together with
powerful onboard computing provides an unparolleled
level of real-time air-to-air and air-to-surface target
identification. Future generations of radar technology
will require ever more complex and densely packed RF
subsystems integrated info the limited space of the fighter
jet airframe.

We currently use our extensive RF design expertise and
UK based manufacturing locations to deliver multi-year
contracts associated with the build and supply of highly
integrated transmit and receive modules ("TRMs") for
arange of aircroft platforms. These long-term delivervy
contracts provide us with a consistent level of demand
for our manufacturing facilities and allows us to use

cur world class, Manufacturing Execution System
("MES"), Enterprise Resource Planning system ("ERP™)
and Quality Management System ("QMS”) to ensure
that each component manufactured is both traceable
and matched to the desired performance of the radar
system. The attroction of this market is the critical role that
radar plavs in delivering an effective sovereign electronic
warfare ("EW") solution for the current range of fast

jet programmes. Defence OEM's make huge efforts to
maintain their operationol edge and extend asset life-
in-service results. This results in performance upgrades
and a wear & tear replacement business. In the last few
vears, we hove received several development contracts
to use our RF design expertise in the development and
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Market review - mega trends continved
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profotyping of next generation radar systems.

Increasing geopolitical rensions are expected to lead to
increased defence spending over the coming vears. It is
anticipated that the focus of this increased spending will
be to provide enhanced capability and interoperability
hased on advanced radar systems, utilising ever more
sophisticated RF solutions. In November 2020, the UK
Government announced a £16.5bn spending increase
over and above the existing four-year manifesto
cornmitment. In March 2021, the Integrated Review

of Security, Defence and Foreign Policy included the
commitment 1o an upgrade of the UK fleet of Typhoon
radar system and the development of the next generation
fast jet platform.

Filtronic's approach to the Aerospace and
Defence market

Filironic’s rarget market in cerospace and defence is the
manufacture of hybrid electronic modules, integrated
swirch filters and other RF components and sub-svsiems
where our engineering, design and highly specialised
manufacturing capabilities can create sustainable value.
By focusing on TRMs and associated sub-svstems Filtronic
can leverage its deep understanding of RF packaging and
thermal management issues, fogether with ¢ sovereign
manufacturing capability to produce solutions that

meet the cusiormer’s challenging size. weight and power
objectives.

This leng-cycle business activity can involve up to several
years of collaborative development with the end client
bafore velume manufacturing commencas. Howevar,
once in the field, these programmes normally enjov many
years of continuing supplv and support revenues.

vuvsas
rannmans

The UK aerospace and defence market relies on
indigenous design and manufacturing capabilities, with
this in mind Filtronic have built a significant capability for
the manufacture of RF hybrids, together with the process
and procedures necassary to support full iraceability and
associated documentation. Innovative RF filter design has
always been at the core of Filtronic's capability and with «
fimited number of UK based suppliers with the nacessary
defence experience, the companv is a key pariner for the
aerospace prime.

Whilst the market for land and ship-based radars is
relatively small by comparison to aerospace, they still
require significant numbers of filters, electronic hybricls
and RF sub-systems and this, together with emerging EVV
applications deploying high frequency RF technology,
represent an attractive market development opportunity
for Filtronic.

With low RF frequencies and limited ability to differentiate
with innovative packaging, the defence market has

been a limited engagement for Filtronic in the last few
vears. However, in 2020 we were invited to be part of

a bid o design and build a battlefield communication
training system for the UK Ministry of Defence ("MoD").
The programme was securad under the Department

of Science and Technology Leaiclership 'DSTL")
procurement scheme, and we successfully delivered
profotype product and o limited production runin 2022,
This successful engagement has caused us to re-evaluate
the defence market as a strategic opporfunity and we
were awarded a second contract to this market last
month. We have been invired 1o bid on other similar

UK defence programmes that require innovative mulsi
frequency RF solufions.

Filtronic ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Low Earth Orbit ("LEO”) Space and High
Altitude Pseudo Satellites ("HAPS”)

In recent years there has been a considerable global
effort to design, develop and deploy high altitude
communication networks, or non-terrestrial networks
("NTNs"). that both compliment and overcome

the limitations of conventional terrestrial telecom
infrastructure. The promise of NTNs is the deliverv of

true 5G bandwidth and services over wide geographical
cireass where terresiriol cellulor network infrastructure is
impractical. for example the open ecean, underpepulated
rural areas, or remote locations far away from developed
infrastructure.

The challenge of providing ubiquitous, cost-effective
broadband connectivity has seen the emergence of

two specific non-terrestrial solutions. The first is HAPS,
operating within the outer limits of the stratosphere
20km above the earth. These networks, corried by
baulloons or solar powered gliders, stav suspendad in

the uppar reaches of the eorth’s atmosphere for months
at atime, and have the capacity to provide coverage
over well-clefined geographic oreas. In parallel, there is
considerable investment in LEQ constellotions operating
in the lower level of space between 250km and 2,000km
above the earth's surface. These satellites are ty pically
interconnected ond deployed in constellations, that when
combined, cover large areas of the planet in a similar way
to more traditional, higher orbit geostationary ("GEQO")
space satellites.

As the world of ground bosed and non-terrestrial
telecommunications starts to converge, then the
traditional business models associated with telecom
service delivery will clso evolve and there will be o range
of new entrants into the HAPS and LEO market. These
will includle traditional cerospace and telecommunication
companies, as well as industry disruptors who see the
potential revenue streams available with a new form of
deplovment,

There are currently over 40 HAPS programmes ot

various stages of development around the world, and it is
predicted that during the decacle commencing 2020, over
10,000 LEQ satellites will be launched as part of the race
to develop constellations of private satellite networks. The
links between LEQ saitellites, and the corresponding high
frequency links to and from the ground-based distribution
centres, represents o significant oppoertunity for the
development of high reliability RF sub-systems.

Filtronic's approach to the LEO Space and
HAPS market

Filironic have been a provider of terrestrial backhaul
solutions for many vears and our integrated Orpheus and
Morpheus meodules are anintegral part of the current
global 5G deployment. Our Xhaul products are produced
in high volume to meet the quality, reliability, and cost
expectations of a highly developed telecommunications
market.

Based on our reputation as an independeant Xhaul solution

15

provider, Filtronic have been called into collaboration
with some of the picneers explering the commercical
opportunities for HAPS based telecom solutions. These
early engagements with well-funded US tech companies
enabled Filtrenic to demonstrate an ability to adapt
terrestrial telecom products for high altitede operation.
Essentially modifying horizentalline of sight mmWane
links to vertical line of sight links over extended distances.

The communications technology in these early HAPS
demonstrations worked particularly well, and Filtronic’s
ability to design high power solutions based on our
in-house chipsets enabled early adopters to huild

and test payload prototype solutions to an agaressive
schedule. Ultimately, frequency licencing and unproven
business models have limited the rollout of commercicl
HAPS solutions, however, this has not stopped the early
innovators in this market migrating fo LEO opplications
where the economics are better understcod, and the
frequency band allocations are already defined!.

Filtronic will continue to drive a technology development
roadmop in support of the emerging HAPS and LEO
opportunity, recognising that the pioneering companies
in this field are lcoking te adopt proven commercial
technology, as opposed to expensive bespoke space
grade solutions used in the more traditional geostationary
telecommunications market.

O 200
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Adjacent growth markets

Filtronic will continue to seek and develop opportunities

in adjacent markets where we con leverage axisting
technelogy and capahbility, particularly those applications
asseciated with the licenced frequency rangesof Q /V / E
/W and D-band. Current adjacent applications of interest
include low-latency and high-capacity private networks,
high-speed track-to-train networks, gigabit wireless

links, mmWave test svstems, and earlv-stage quantum
computing applications.
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Market review - mega trends continved

Low-latency private networks

Filironic has designed and supplied highly customised
versions of Orpheus and Morpheus E-band links o
customers servicing the financial services marker.

Privaite low-latency microwave nerworks are becoming
recognised us essential in recducing the fransaction times
in auvtomate, high-frequency, financial trading systems.
Other low-latency high-capacity applications under
consideration include plant safety controls, security
monitoring networks and autenomous vehicle controls.

mmWave test equipment

Increased usage of components operating af frequencies
up to 55GHz creaies challenges for test equipment
mcinufaciurers and offers an opportunity for Filtronic ro
design and manufacture mmWave solutions for use in
automatic fest equipment. In FY2020 we were awarded
a project fo design and deliver ¢ mmWave sub-module
as part of an "Over the Air” sysiem for aleading US RF
test equipment company. The dasign phase completed
in CY 2021 with the supply of avaluation samples, and the
product moved into production in CY2022.

mmWave System in Package (“SiP”) modules

for proprietary high-frequency networks
Packaging expertise developed over ten vears of
supplying high-frequency mmWave devices for E-band
rranscaivers has enabled Filtronic fo develop a range of
highly integrated, small foatprint SiP Tx / Rx mocdules for
ihird-parry mmWave chip suppliers. Typically used in
proprierary point to point networks, these modules can
optimise the performance of RF links and enable a rapid
migration from prototype to high volume production of
mmWave RF links.

Quantum computing

Recent development in the field of quantum computing
have exposed the nead for sophisticated levels of RF
filiering, and more recently the need for integrated

switch filter banks capable of eperating ar both room
temperature and in cryogenic chambers of sustained
level of very low temperature. Filtronic is delighted fo have
sarinered with an indusiry leadler in this field to develop
and test new filter rechnelogy.

Track-to-train communication links

The provision of high-speed, high-capaciry, high-
reliability internet connections on rail journeys has
become a strategic objective of both governmeants and
rail operarors around the world. However, the provision
of such services on high-speed trains presents several
interasting technical and commercial challenges. Filtronic
has parinered with QutDoor Unit ("ODU") manufacturers
to successfully complete a demonstration project in both
Europe and Asia. Follow-on projects of "Metro scale” were
inifially planned for execution in CY2022 but these have
been postponed or delayed during the pandemic.

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Obijective and strategy

Filtronic plc is a designer and manufacturer of advanced RF communications products supplying several
different market sectors, including mobile telecommunications infrastructure, critical communications, space,
aerospace, and defence.
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Accelerating Reducing whole Customisation Competitive
speed to market life costs advantage
through higher
performance
Filtronic have been at the forefront of RF technology competition and deliver profitable growth and a positive
for over 40 vears, and we create value for our clients return for our shareholders.
b’\,: enobh‘ng The FU\T‘xJ'refOf RF, mncrov;;cxve cx}nd mm&i:'ove Our strateay is focused on providing high performance
C ] o« 'V g / i .= - - 31 7
u,cr{nmmlc(il.m_ons. d'e oi_uaon mar ets IV\ lwere ‘e have RF solutions from 300MHz to 300GHz focused on four
0 deep under standing of the sector ancl the cusfpmel S distinct primary growth markets:
application, and where we can leverage our design T .
expertise and IP portfalio to create innovative products Telecommunications infrastructure
and sustainakle revenve streams. Build on our existing E-band technelegy to offer a

complete product familv of high power and low latency
transceiver options in a selection of packaging stvles

that facilitate easy integration inte Xhaul radic designs.
Expond our frequency band effering to include W-band
and D-band transceivers that incorporate cur own best in
class MMIC designs.

Defence

Use our considerable design expertise in filters and crucial
communication praclucts to pursue epportunities for
turnkey RF design solutions for the UK defence industry.

By being o trusted supplier of technically advanced
products in markets that place value en qualitv and
reliahilitv enables us to differentiate ourselves from

Aerospace radar

Build on our existing Aerospace and Defence custemer
relationships to secure design wins for the next generation
of AESA radar and future manufacturing velumes of
outsourced semiconductor assembly and rest ("OSAT")
hybrid manufacturing.

Space

Leverage the IP and monufacturing capability developed
for the terrestrial telecommunication market to position
Filtronic in the emerging LEO space and HAPS market.

Te deliver the business strategy we set demanding
goals for the organisation. We cascade, measure and
reward achievement of these geals via our management

=
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Obijective and strategy continued

Obijectives

To nurture

close working
relationships with
our customers

to understand
their needs and
requirements

To nurture

close working
relationships with
our customers

to understand
their needs and
requirements
(continued)

To develop
closs-leading
products in our
core technology
areas and to
expand our areas
of experfise

To develop
solutions to
address both
customer-
specific and
general market
requirements.

To grow our
customer bose
within the market
verticals we serve

Activities for FY2022

Cover 100% of USA and Europe
with sales representatives.

Expand the direct Business
Development ("BD")
organisation.

New CTO recruitment process
with a brief 1o expand our
relationships with technical leads
in the markets we operate.

Build on our business processes to
befter serve defence, space, and
aerospace customers.

Expand our manufacturing
capabilities to serve defence,
space, and aerospace markets.

Execute on the core technology
roadmaps developed as part of
the FY2021 strategic planning
process ("STRAP").

Expand our capability to design
System in Package ("SiP")
solutions to reduce size, weight,
and power in key markets.

Continue to develop our telecom
Xhaul product portfolio exploring
W-band and D-band.

Expand capabilities associated
with the design, qualification, test,
and manufacture of emerging
Compound Semiconductor
technology.

Focus on adjacent market
applications that have the
potential for near term growth.

Expansion of the customer base
in our existing markets of interest.

Continue to expand our Marcom
activities and build our sales
channels.

Progressin FY2022

+ Contracted with four rep
companies that cover 80% of the
USA market.

» Seasoned BD staff added to the
roster from Q1 FY2023.

¢ Created new engineering director
roles in support of the CTO role.

* IASME governance accreditation
added and the development
of the Customer Relationship
Management ("CRM") System.

’T‘AII UK sites cleared for defence
work. Added IASME Governance
cyber security accreditation.
CRM systems were upgraded to
improve customer relationships
and drive further sales.

New prototype equipment
installed to allow rapid product
and process development.

Y orrmnr s - -

» Technology roadmaps refined
toidentify a specific set of new
product developments.

¢ Successfully recruited SiP design
engineering capabilities and built a
proposal for next generation QFN
solution for ASEA radar marker.

¢ W-band MMIC programme
initiated with first wafer run
planned for Q2 FY2023.

e

¢ New prototype equipment installed
to altow rapid product and process
development of new packaging
solutions for compound materials

—

¢ Products launched in test
instruments, private low-latency
banking and LEO space
applications.

* Deeper penetration of ASEA radar
application to include filters and
Switched Filter Bank products.

* Active campaign of marcom
initiatives monitored through

I

amarket-leading B2B website
tracker.

{
J—

Activities for FY2023

» Continue to develop the rep '
channels to promote our :
product lines.

¢ Deploy newly hired business |
development resource fo extend l
our penetration of the UK §
Defence and UK/US Space i
market. !

* Expand our attendance at critical
industry events and conferences
with technical popers and an
increased trade show presence. |

¢ Market and develop our
technology roadmaps with key
customers and industry bodies.
Further investment into our cyber |
security systems to facilitote more
defence contract wins.

* Implement new process
capability opening up new
market opportunities outside of
our existing offering.

» Build concept /demonstrator
products to show capability at
Ka/Q/V bond frequencies for the |
LEO space market.

¢ Implement the proposed QFN  }
programme fo provide plastic
packaged hybrid solutions in
addition o our current hermetic
package offering.

o Continue the W-band mmic
development.

¢ Deploy the Manchester design
centre in support of mmWave
applications adjacent to E-band.

 Continue to target UK Defence /
DSTL development programmes.

» Continue to explore adjacent
applications for our E-band
transceiver P with the launch of
the Cerus range of Solid-State
Power Amplifiers and a range
of transceiver options from high
performance Hercules fo active
diplexer and SiP.

¢ Useimproved web data analytics
to market our products and '
services and run targeted
campaigns with prospective
customers.
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Objectives Activities for FY2022

To broaden the
range of markets
we serve

brand and promote our brand

¢ Focus on building our position in
UK Defence morket.

Product & technology strategy

Filtrenic designs, manufactures, and supplies technically
advonced RF products that transmit, receive, condition,
and manage radio waves. Qur product range and wider
technology capabilities are rich in IP ond know-how, with
aver 80 patents/applications across the portfolio. Our aim
is fo be an applied technology and capability leader in our
markets but avoid the risk of being a research pioneer.

Brand Strategy

Filtronic has a strong brand with good brand recognition
and a reputation for innovative products and world
closs mm\WVave RF design. We recognise the value of o
strong brand and have invested in the marketing tools to
pramote and build the Filtronic brand via our direct and
indirect channals.

Organisational overview
Filtronic currently operates from three sites: Sedgefield
and Leeds in the UK and Salisbury, Maryland in the USA.

Progressin FY2022

¢ Refresh and relaunch the Filtronic I- New Filtronic brand launch
+ complete and well receivedinthe

message to targeted markets. ! moarket. i

¢ Successfully expanded our position ¢ Increase BD efforts to position

. with UK MoD and DSTL contacts.

i® Delivered first battlefield radio

| comms project.

1o Number of smaller NRE contracts

+  won with numerous defence

t primes.

19

Activities for FY2023

1

I'e Continue with proactive strategic
marcom activities designed to
build the Filironic brand.

Filtronic in UK defence and UK/
EU/USA LEO spoce markets.

¢ Broaden the customer base with
specific targets identified in a
number of markets.

We are in the process of adding a new site in north-west
England te augment our engineering desian capacity for
mmWave products.

Sedgefield, UK
Transceiver and TRM manufacturing, microwave and
mmWave engineering, Sales (EMEA) and central services.

Leeds, UK
Engineering & Development of Filters, TTAs and
associated RF svstems and sub-systems for defence.

Salisbury, MD, USA
North American sales, service, repair, and manufacturing
of critical communications preducts.

Filtronic recognising the importance of building
empowered teams and we maintain oftractive work
cenditions combined with modern flexible werking
practices.

SOUTH KOREA

A

GEORGIA . ‘

MARYLAND

FRANCE

GERMANY

Filtronic sales and ’
manufacturing facility v /
‘ Sales office

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Financial review

Ayear of continued progress delivering revenue
growth and another year of successive adjusted
EBITDA growth, despite sirong macro-economic
headwinds and industry-wide semiconductor
shortages, providing a solid platform from which we
willinvest in the future of the business.

Filironic achieved another year of adjusted EBITDA
growrth delivering £2.8m (2021: £1.8m) thanks fo a strong
sales mix and controlled overhead spend. Consequently,
the balance sheet was strengthened with a healthy cash
position fellowing cash generation of £1.1m (2021:
£0.9m) which will be used to invest in opportunities that
offer ¢ high rate of return and provide the building blocks
for future growih.

Revenue

We are also pleased to report sales growth for the Group
of 10%, taking revenue to £17.1m (2027 £15.6m) with
the uplifrs coming from aerospace & defence and critical
communications. This was especially pleasing given
revenue would have been higher in the period if output
had not bean constrained bv material availability caused
by the widely publicised global semiconductor compenent
shortage. By encourciging customers 1o place longer-term
ordlers we have secured the visibility we nead to align
resources and safeguard inventory. Consaquantly, we
have been able to build our order book, which is stronger
leciving the year than we entered, and gives optimism that
we can confinue on a growth rrajectory. The momenturn

is also building as wea look ro deliver on one of our kev
straregic objectives, o broaden the cusiomer base, with
several recent contract wins eutside of our largest three
customers.

5G Xhaul sales decreased year-on-year by 12% as
revenue was constrained by component availability in H1.
Having received the material towairds the end of H1, we
enjoyed a 38% increase of sales to our lead customer in
H2, as the demand profile refurned to customer-specified
levels. Qutput continues to flex, and we have the capacity
in place ro execute as 5G rollouts garher pace and an
increasing number of governments release E-band
spectrum. Sales of E-band derivatives to customers in
adjacent markets saw growth with a main contributor
being ‘over-the-air equipment having succassfully
completed the pilot phase of an engineering development
to aleading US customer.

Sales of aerospace & defence products saw vear-on-
vear growth of 279, driven by our multi-year contracts
running af consistent levels of output combined with
revenue from naw contract wins. The battlefield
communications project, announced in January 2020,
was the largest of these confract wins and saw over

£1m of revenue recognised in the period. This market

is critical fo our growth plans, and it was pleasing fo see
several new customers entering the register with initial
NRE development contracts. The sales cycle canbe long

in aerospace and defence, but once initial prototype
orders bacome established, they are generally long-term
and predictable, which helps to underwrite the business,
improving the risk appetite for more speculative high-
return projects in other areas.

The products supplied info the critical communications
market achieved good resulis in the period with 2395
growth year-on-year. The market suffered during

the pandemic with funds diveried to sectors such as
healthcare, but government spend has now flowed back
into public infrastructure projects. Demand recovered well
in the year and our lead customer is reporting year-on
year revenue grewth in Land Mobile Radio ("LMR"), which
is the segment of their business we supply into, and a
record order backlog primarily driven by LMR demand.
The recently launched TTAs performed beyond our
expactation with the product successfully designed info
major infrastructure projects ahead of more establishedi
suppliers in the market. Our procurement sirategies,
including early sourcing of materials and elevared levels of
inventory, minimised the impact of component shortages
but revenue to this market would have been higher if

not for shortages upstream in the system-level product.
However, this also creared opportunities for us, and we
were able to capitalise, winning additional business thanks
1o our ability to maintain supply, when competitors hit
fulfilment challenges.

Operating costs and headcount

Operating costs remained broadly flatin the year at
£9.4m (2021: £9.5m) as overheads were conirolled in the
administrative areas of the business.

The Group’s largest overhead is salary-related costs
which increased by £0.1m, although the mix of personnel
changed in the year. Improvements in manufacturing
efficiency facilitated a lower cost base to run cur
manufacturing operations, with the savings invested back
into the business with the recruitment of new employees in
engineering fo support work on the technology roadmap.

Given this shift, there was o reduciion in the total

number of employees in the Group during the year

which is reflected in the average headcount for the year
cdecreasing 10 124 (20217: 130). An analysis of the Groups
average confinuing headcount is presented balow:
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Number 2022 2021
Manufacturing 78 86
Research and development 26 24
Sales ond marketing 5 5
Administration 15 15
Total headcount 124 130

Further investment is planned for the year ahead with
additional engineers joining the business in Q1 FY2023
as we seek to capitalise on new opportunities having
strengthened our direct channels to market. This follows
a big push on recruitment of senior sales persennel and
engineers which incurred recruitment costs of £0.2m,
which is larger than we have previously incurred. as
given the high number of vacancies to fill we engaged

a recruitment process outsourcer ("RPO") to fill the open
vacancies.

Other costs were managed tightly throughout the year
and consequential cost savings from the pandemic

such as businass travel prevailed. In my report last year,
ladvised that | was keen to see our sales and marketing
team return fo trade exhibitions at the earliest opportunity,
and it was pleasing to see the restart of these events in the
vear. They have been successful forums for generating
new customer leads in the past, and money will always be
made availoble to support these events as they are key to
new business acquisition.

In the USA, we secured a second round of financial
suppoert through the Paycheck Protection Programme
("PPP*} to retain staff during the pandemic. The loan
was forgiven for repayment by the US government and
converted to a grant totalling $186k (£131k).

A large portion of our product development in the year
was customer funded which maintained a healthy flow of
cash during the development phase of the engineering
projects. Consequently, there was limited capitalisation of
development costs as the costs are expensed in line with
revenue recegnition. Further commentary can be seen in
the Research and Development section of this review.

Adjusted EBITDA

The Group continues to focus on an alternative
performance measure ("APM™ to track performance of
the business. This APM is adjusted EBITDA os it measures
the guality of earnings without the impact of exceptional
items and non-cash expenses such as depreciation and
amorfisation. Adjusted EBITDA for the operation was
£2.8m (2027: £1.8m) representing a 58% increase whilst
adjusted operating profit was £1.6m (20271:£0.6m). This
was focilitated by a stronger sales mix and controlled
spend of the overhead cost base whilst maintaining
investmeant into R&D.

Gross profitincreased considerably thanks to increased
sales to the critical communications and aerospace &
defence market as certain components are free issued by
the custemer which gives improved margins, whilst sales to
the telecommunications infrastructure market were lower
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where pricing is more competitive.

Amortisation increased as the full vear impact of the
Morpheus ancd MMIC IP engineering developments,
capitalised as an intangible asset in o prior period, were
borne.

The exceptional items relate to legacy Telecems Antennc
Operation provisions that were released unused in the
period. Having previously recognised the cost in the
discontinued operation, the reversal has gone through
exceptional items.

The table below shows the reconciliotion of operating
profit delivered at £2.0m (2021: £0.6m) tc adjusted
EBITDA.

Reconciliation of operating 2022 2021
profit to adjusted EBITDA £000 £000
Operating profit 1,975 a42
Exceptional items (391) 6N
Adjusted operating profit 1,584 578
Impairment of development costs - 45
Depreciation 945 a4
Amaortisation 278 209
Adjusted EBITDA 2,807 1.773
Taxation

Ataxcharge of £0.4m (20271: £0.2m) was recognised
for the vear. This is the result of a reduced deferred tax
position reflecting usage in the year within the profitable
trading subsidiaries in the UK and US. Thisis a non-cash
entry so payments will not be made to this value.

Itis highly likely that governments around the world

will increase their rates of corporation tax over the next
few years to help pay for the cost of econemic support
provided over the last couple of vears. The UK has alreacdly
increased the rate of corporation tax with effect from 1
April 2023 for companies with profits above £250,000

to 25% from 19%, and the US is currently debating the
merits of an increase. However, with substantial deferred
tax assets, including those not recognised on the balance
sheet, thisis likely to have a minimal impact on cash in the
Group in the short and medium term.

Research and development costs (“R&D")
Total R&D costs in the year before capitalisation and
amortisation of development costs were £1.7m {2021:
£1.7m). The Group utilised mest of its enginsering
resource on customer funded developments generating
near-term revenue with an increased chance of
commercialisation.

However, the Group remains committed to investment in
R&D for future growth of the business and consequently
measures R&D spend as a KPI. Given the importance,
aur investment strategy is geared towards continual
investment in R&D with the plan to align annual spend ot
29 or more of revenue. Key araas of spend in the vear
included product development for markets spanning
‘over-the-air' mmWave equipment, aerospace & defence,

V-
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Financial review continved

low earth orbit and development of W-band capability.
The heulthy cash pasition and strengthened balance sheet
gives us u greater ability toinvest in the development of
our own strategic fechnology readmap and proprietary

IP. This will allow us to build long-term shareholder value in
the yacrs ahead.

Recruitment of RF engineers has been an industry-wide
issue for some time, bur a change of approach has yieldad
positive results with the use of the RPO, as disclosed in the
oparating costs and headcount subsecrion of this report.
We have also recruited ¢ high-calibre team of engineers
in the Manchester area, where we cire creating a low-cost
footprint 1o hase the team, who will drive our technelogy
roadmap in mmWave engineering for the space market.
The Group capitalises its development costs in line with
IAS 38 us set outrin note 1 1o the financial statements.

A reconciliction of R&D costs before capitalisation and
ameortisation can be seen in the table below:

2022 2027
Reconciliation of R&D costs £000 £000
R&D costs in income statement 1,937 1,845
Capitalisction of development costs - 52
Impairment of development costs - (45)
Amortisation of development costs  (259) {182)
R&D cash spent 1,678 1,670

Capital expenditure and right of use assets
Cupital expenditure increused slightly in the yeor. The foial
amount of capital purchased was £0.6m (2021: £0.4m)
with the purchase of another die-atiach machine and
solder reflow oven. The die-attach machine increases
oveiall capacity ar our Sedaefield site, enabling quick-
furnaround of new product introductions and servicing

ot ¢ growing epportunity pipeline withour disruption to
the produciion line. It also increases the bandwidth of our
process engineers, which is a key skillset of the business,

o undertake mere development work. The solder reflow
aven improves the capability of the operation and opens
naw opporfunities particularly in the cerospace & defence
market. The assefs were externally financed through asset
finunca agrearments were subsequently classified as right
of use assets.

Warranty provision

In fine with industry practice. the Group provides
wartanties fo customers aver the quality and performance
of the producis it sells. The Group’s policy is to make a
provisien, calculared as a percentage of cost of goods
sold, after reviewing costs associated with faulty producrs
returned. As at 31 May 2022, the warranty provision was
£0.1m (2027: £0.3m). A provision relating to the legacy
lelecoms Antenna Operation was released unused in the
yeur and is recegnised in exceptional items.

Funding and cash flow
The Group recorded an increase in cash and cash
equivalents to £4.0m (2021: £2.9m) at the year-end. Cash

generated from operating activities in the year was £2.3m
(2021: £2.5m) as solid adjusted EBITDA performance
drove sirong cash generation offser by increased working
capital requirements. Industry-wide semiconducior
shortages have been well-documented and are
menfionad a number of times in the Group's Annudal
Report, with a key mitigation action baing the increase of
our inventory holding. This has been key to continuity of
supply at a time when availability is scarce and lead times
are stretching. Consequently, the netinventory position
grew by £0.4m inthe year. The increase in receivables
and payables represents a strong period of trading in Q4
FY2022, inflating the closing position, as payments were in
line with payment terms.

Net cash of all lease obligations, when including all debt
except property leases at the end of the period, wus
£3.7m (2027: £1.9m), whilst overall net cash including
property leases was £2.2m (2027: £0.8m). At ¢ time
when many sectors are srruggling with liquidiry, coupled
with economic headwinds from inflation, cost of living
increases and geopolitical uncertainty, our business is in
the fortunate position to have a plaiform from which to
grow with a cash position that will be used to invest for the
future.

We also have additional cash headroom available
through a £3.0m invoice discounting facility with Barclays
Bank plcin the UK and a $4.0m invoice facroring facility
with Wells Fargo Bank in the USA. Borh facilities were
undrawn at 31 May 2022 (2027: undrawn).

Going concern
In assessing going concern, the Board have considered:

* The principal risks faced by the Group which are
discussed within the 'Risk management saction of the
Annual Report;

* The financial position of the Group including forecausts
and financial plans;

¢ The healthy cash pesition at 31 May 2022 of £4.0m
(2021: £2.9m) and the additional headroom available
through the undrawn invoice discounting facilities and
overdraft (2027: undrawn);

¢ Globalsemiconductor component shortages impacting
supply chains and the potential for customer orders o
remain unfulfilled for prolenged periods; and

¢ The economic headwinds the world is facing with the
potential for customers to reassess their priorities, with
opportunities postponed or curiailed.

Therefore, the Directors are sarisfied that the Group has
adequate financial resources to continue in operational
existence for a period of at least 12 menths from the date
of this report. Accordingly, the going concern basis has
been adopted in the preparation of the Annual Report for
the year ended 31 May 2022,

Michael Tyerman
Chiaf Financial Officer
1T August 2022
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Key performance indicators
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The Group's management team uses various Key Performance Indicators ("KPls") to monitor the
financial and non-financial performance of the business. Below are the measures and metrics
which the Board believes best indicate the performance of the Group's continuing operations.

Revenue (£m)

£17.Tm
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2019 2020 2021

2022

The total amount the Group earns
fremtha sole of products and
services.

Research and
development costs (£Em)

£1.7m
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The Board recognises thot the
Group needs to invest in new

_ products, capabilities and
technologies to participate in a
technologv-driven market and
meosures the investment made in
rasearch and development.

Adjusted EBITDA (£m)

£2.8m
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Adjusted EBITDA per
employee (£k)

£22.6k
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The Board recognises adjusted
EBITDA as v kev metric of the
underlying health of the business.

Cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities (£m)

£2.3m
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The Board recognises that cash
flow from operating activities
indicotes whether the Group is
able to generate sufficient positive
cash flow to maintain and grow

its operations, or it may require
external funding for financing.

Employees ars a critical osser in
our business and we monitor the
adjusted EBITDA per employee io
measure productivity.
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Risk management

The Board recognises strong risk management is key to our success and achievement of our
strategic objecfives. A rigorous assessment of the principal risks facing the Group is regularly
undertaken with quick and effective responses taken when needed. These principal risks carry
financial, operational and compliance impacts including those that threaten the business model,
strategy, future performance, solvency and liquidity. They are identified based on the likelihood of
occurrence and the severity of impact on the Group that could result in damage to our reputation or

business performance.

How we manage risk

The Board is ultimately respensible for the overall risk
managament system and internal controls applied
throughout the Group to ensure a structured and
appropriate approach fo risk is taken in line with
strategic priorities and risk appetite. The Audit and
Risk Committee has oversight of risk management

and reports to the Board with its findings. The directors
recognise that risk is inherent in any business so actively
manageas rather than eliminates risk to achieve business
objectives which includes review of the effectiveness of

these contrals.

Risk management within the Group is managed by
the Risk Mancagement Committee made up of senior
operafional management including the Executive
Direcrors.

Board of Directors

Audit and Risk
Committee
(Independent
review and
challenge)

Risk Management
Committee
(Review and input)

Outsourced
internal audit
(Independent,

objective review
function)

Functional
risk registers

HIGH 5 v T
R —
F 3T H 1
3 | |
[} 1 '
.} [l '
° H H
a 1 )
2 T H
LOW | L i i
1 2 3 4 5
Key:

@® Market requirements
@® Manufacturing

© Costinflation
@ Cyber risk

O Technology
@ Supply chain

The team is responsible for

Identifying the risk and the negative and positive risk
circumsicinges;

Assessing and evaluating the likelihcod and impact
of those risks;

Reporting the risk; and

Managing the key risks in accordance with
established processes under the Group’s operational
policies and controls.

This process includes a regular review of the Group's
risk register considering existing and emerging risks,
risk scores and mitigation action plans prepared by risk
owners to manage and reduce the risk. Reporting

@ Reliance of key customers

© Recruitment & retention
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within the Group is structured so that key issues can be
escalated rapidly through the management team to
the Board where appropricte.

Managing new emerging risks

\We monitor new and emerging risks closely. In the year,
we introduced the new risk of the increasing risk of cost
inflation and margin pressure but hoving undertaken

25

the global electrenic component shortage, for instance,

customers might look to secure supplv and give

extended crder bock coverage or competitors might
not have the ability to increase their working capital to

ensure continuity of supply or may not be able to secure

inventory. We have mitigating plans to cover these

different eventualities.

a successful recruitment drive in the financial year

have now removed recruitment from the key risks, but

continue to monitor retention. Like many risks, they

could present opportunities as well as downsides. With

Qur principal risks and uncertainties

Risk

Failure to
identify
market

requirements

Inability
to meet
customer
demand
“

Competing
technology
and failure
to deliver
projects on
time or to

specification

Risk description

With the rapid evolution of
product technology ond other
corporcarte decisions, the size of
cur addressable market may

be offected. Failure to forecast
market movements correctly thus
missing cpportunities or wrongly
predicting preduct longevity
could impact on long-term
revenue and profit.

Most of the productsin
production are demand-fed
and customers moy vary their
requirements at short notice
which requires flexibility in
capacity ond effective inventory
management.

Inthe year chead cur priorities will include the
monitoring of geopolitical impact of the events
in Ukraine and continuing to closely monitor our
cybersecurity mitigation and capabilities.

Mitigation actions

In a market of rapid technology changes, it is imperative
the Group chooses opportunities that will yield a good
rate of return and have an extended product life. All new
opportunities are appraised to ensure there is a good
match between our copacity, capabilities and likely
adoption in a growing market with a good rate of return.
The appraisal process includes regular communication
with our customers including key members of our
engineering teams to ensure we are developing innovative
products that deliver the technical solutions needed by the
market. This process also assists in the formulation of the
technology roadmap to ensure it is aligned to the needs of
our customers which augments the work we undertake fo
develop our own market intelligence.

i - e - o -

—_——

We manufacture and assemble our products ot our
highly-automated facility at NETPark, Sedgefield, UK
except for our critical communications product offering
which is manufactured at our site in Salisbury, MD, USA,
based on our core competencies. Where appropriate, we
outsource non-core processes fo suppliers who can offer
advantages over internal supply.

Investment in capital equipment and additional
headcount has increased production capacity and
capability enabling us to ramp existing customer projects
and win new business. Consequently, single point
dependency on key people and machinery has reduced.

The supply chain is regularly monitored whilst regulor
communication with key suppliers ensures lead times
are managed. Please see the specific risk on the global
electronic component shortage for more information.

Qur product competitiveness is
heavily influenced by technology
choices at product concept stage
and throughout the execution of
design to product launch.

The market is time-sensitive

and opportunities may be lost

if the technology we develop is
incppropriate or fails to achieve
custemer specification or meet
the timescales required to march
market demand.

Our ability to remain competitive in terms of
technology and product design is underpinned by
retaining key staff, talent acquisition and effective
design methodologies.

We work closely with our customers and suppliers

to gain a thorough knowledge of the technology |
being developed in the marketplace. We are also

members of key forums such as The European
Telecommunications Standards Institute (ETSI) and I
the HAPS Alliance. By staying close to the market, we t
position ourselves to react quickly to any technology '

changes that develop. I

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Risk management continued

Risk

Competing
technology
and failure
to deliver
projects on
time or to
specification
(continued)

Global
electronic
component
shortage

Reliance
on key
customers

-y

Risk description

For products in the production
cycle, rechnolegy insertion is
often required as a means of
achiaving price reducrions, which
underpin sales.

There is currently a global
elecrronic component shortage
impacting all sectors and
companies relying on embedded
electronics components due to
reclucad supply andincreased
demand. An inability fo source
components or exiended supplier
lead times mav prevent shipmeni of
products to fulfil ordlers.

Mitigation actions

When undertaking new product developments, we
follow a process which facilitates a thorough review ‘
process of the engineering development at various
milestones throughout the project. This methodology is
designed to ensure the product has no design defects,
meets the required specification and is on time to
exploit the market opportunity. We have a project
management team to ensure compliance with our
engineering development process.

In order to protect our intellectual property, we
maintain ond apply for patents when appropriate and
actively encourage innovation in our engineering team
through a reward process.

s ot N

peT———— -

We work closely with our suppliers to understand key
challenges as they present themselves. Our knowledge
of the supply chain and engineering expertise can

be utilised to find alternative sources or marginally
different electronic product.

We have also utilised the strength of the balance
sheet to secure inventory early, ensuring availobility of
components to fulfil customer orders.

With good communication to our customers
highlighting the risks to product lead times we have
been oble to secure sales orders and commit purchase
orders into the supply chain.

U R

We supply a range of praducrs
to a srmall number of large OEM
cusiomers,

The loss of any of these
cusiomers, material reduction in
orders frem anv such customer
or the timing of customer project
roll-outs may have a material
adverse effeci upon Filtronic’s
financial condition.

o e ————— e i ey
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Qur largest customers are very successful in their
respective markets, and each has a long-established
relationship with Filtronic. We continue to win further
contracts with our existing customers and have good
outlook visibility as well as being actively engoged with
them on new opportunities.

The Group has strong account management strategies
and mitigates this risk by working closely with customers,
at all levels, to ensure thot we are designed into their

new products at an early stage, enabling us to develop
products that meet their specifications and requirements.

We provide customers with a well-resourced programme |
and a high level of service with a focus on product quality
and delivery which enables high customer retention rates.

To broaden the customer base, we have won several

smaller contracts with new customers, inthe year, across
several different markets that may lead to significant ,
business in the future. ‘
The sales function has also been strengthened in both
the direct and indirect channels and trade exhibitions
have recommenced in the year which together gives
confidence of an expanding opportunity pipeline and o ‘
broadening our customer base.

Change
in year

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Risk Risk description

The Group is reliont on the key skills
and knowledge of its people in @
range of areas especiallv in the !
engineering function which requires
specialist skills.

Talent
retention and
acquisition

Failure to recruit, develop and
retain an appropriate number of
suitably qualified people in critical
araas could offect cur akility to
design new products, meet our
customers' needs ond executa on
our strategic arowth plons. We
have also benefited from a number
of non-UK employees filling key
roles within the business. Due to
the highly technical noture of our
activities, these skills are not always
readilv available within the UK and
any restrictions on the employment
of these people could have an
adverse effect on the Group.

Mitigation actions

The Group has a competitive remuneration package that

! is reflective of market conditions for key roles and is under

review as conditions change with regular benchmarking
exercises. The Group also operates a long-term incentive
plan for key employees and SAYE schemes for all UK
employees.

We confinue to invest in our engineering teams to ensure
we have engineers with the right skills to execute our
strategy. We have also developed the Filironic Leadership
Academy to give our management team the tools they
need to lead their team to meet their objectives.

We provide regular communications to all employees
through communication meetings in each of our business
locations.

By helping our employees goin an understanding of

our strategic direction and objectives, we believe it
enables them to make meaningful contributions to the
achievement of our goals ond successful execution of the
plan.

Cost inflation
and margin
pressure

Inflation in the UK, as measured by [
the Censumer Price Index (CP) is
currently increasing, which is driven
by broad-basad cost increoses.

') This could creote o business
environment in \NhiCh customers
radlirect their spending from new
projects to more pressing needs.

Wage inflation, increased energy
bills and rising component prices
could have o direct impact on
our underlving cost base and
profitability,

|

i
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Change
in year

We can control some of these factors such as passing costs 0

on to customers but some factors such as economic and
political ones are beyond our control.

Ensuring our pricing models are updated so we are
quoting for new business with the latest cost base and
reducing our energy consumption are some of the
measures we have in place to protect our margins.

There is arisk to the Group if there is
unautharised access to, or integrity
issues with, its data systems, This
could cause significant reputational
damage as well as service
disruptions ond potential impact on
orders, revenue and profit.

Cyber
security
and data

integrity

s

As a supplier to the defence indusiry the Group has strong
cyber security credentials including Cyber Essentials

Plus and DART accreditation and has recently achieved
accreditation with IASME Governance which further
augments our capability to defend ourselves from cyber
threats and protect our sensitive data. Regulor reviews
are undertaken of the network security arrangements
and training is provided regularly to users on cyber threats
and other data loss/integrity risks. The Group also limits
dccess to data and access is only provided to those users
with o genuine business need. Data shored externally is
conducted under contractual arrangements.

In the year ahead, the Audit and Risk Committee will
oversee a penetrative test on our systems conducted by an
external partner to understand how resilient we are in the
event of an attack.

Risk key

0 Increased risk @ No change

0 Decreased risk

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Our people

We are extremely proud of our people and their contribution in supporting organisational performance

and strategy.

We have a diverse, experienced, and highly qualified
team focused on delivering outstanding products and
service to our customers,

Filtronic has a considerable depth of technical,
enginearing and operational management skills across
its business operations. The Group opercrtes in very
speciclised technical markets and can only effectively
compete over the long term if it continually develops these
capabilities through a comprehensive falent acquisition,
development and refention strategy that nurtures
aspiration and rewards achiavement.

Employee profile

Our headcount as of 31 May 2022 was 116. The Group
relies on highly skilled employees, who are critical to
driving innovation, new technology and operational
excellence. Our teams are made up of highly trained
employees across all functions with strong educational
backgrounds and formal qualifications, supplemented by
extensive practical training where applicable.

Employee turnover

The Group's employee turnover rate has historicallv been
very low but emplovee retention has been an elevated
risk over the last vear due to a couple of factors. Firstly,
through a fundamental shift in working practices, home

Current headcount metrics

and hybrid working has increased job oppertunities
significantly as candidates are no longer restricted

by geography. Secondly, several local companies
have recruited aggressively over the past year which
has disrupted the local labour market, which coupled
with cost-of-living pressures, has made staff retention
more challenging. We conducted an extensive salary
benchmarking exercise in the year and implemented
increases on the findings to ensure we are competitive.
Aside from the increased employee rurnover this year,
we have an extremely stable workforce, with an average
lengrh of service at 7.9 years.

Employee communication and engagement
We strive to maintain a healthy employee relations
environment in which dialogue between management
and our employees, both directly and indirectly, where
appropriate, isembeadded in our work practices.

We are currently in the process of rolling out our first
formal employee engagement survey 1o all employees.
Responsas and analysis will be managed by external
consultants to further encourage honest and open
feadback in an anonymous manner. This will be
recurring annual event as we look to improve our
employaes experience af work, measure commitment
and identify trends with action taken to address any gops.

Length FY2022 FY2021
of service % %
@ 0-5 69 50
Full time/ FY2022 FY2021 © 510 n ?
Part time % % O 10-20 27 35
@ Fulltime 97 98 © 20+ 8 S
© Porttime 3 2 - 225 1 1
Qualification FY2022 FY2021
% %
® Level 42 51 Function FY2022 FY2021
@ Level 2 2 2 % %
O Level 3 7 9 ® Manufacturing 61 65
© Bachelors degree 34 21 ® R&D 23 20
© Mastersdegree 7 9 © Sales & marketing 4 5
O PhD 8 7 © Administration 12 10

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



On a regulor basis, management engages with our
employees through a range of formal and informal
channels, including briefings and memos from the
Executive Directors, team meetings, 1-2-1's, and enline
publications via various social media outlets.

Through our HR system we have also enabled survevs
covering key aspects of employment such as onbearding.
Veluntary lecivers are interviewed to provide an additional
meons of expressing their views enabling us to analyse
data te address any retention issues or implement
suggested improvements.

Equal opportunities, diversity and inclusion
Filtronic has equal opportunity policies to support our aim
of providing opportunitias for all without discrimination.
These pelicies form part of the Group's core values

which are expected of emplovees, suppliers and cther
stakeholders. Qur policies ond practices emphasise the
importance of treating people in a non-discriminatory
manner acress the full employment life cycle including
hiring, reward, development, promotions, mobility, and
departure.

All empleyees receive specific training on equality,
diversity and inclusion in the werkplace, to ensure that no
individual is disadvantaged and to prevent discrimination
on the grounds of gender, religion, belief, race, creed,

age. disability, sexual erientation, ethnic origin, or marital
status. Activities in the year includes training through an
e-learning module devised by Make UK to ensure that our
people are being inclusive in the wav they opproach their
role and responsibilities.

Qur intention is to sustain a diverse workforce and
inclusive environment, as we believe that diverse teams
led by inclusive leaders are more engaged, whilst also
allowing us to benefit from a wider external talent pool for
recruitment purposes.

Rewarding employees

Our compensartion strategy aims to attract and retain
talent whilst promoeting and rewarding sustainable
performance and contributions at all levels of the
arganisation. The Boord and Remuneration Committee
continually look to ensure that our remuneration provisiens
support our strategy and business objectives.

The market competitiveness of salaries across the
company is assessed at local or national market level,
dependent upen role, and is reviewed annually. Whilst
we are under nc obligation to produce a Gender Pay
Gop Report, we are extremely mindful of equal poy, and
any discrepancies in the difference in average earnings
between women and men across the organisation are
addressaed via the annual salarv review process.

In addition te competitive salaries, we also offer a suite of
benefits including, but not limited to, employer matched
pension contributions plus 2% to o maximum of 8%, long-
term incapacity benefit, 4 x base pay sum life assuronce,
Emplovee Assistance Programme, childcare vouchers and
cycle towork.

In the prior year, we rolled out our Technology Leadership
Recognition Policy to recognise and reward innovative
thinking ond professional persenal development, o
number of awards were made in the vear, under this
scheme, for new patent applications and grants as well
white papers and technical presentations. To complement
this, we have alse intreduced a ‘Bright ideas’ scheme
managed through our T-card system, te broaden the
reward scope for new ideas and continuous improvement
suggestions. Vouchers are presented quarterly fo
employees with the best ideas.

Employee share plans

We have a couple of share option plans designed to align
emplovees interests with the Group's performance and
the interest of our sharehalders. For information on the
share-based compensation plans for Executive Directors,
see the ‘Directors remuneration report’.

UK-based emplovees of Filtronic plc are eligible to
participate in the Save As You Earn ("SAYE") Scheme.
Options are granted at the closing middle market price on
the dov before issue and vest after completion of a three-
vear savings period. The epticn price for the SAYE scheme
implemented on 1 June 2021 was at a discount of 20% to
the market value giving an option price of 5.67p.

Culture and conduct

We have a responsibility to all of our stakeholders to actin
accordance with our Code of Ethics. The code is designed
to ensure thot we conduct ourselves ethically ond in
accerdance with Filtronic’s policies and procedures as well
as the laws and regulations that applv to us.

As well as cur Code of Ethics, the Companv culture is
powered thraugh our values and behavicurs which are
instrumental to everything we do.

Values and behaviours ‘
The kev values and behaviours of Filtronic are:

o Actwith integrity; being honest and fair, always
keeping our promises;

» Berespectful to all; it is the foundation of our culture;
and

Always strive for excellence; it is what cur clients and
colleagues expect and what we endeavour to deliver.

Fellewing the introduction of these values and behaviours
last year, we have taken ¢ holistic approach to ensuring
that they are embedded across the organisation. They
have been written inte recruitment, appraisal and
performance management svstems.

Recruitment

Competition and demand for technical talent has never
been greater; gecgraphical base limitations have been
removed for many roles driven by a fundomental change
in how and where people work. We have embraced this
shift to ensure that we continue o attract the best talent
with the introduction of hvbrid working, and supporting
remote working, where possible.

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Our people continved

Ovur values
& behaviours

Filtronic employs a special kind of person.
They are experts in their field, confident
communicators who love to collaborate,
solve problems, and step up to a challenge.

Values

Behaviours

Integrity

Act with integrity; being
honest and fair, always
keeping our promises.

Do the right thing, not the
eosy thing, speak upifit's
not right.

Deliver on your promises.

Be truthful, always being
honest and open.

Be fair and ethical in your
work and decision maoking.

Toke responsibility for your

Berespectful toall; it is
the foundation of our culture.

Be inclusive, always
respecting and
valuing others.

EESSS e

Act how you wani to

be treated; being kind,
considerate and respectful
of athers and their opinions.

Be supportive and
positive in all your
working relationships.

Value the importance
of equality, diversity
and inclusiviry.

Excellence

Strive for excellence;

it is what our clients and
colleagues expect and whot
we endeavour ro deliver,

Perform 1o the highes!
professional standards.

Be innovative and pragmaotic
with problem solving,

Take pride in our work,
paying atention to detail.

Be agile and flexible
in your approach.

Be curious ond challenge
constructively 1o improve
how we work.

own actions, learn from

mistokes when they happen.

This has been i very successful year for recruitment as
we have strengthened our engineering and business
development teams. To deliver this we utilised an RPO
model, implemented a generous employee referrall
scheme and used our very well-established industry and
academic contacts. We have also recruited a team of
high-calibre engineers in the Manchester area wha bring
a wealth of experience and provides us with a base in the
area to attract engineers from both the Manchester and
Sheffield area where RF enginaering skills are available.

Covid-19

We continue to manage any ongoing impact of Covid-19
with the healith & safety of our employees remaining our
number one pricrity. The impact o business operafions
has baen negligible due to the adoption of home and
hybrid working coupled with robust, pragmatic heclth and
safety pratocols.

Looking to the future - training development
Filtronic confinues to work towards future-proofing the
business to ensure we have the right skills to support
business growth. Equipping our leaders with the skills o
manage, lead and deliver on our growth strategy is a key
focus for the Group, to which the rollour of our Leadlership
Academy is testament.

Be open-minded and
upfront with people.

This year we will be focussing on establishing an
apprenticeship programme and formal succession
planning.

What do you enjoy most about your job?

"There's always something new to learn in

my role. | enjoy the higher frequency work
especially; it wasn't something I'd had a ton

of experience with before | joined and the
manufacturing capabilities at NETPark mean
lots of those opportunities exist.”

Laura McDenald
Senior RF Design Engineer

“I really enjoy working at Filtronic, the variety
and progression is a big draw for a new
graduate, plus the investment within the IT
systems makes my job more interesting.”

Mz ussain
IT Graduate

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Corporate social responsibility report

We are committed to doing business ethically and sustainably in the interests of our stakeholders:
shareholders, employees, the environment, customers, suppliers and the communities in which we operate.
This report covers how we interact with our stakeholders, our approach to key issues and the aims for the
future.

Environmental Social Governance ("ESG")

Environmental

* Operational energy use ¢ Technology driving
and carbon emissions digitalisation and carbon

e Waste and recycling footprint reduction

YeYellel

e Health, safety and Attracting and retaining
wellbeing talent

¢ Employee engagement Charitable and

¢ Diversity, inclusion and community support

equality Human rights and
modern slavery

Governance

e Ethical conduct Responsible supply chain

» Corporate governance Data privacy and

* Risk management cybersecurity

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Corporate social responsibility report continved

Sustainability and the environment

The Group is committed to protecting the environment
through prevention of pollution and minimising our impact
on natural resources. As well as operating in compliance
with all relevant statutory and regulatory obligations, the
Group strives to implement environmentol best practices
throughout our activities and confinually improve our
environmental management system to enhance our
environmenta! performance.

During the year, as part of our activities and decision-
making process, we:

« Continued to integrate environmental concerns and
impacts into the design and manufacture of our
products;

* Promoted environmental awareness among our
ernployees, through implementation of a cycle to work
scheme and encouraging the use of the electric car
recharging stations at our NETPark site;

« Continued to minimise waste through re-use and
recycling and promote efficient use of materials and
resources;

e Strove to prevent pollution and to continually improve
our environmental performance;

* Undertook training from the Responsible Business
Alliance relating to ESG;

¢ Benchmarked our ESG credentials on alarge well-
known business sustainability plotform; and

¢ Reviewed our status ogoinst Ner Zero as we look to
develop our plans to help tackle climate change.

The Group supports and trains its personnel to act
responsibly in matters relating to the environment. Our
principal manufacturing site in Sedgefield, County
Durhamis certified under the ISO 14001 Environmental
Management Systems Requirement.

The Group takes account of relevant legislation and
regulations and analyses its practices, processes and
products to reduce their environmentol impact, and

works with our customers and suppliers to achieve a high
standard of environmental stewardship. We look forward
fo receiving and implementing the UK government’s flow
down to indusiry of its net-zero carbon target which will
involve measuring carbon emissions and implementing
policies for carbon reduction or off setting the carbon that
is released.

Health and safety ("H&S")

The Board is committed to ensuring the H&S of the
Group's employees and applies high standards
throughout the Group in the control and management of
its operations. The Board regularly reviews the Group's
arrangements for the planning, organisation and

control of H&S matters. Global H&S meetings are held
periodically with participants from each of the Group's
three operational sites. In the year, we updated our H&S
policy which is published with our group policies and is on
display at each of our sites.

Human rights .

Filtronic applies human rights considerations fo the way
it does business, for example through ethical sourcing
and anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies, our code
of ethics, which is an integral part of our management
policies, our practices in relation to H&S, equal pay and
employees’ freedom to join trade unions. Filtronic is
committed o ensuring transparency in our approach to
tackling modern slavery through the flow down of our
Modern Slavery Policy throughout our supply chain.

Charitable and community support

Over the course of the year, Filtronic employees have
participated in and sponsored various events. The Group
provides paid leave of one day per annum for staff who
wish 1o undertake volunitury or charitable work.

Supply chain management

The adoption of an advanced product life cycle
management software system has allowed for group-
wide management and control of our documentation

fo include product design, suppliers and change
management as well as a module to address specific
quality processes. Supply chain management is working
to develop partnerships with our main suppliers fo
ensure they have systems in place that focus on quality,
environment, corporate socicl responsibility and health
and safety. The Group adopted a Supplier Code of
Conduct inthe year which can be found at www filtronic.
com/about/customer-and-supplier-support/ 1o ensure
suppliers behave ethically and in alignment with Filtronic's
values. During the yeor we also rejuvenated our supplier
questionnaire and supplier management processes
including the implementation of the Supplier Code of
Conduct to improve the governance of our supply chain.

The implementation of these management systems,
which are designed fo monitor and control processes such
as quality, the environment and H&S, provide Filtronic
with the confidence that each and every product that is
delivered to our customers is ot an appropriate level of
quality, and has been designed and manufacturedin o
way that considers our impact on the environment and
the ultimate H&S of our employees and our broader
stakeholders who contribute to our success.

We ore certified ISO9001 and are actively working
towards the AS9100 which is the quality management
standard adopted by the aerospoce and defence industry.
The FY2022 Strategic report, has been reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors on 1 August 2022 and
signed on its behalf by

Richard Gibbs
Chief Executive Officer
1 August
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Richard Gibbs (aged 63) : Chief Executive Officer

Appointed to the Board: 1 September 2020

Richard is an experiencad director who has led a number of business cperations
supplving semiconductor, RF and electronics subsystems to QEMs. Richard joined
Filtronic from Micross Components, where he was Managing Director. Prior 1o his time
ot Micross, Richard spent nine years at E2V Technologies, where he was Group Sales &
Marketing Director and President of the RF Procluct and Hi-Reliahility Semiconductors
Divisions, and 20 years with Honeywell. of which 10 years were spent managing
overseas operations.

Michael Tyerman {aged 43) : Chief Financial Cfficer

Appointed to the Board: 1 April 2016

Michael joined Filtronic in 2007 as Financial Controller of the Broadband business
and was premoted to the position of Group Financial Controller in 2009, He served
this position until his appointment to the Beard. Prior to joining Filtronic, Michael held
various positions within Procter and Gamble, Huntsman and Komatsu which included
time working in the Benelux and Nordic regions. Michael is a Chortered Management
Accountant.

Non-Executive Directors
Jonathan Neale (aged 59) : Non-Executive Chairmon
Appointed to the Board: 15 November 2021

Committees:® ® ®

Jonathan was recently Chief Operating Officer of McLaren Group. Until his retirement
he previously held a number of exacutive reles with the McLaran Group including Chief
Executive Officer of MclLaren Racing F1. Prior to this, Jonathan was Managing Director
of BAE Systerns, UK — Hawk Military Aircraft.

Jonathan graduated from the University of Nottingham with an honours degree in
physics and is a Fellow of the Institute of Directors; o council member of the charity The
Foundation for Science and Technolegy: a Fellow of the Institute of Engineering ond
Technolegy; and a Chartered Engineer.

Peter (Pete) Magowan (aged 54) : Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board: 19 November 2018
Committees: ® ©®

Pete was previously an early employee and main board member of ARM Heldings,

an Executive at Fidelity International Ltd and General Partner at Alta Berkelev
Venture Partners. Pete's early operational career waos in sales and marketing ot
leading technolegy companies. He received a BSc degree in Electrical and Electronic
Engineering from UMIST and has a Diploma in Marketing. He is also a Non-Executive
Director of Solid State Group plc.
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John Behrendt (aged 61) : Indepenclent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 1 January 2021

Committees: ® ® ®

John was Head of Principal Investments with Eight Roads. part of the Fidelity network
of companies, from 2015 until 2020. John has also held a number of leadership and
operational roles, including CEQ of Optegra, CEO,/CTFO of Frontier Silicon Limited.
CFO for Teraview Limited, and CFO for Alphamosaic Limited. John is a qualified
accountant with the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA).

Committee Key: Choirman of Committee ® Audit ® Nominations ® Remuneration

VW
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Governance report

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
Fitironic ple Governance report for the year ended
31 May 2022,

The Board recognises the value of good corporate
governance as the basis for promoting the long-rerm
growth and sustainabilitv of the business. Governance
arrangements are reviewed on an ongoing basis to
ensure they are fit for purpose and the Board contfinues
to consider that the Quoted Companies Allicince ("QCA")
Corporate Governance Code 20718 (“The Code”) provides
the most appropriate framework for governance for the
Company’s size and complexity. Throughout the year, we
have complied with all principles of the Code.

This yovernance section of the 2022 Annual Report and
Accounts, which includes the corporate governance
statement, the Audit and Risk Commiitee repori, the
Nominations Committee report and the Directors’
remuneration report, describas how Filtronic has applied
the main principles of the Code during the year. Further
informaition on compliance can be found on the Filtronic
website at https://filtronic.com/investors.

In November 2021, Ijcined the Board as Chairman. lam
aware that it is my responsibility fo ensure that Filtronic

has the governance arrangements in place to support
effecrive leadership and promeote the long-term success of
the Company and that these arrangements are followed
in practice.

Jonathan Neale, Chairman
1 August 2022

Corporate governance statement

Introduction

The Board acknowledges the rele that the ten QCA

Code principles has in providing struciure to the Group's
corporate governance framework. This section explains
how we have complied with the fen principles of the QCA
Code.

Principle 1 - Delivering growth in the long-term

As explained fully within the strategic report of the Annual
Report, our strategy is focussed around four core areas:

» Telecoms: defending our current pasition and target
new customers by developing the E-band roadmap
fo VW-band with premium performance high power
fransceivers, active diplexer and SiP options based on
inhouse MMIC design;

e Defence: increasing defence project coverage with
mujor customers requiring RF hybrid solutions;

¢ Space: posifion Filtrenic in Space (HAPS/LEO) market
by virtue of cur UK manufacturing capability and
Q-band PA design; and

* Radar: leveraging our current relationships to secure o
higger role in next generation radar design;

Notwithstanding the challenges posed by the Covid-19
pandemic, as well as the macroeconomic backdrep (e.q.,
inflationary pressures, electronic component shoriage
and extended lead-times) during the year, the delivery of
the strategy confinues and remains, front and centre, as
the focus of the Board's attention. Our objactive through
the execution of the strateqy is o deliver shareholder
value and medium-long term growth. As ¢ Board, we

will ensure that we continue to challenge ourselves and
regularly consider whether we are effective in delivering
this objective.

Qur business model and execution of the sirategy is
underpinned by the governance framework outlinad in this
secfion.

Principle 2 - seeking to understand and meet
shareholder needs and expectations

Great value is taken from maintaining open relaiionships
with shareholders and the primary point of confact in

the Companv for this function is the CEO, supported by
the Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"} and the Chairman.
The CEO and CFO undertake an extensive programme
of meetings with shareholders at least twice a year.
Additionally, the Chairman is available to speak wirh
shareholders at their request. The Senior Independent
Director is also available as an alterncitive communication
channel for shareholders who may wish to raise any
concerns. Presentations are also made fo analvsts fo
present the Group’s results. This assists with the promotion
of knowledge of the Group in the invesiment marketplace
and also helps the directors to understand the needs and
expeciations of shareholders. Please refer to the corporute
governance section of our websire for more details: www.
filtronic.com/investors/corporate-governance.

Principle 3 - Take into account wider stakeholder and
social responsibilities and their implication for long
term success

Our stakeholder engagement recognises the materiality
and impact of our stakeholders on the achievemeant

of the Company’s sirategy. Please refer to Section 172

(1) Statement and Stakeholder engagement sections
within the Governance report and the Corporate social
responsibility report of the Strategic report.

Principle 4 - Risk management and internal controls
The Group faces challengeas in the execution of irs
business strategy. The Board acknowledges that it has
overall responsibility for the Group's svstem of infernal
controls {which is designad to manage and mitigare
rather than eliminate risk) and to review and moniror
ifs effectiveness. During the year the remit of the Audit
Committee (renamead the Audit and Risk Committee)
was formally exrended to include a quarterly review of
the Group's risk register with a view to (i} ensuring the
risk register is complete, appropriate and up to date;
(i) ensuring adequate processes are in place fo detect
new or emerging risks; (iii} reviewing risk exposures and
any changes to the starus of risks in the risk register;

(iv) reviewing risk management assessment and

Filtronic ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



processes; (v) reviewing risk mitigation measures and

the apprepriateness of responses to risks; {vi} reporting

its findings to the Board. The Group operates a series of
controls which includes the annual strategic planning and
business planning process. Additionailly, the Executive
Directors and senior managers provide monthly updates
e the Board in the form of function reports which include
the principal risks and controls thev are managing across
the Group. Please see the Risk management section of the
Annual Report for further informartion.

Principle 5 - Maintain the board as a well-
functioning, balanced team led by the Chairman
The Board is currently comprised of the Chairman
(Jonathan Neale), two Executive Directors (Richard
Gibbs, CEOQ and Michciel Tverman, CFO} and two Non-
Executive Directors (Pete Magowan and John Behrendt).
Peta Magowan is the Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director and he, tegether, with John Behrendt are
regorded by the Board as being independent Non-
Executive Directors. During the vear, the Board was
supported and assisted by the Company Secretary

and General Counsel (Maura Movnihan), who was in
ottendance at ond contributed to each board meeting.
All members hod access to the advice and services

of the General Counsel and Company Secretary.
Following Maura’s retirement from Filtronic ot the end

of the financial year, Michoel Tyerman was appointed
Company Secretary on 1 June 2022 (while retaining

his CFO role). In compliance with the Code, the Board

is mindful of the need to develop plans to separate the
roles at an appropriate time. Board members are able to
. take independent professional advice at the Company's
expense in the discharge of their duties.

There is o formal schedule of matters reserved for

the Board. To enhance the Board's communication

with management and achieve greater operational -
transparency, sanior management from the sales and
marketing, oparationol and engineering organisations
are invited te the perfermance review sectien of the board
meeting to present their key projects and deliverables at
regular intervals to the Board.

Board meetings

The Board meets each month against a defined reporting
timatable and at times in between the scheduled meetings
when required. Board meetings are held at the Group's
operational sites to enable locol management teams to
present operational and strategic programme prograss
to the Boaord. The Board believes this arrangement

gives greater transparency ancl enhanced relationships
between the management and the Board, During the
year, boord meetings have been held in person at the
Sedgefield and Yeadon sites.

35

Directors' attendance FY2022
The Board nermally schedules ot least 10 meetings during
the year. Last year the Board met fermally 1Q times.

Meetings

attended
Jonathan Neale! 6/6
Richard Gibbs 10/10
Reg Gott? 4/4
Michael Tyerman 10/10
Pete Magowan 10,10
John Behrendt 10710

Vlonathan Neale was oppointed on 15 November 2021
‘Reg Gott retired on 28 October 2021,

Principle 6 - Ensure that between them directors
have the necessary up-to-date experience, skills and
capabilities

At present, the Board believes that its averall size and
composition reflects an appropriate balance of sector,
financial and public markets skills and experience. The
composition of the Board is be reviewed at least annuailly
by the Nominations Committee, with a view to ensuring it
comprises the skills necessary for achieving the company's
strategy.

Details of each director’s skills and experience can be
found in the directors  biographies section on page 33.
The members of the Board bring a range of
complementary skills and experience from ocross
markets in which the Group operates.

In November 2021, the Board was delighted to welcome
Jonathan Neale as independent Non-Executive
Chairman. Jonathan brought with him a wealth of
refevant directorial experience, technoloay credentials
and personal qualities to position him well to provide

the clarity of purpese and strong leadership required

to lead the Board effectivelv as well as oversee the
communication and delivery the Company s strategy.
Overall, the Board is satisfied that, between the directors,
it has an effective balance of skills and experience. Please
see the Nominations Report for further details on how this
principle is implemented.

Principle 7 - Performance and Performance
Evaluation

Each year, the Board carries out an evaluation of its own
pertormance at the end ot the tinancial year, reviewing its
performance in that yeor.

The Choirman and the Company Secretary prepare an
evaluation questionnaire reflecting the considerations

of the corporate governance code as well as significant
events over the year. The performance of the Board, its
Committees, and individual directors is assessed. Board
members are asked to provide feedback for assessment
by the Chairman in the first instance and to Pete
Magewan, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director,
in respect of the Chairman. The combined feadback is
discussed by the Board and actions ogreed with proaress

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Governance report continved

on actions monitorad during the year. On joining the
business, ihe Company Secretary arranges an induction
session with each new director covering such matters

as Group and organisation siruciure, Filtronic’s values

and group policies, an infrocluction to the AIM Rules for
Companies, the QCA Code, Market Abuse Regulation
{"MAR") and the terms of reference for the Board's
committees among ather matters. Where spacific training
needs are identified, including as a result of the Board
evaluation process and individual director appraisals,

the Company will organise the relevant training. The
Company Secretary supports the Chairman in addressing
the fraining cnd development needs of directors,
Following last year's exercise, the Board received refresher
fraining on MAR, AIM Rule 11 and other corporate
matiers from Pinsenr Masons LLP. In addition, further
information on IFRS standards IFRS 15 (revenue from
confracts with customers) and IAS 38 (infangible assets)
was provided as required following last year’s exercise.
Principle 8 - Promote a corporate culture that is
based on ethical values and behaviours

At Filtrenic, we believe in collaboration, we work with our
rechnology leadership clients re solve their complex RF,
microwave and mmWave challenges. Our purpose and
reason for being is to be the trusted provider of innovative
RF solutions. Innovation matters to us, we want to push the
boundarias of what is possible with RF communication.
Filironic are long-term partnars in aerospace and
defence, telecommunications infrastructure and critical
communications. These effactive parterships have
grown from having a strong value-based culture, where alll
our amployees are encouraged and supported to:

o Actwith integrity; being henest, always keeping our
promisas.
e Berespectful to all; it is the foundation of our culture.

« Sirive for excellence; it is what our clients and
colleagues expect and what we endeavour to deliver.
The Board monitars and promotes its corporate culture
assisted by its senior leadership team ("SLT"), which
includes the Head of HR. This team plays a vital role
in disseminating the Company s shared values with its
employeas. The SLT holds monthly meetings, and its
members are frequently invited to attend sections of the
board meeting which halps the Board assess the Group's
culture on an ongoing basis.
Principle 9 - Maintain governance structures and
processes that are fit for purpose and support good
decision making by the Board
The Board is responsible for group strategy, delivering
results, risk management and ultimately business
parformance. The Board is run by the Chairman.

Remit of the Board

Whilst many dav-to-day operational matters are
managed by the Executive Directors and SLT, other
maitters, including those listed below. are reserved for the
Board:

» Strategy and oversight of the management of the
Group;

¢ Approval of the Company and consolidated financial
statements;

* Approval of major corporate transactions and
commitments;

¢ Succession planning (appointment/ramoval of
directors, PDMRs and the Compainy Secratary);

¢ Approval of all trerms of reference for the committees of
the Board;

¢ Review of the Group's overall corporate governance
arrangements including systems of internal conirols
and risk management; and

e Approval of the delegation of authority 10 the CEOQ or
where appropricte to the relevant board committee.

Committees

The Board continues to operate with three committees:
The Audit and Risk Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nominations Committee. Detailed
written terms of reference for each commitiee are
maintained and are available to view on the company
website. In addition to formal meerings, the Nominaitions
Committee and Remuneration Committee meet
informally during the year to review and discuss Board
composition and compensation.

Principle 10 - Communicate how the Company

is governed and is performing by maintaining a
dialogue with shareholders and other relevant
stakeholders

The Company is committed to open communication
with all of its shareholders. Communication with
members is driven primarily through the regulatory
news service {(RNS), the company website and the
Annual General Meeting. All shareholders will receive
a copy of the Annual Report and Accounts (hard copy
or electronic depending on shareholder preferance).
The half-year results are published on the Company’s
website. The Company reports on the activities and
responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Committee,
Nominations Committee and the Remuneration
Commitiee each year in the Annual Report and
Accounts. Copies of historic annucl reports and notices
of general meetings for the last five years are available
on the website.

Engaging with our employees helps to ensure the
values and culture the Board wants fo promote are
embraced throughout the Group. The Company
encourages open twe-way communication to promote
innovative and collaborative working. Communications

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



with employees takes place ordinarily through town
hall meetings at each of the Company's sites, the HR
system, feam meetings, health and safety meetings
and training sessions.

The longevity of cur business can only be secured
through maintaining ond expanding our customer
base. Communication with customers is a priority and
is mediated through dedicated commercial managers
and directors, overseen by the Chief Commercial
Officer. Customers are solicited for feedback on
products and business cperations performance,
market landscape and demand trends.

Regular contact and an open-door pelicy are key

to maintaining good and stable relations with our
supply chain. The procurement department, aided

bv clear website sections, ensures that Filironic’ s key
policies and values, or their equivalent, are adopted
by the supply chain with all suppliers issued with the
Filtronic Supplier Code of Conduct which includes, but
is not limited to, its policies on bribery, modern slavery
and conflict minerals. Engogement with suppliers is
overseen by the Chief Operaticns Officer.

The group policies were reviewed by the Board during
the vear and, as a pricrity for the business, were
communicated, via management cascade, to all
emplovees.

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Stakeholder engagement

Section 172 (1) Statement on the Discharge

of Directors’ Duties

In compliance with the Companies Acr 2006, the Board
are required to act in accordance with a ser of general
duties. During the year ending 31 May 2022, the Board
consider that they have individually and collecrively acred
in a way they consider, in good faith, would be most likelv
o promote the success of the Company for the benefit of
its shareholders having regard to the six matters listed in s.
172 (1) (a) fo (f) of the Companies Act 2006.

To achieve long term success for the benefir of all
sharehelders, the Board recognises the importance
of building and maintaining relationships with

kev siakeholders us well as considering the likely
consequences of its decisions in the long-term.

Regular updates from the Senior Leadership

Team (“SLT")

Throughout the year, the SLT updated the Board with
information on impertant areas of business focus, in
particular those relating to our key stakeholders. Each
member of the SLT submit a report to the Board each
month providing comprehensive operational updates and
progress against strategic milestones. They are regularly
invited to board meetings fo present this information and
update the Board on kay points. This ensures the Board
have a good undlersranding of the priorities of each
stakeholder group fo aid decision making.

Duty to promote the success of the Company
Filironic’s objective is to grow profirably by being a trusted
supplier of technically advanced products that deliver
value to our customers. Maiters that impacted our key
decisions and strategies rowards meeting this objective
during the year, are set out in the Straregic report. The
Board's long-term objective is fo serve markets that

value our know-how, IPR, and culture of working in
partnershig with stakeholders to create better technical
and commercial solutions that meet our customer
requiremeants to lead fo long-term profitable growth.

Direct engagement of Board members

The Executive Direciors are in daily contact with
employees from across the business to understand

key topics relating to both employees and customers,
sharing regular updates to the Board. Regular reporting
on customer engagement keeps the Board up to date

on customer trends and feedback. A number of board
members had meetings with shareholders during the year
to dliscuss strategy and business performance.

Board considerations and decisions

Given the updates from the SLT, some of the topics
considered throughout the year are presented below
demonstrating how the Board discharged their duties:

Employees and culture
* Approval of the new Filironic values and behaviours.

¢ Implementation of a new ESOP scheme to incentivise
and align the interests of senior management with
shareholders.

e Approval of the Hybrid Working Policy ro give cur
amployees flexibility ro work from a variety of locations.

¢ Consideration and approval to improve our employee
engagement procasses.

» Recognition of our longest serving members of staff
with the implementation of a Long Service Awards
Policy.

» Approval of the Filtronic Leadership Academy to upskill
employees with managerial responsibility and develop
future leaders, to drive the business forward.

Strategy

» Consideration of company performance against its
strateqy.

e Consideration of the technology readmap and
required investrent.

¢ Update on new customer acquisition, strategic
milestones and consideration of shareholder value.

¢ Consideration and approval of the FY2022 interim
report.

» Consideration of and approval of the FY2023 business
plan and leng-range forecast.

Governance

* Agreed on the appointment of Jonathan Neale as
Non-Executive Chairman.

¢ Consideration of the IASME Gevernance cyber security
standard and approval for its implementation.

* Approval of updated Group Policies including a new IT
Policy.

¢ Approval of the new Suppliar Code of Concluct.

» Consideration of an Anti-Tax Evasion Policy and
procedures.

» Update from sharehelders in relation to strategy and
remuneration matters.

Filtronic ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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The Board recognises its responsibility to take inte consideration the needs and cencerns of Filtronic's key stakeholders
as part of its decision-making process. The table demonstrates how the Group engages with its stakehelders and the
outcomes of this during the year:

Stakeholder

Customers

Employees

How we engage

The Board receives feedback frem its customer facing
teoms. Each key account has o dedlicated account
managament who acts as "the voice of the customer”.
The Chief Commercial Officer briefs the Board each
month as to how we are performing with each of our
customers.

The Executive Directors, clong with senior members of
the sales and enginearing teams will attend meetings
with strategic-level influencers within cur customer’s
orgonisation.

We continually seek opportunities to collaborate ot
a product and technelogy strategy level with our key
clients. but all cellaborations are under Non-Disclosure

Agreament (“NDA") and require director-level approval.

We regularly participote in a wide ronge of trade
shows, conferences and symposia. Thev plav an
impertant role in our business development planning.

— RO S —

The Executive Directors communicate with employees

through communicartion sessions and town halll
meetings to update them on the perfermance of the
business and progress on key initiatives. Emplovees are
ancouraged to ask questions in o Q& A session ot the
end of the meetings.

The Group relies upon highly specialised skill sets
that are in increasingly short supply. We are therefore
actively developing o new talent management strategy.

The Executive Directors are required to be actively
visible across our sites to take the pulse of the business
and offer an open-door policy to employees whe would
like to ask ¢ question or offer a view.

Key outcomes

Increased levels of engagement with customers at

a strategic level. A greater understanding of both
customer and market trend requirements better
informs the development and refinement of our own
strategy and technology roadmap to ensure we
support our customers to the best of our ability and
invest in the right capability to meet their needs.

Board-level engagement with our customers helps
convey our commitment to understand and meet their
business needs. Following the relaxing of government
restrictions, we hove enjoyed many face-to-face
meetings with current ond prospective customers in

a more normalised business environment facilitoting
strong customer engagement. Having customer onsite
enables them to see our capability and production
facilities demonstrating our credibility as o leading
technology company.

Disclosure of our product development and
technology roadmaps to customers increases

the opportunity to align our mutual interests and
demonstrate we are the ‘go-to company’ when it
comes to leading technology; the NDA protects our
intellectual property interests.

Trade exhibitions and conference attendance
recommenced following the Covid-19 pandemic
for which we have been very active over the last
year. This has facilitated key engagement, not only
with prospective customers, but also having useful
discussions with our existing clients.

Broad ranging and meaningful communication leads
to greater fransparency throughout the business and
facilitotes o more engaged, motivated and effective
team. This is done through a range of communication
channels including newsletters, emails to all employees
and discussion groups with manogement flow down
to employees and informal factory floor-walks.

The Group aims to become an attractive employer
by providing a rewarding long-term personal
development opportunity environment, recognising
ond rewarding those that have demonstrated strong
performance. We have also funded a number of
training initiatives to develop our employees and
enhaonce the skills in the business including the newly
introduced Filtronic Leadership Academy to upskill all
staff with managerial responsibility.

A better informed and consulted workforce is more
likely to be both better motivated and more effective.
The Group also operates a T-card system where
employees con offer ideas for business improvements
which are shared with the Executive Directors with the
aim of offering feedback to those that have taking
the time to share their views. The Board have also
approved an annual employee engagement survey
to gain insight into employees’ thoughts and attitudes
towards their work and overall environment.

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Stakeholder engagement continued

Stakeholder

Employees
(continued)

Investors

Suppliers

How we engage

Participation in the Company Sharesave schame.

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

hold analyst and investor meetings throughout the
year both on request and spacifically following the
release of the annual and half year results. Feedback
from these meetings is shared with the Board. Major
shareholders cire regularly engaged fo hear their views
on arange of issues such as strateqy, remuneration
and corporafe governance.

The Annual General Meeting is our primary method
of engagement with private investors along with the
Annual Report. We encourage investors fo atfend
and usk guestions they may have. A theend of the
meeting, the Board engage in an open and informal
forum with afrendlees.

The Group's Annual Report and Accounts is available
to shareholders in both hard copy form and online. All
announcemenis and presentaiions are anvailable on
the Company’s website whilst we also engage on social
medhia platforms such as Linkedln.

The Company’s broker, finnCap Lid (“finnCap™,
prevides briafings to the Board on shareholder
opinions and independent feedback from investor
meetings. Their views are sought on all market related
matters or anneuncaments.

Meetings are held with kev suppliers ot both their
facilities and ours. This ensures a more intimate
knowledga of each orher's capabilities and cbjectives
and leads to closer alignment of values.

Qur Supplier Code of Cenduct is flowad down to
our supply chain fo ensure compliance with social
responsibility and good governance pelicies.

Supply contracts of rmaterial significance te the Group
are subject 10 infernal controls with @ summary of the
kay terms being provided ro the Executive Directors for
approval.

The Group aims to play fair with is suppliers and pov in
line with the contractual payment terms.

Key outcomes

Share scheme participation has aligned the interests
of employees with shareholders giving staff the
opportunity to hold a stake in the company. The
Company opened a new SAYE scheme in the year
opento allemployees.

A wide range of communication channels are used

to engage with investors during the yeor. Feedback

from investors has informed the Board's discussions :
ond decisions on the Company’s strategy. All material i
information that is worthy of investor announcement

is made available simultaneously to both shareholders

ond potential shareholders. Meetings with

shareholders and potential investors were held during

the year with meetings offered both in person and

virtually.

We value the opportunity fo meet with our

shareholders ond engage in an exchange of views and
ideas and, post AGM, we review the feedback we have 1
received. We were delighted fo welcome shareholders
back for the 2021 AGM which was physicolly held in |
Sedgefield with private investors welcomed to attend.

We respect that not everyone is “on-line” and continue
to provide shareholders with a choice to receive o hard
copy of the report.

Regular and frequent interaction between the
Company and our broker ensures we receive regular
guidance ond remain aligned on our engogement
with the investment community. A report colloted by
finnCap, after the business results investor roadshow,
giving shareholders feedback from each meeting is
shared with the Board.

e ST T -

= - =
The Group's supplier base is a key part of the

company’s ecosystem and effective relationships with
our suppliers are essential to the delivery of Group
performance. We engage with our suppliers through
our engineering and operations team and we work
closely with key suppliers to ensure we take advantage
of innovative technical and commercial solutions

in the supply chain in order to secure a competitive
advantage. Following the reloxation of government
guidelines in multiple jurisdictions we have enjoyed :
meetings ot our suppliers'sites.

We minimise our exposure to supplier related risks
by requiring them to adhere to our Supplier Code
of Conduct and group policies. They are required
to confirm they are not in conflict with these policies
before or during engagement.

Supplier gating processes ensure management is
kept abreast of supplier risks, opportunities and ,
governance matters and able fo act promptly when
required. The Board receives regular updates, from
the Chief Operations Officer, regarding key supplier
performance metrics and any issues under review.

By playing fair with our suppliers we gain their respect,
support and commitment to meeting our own business
objectives.

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



The Company's engagement with key stokeholder groups
and the impact our business operations have on the local
communitv and the enviranment are considered within the
implementation of the Company’s objective and strategy
and the Corporate social responsibility report.

Standards of business conduct

The Board is committed to o culture of integrity and
openness The Board is confident thot through our pecple,
our valuas, our policies and processes we are fostering the
right culture to make a positive impact on the business,
our employees, our customers, suppliers, the environment
and the communities in which we operate. The Board

is committed to identifying other means to drive further
positive impact through our products, processes and
foremost our people, all of which will contribute to the
success of the Company.

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Nominations Committee report

Membership
The members of the Nominctions Committee and the
meetings attended in the year are:

Meetings
attended
Jonathan Neale (Chairman)’ 2/2
Pete Magowan 3/3
John Behrendt 3/3
Reg Gott? /1

Jonathan Neale was appointed on 15 November 2021.
2Reg Gott retired on 28 October 2021.

Roles and responsibilities

The Committee’s role and responsibilities are set out
in full in the terms of reference, which are available
on the Filtronic website and set out the Committee’s
responsibilities as follows:

* Ensure the balance of board members remains
appropriate as the Company implements its strategy
to ensure the business can compete effectively in the
marketplace;

Identify and nominate candidates to fill board
vacancies as and when they arise;

Before such appointments are made, evaluate the
overall balance and composition of the Board and in
the light of that evaluation, preparing ¢ description
of the roles and capabilities required for the
appointment; and

Ensure that each new appointee receives a formal and
customised induction to the Group via the Company
Secretary and other board members as appropriate.

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the Nominations Committee
Report for FY2022. This year the Committee continuad
to focus on board composition and succession
planning, including reviewing the skills, experience and
personal qualities required for robust and sustainable
leadership for the Board, its committees, and the wider
management ream.

This was a busy year for the Commitiee with several
board changes including the appointment of myself as
Chairman following the retirement of my predecessor,
Reg Gott, and the appointment of Michael Tyerman,
who already serves on the Board as the Chief Financial
Officer, as Company Secretary after Maura Moynihan
retired. The Commirtee is aware of the QCA guidance fo
have a planin place to appoint ¢ dedicated Company
Secretary af an appropriate fime in situations where the
Company Secretary is also a director. The Commitiee
will keep this arrangement under review until it feels o
dedicated Company Secrerary is necessary.

In identifying suitable candidates for board appointment,
the Committea uses the servicas of external advisers

to facilitate the racruitment search, asit did with my
appointment to the Board, and considers candidares

on merit and against objective criteria. The Committee
recognises the value of a diverse board and will

consider all candidates with the necessary capabilities

in accordance with the Company’s policies including
considerations of equality and diversity.

When a new directer joins the Board a full and formail
induction process is undertaken. On my appointment, the
Company Secretary provided me with information about
the Group including board and committee minutes along
with board papers from the last six months, the Group’s
policies, procedures and governance information,
analysis of the Company s key shareholders, guidance
for diractors on their legal and regulatory responsibilities
in an AIM-quoted company, guidance on corporafe
governance and board effectiveness and relevant
information about the markets we operate. | also spent
time on an individual basis with the CEO and CFO and
other key management around the business fo gain o
better understanding of the business and ifs culture.

The Nominations Commitiee also takes account of the
results of the annual board performance evaluation
exercise. The Commitree plavs a key role in ensuring the
effactiveness of the Board and its ability to deliver long
term success for the Company, including having the
appropriate balance of knowledge, skills and experience
to reflect the changing needs of the business and prepare
for the future.

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



In the year ahead, the Committee will look at its
organisational development plans for the executive
leaders in the business as the Committee recognises that,
developing and retaining talent within the Group are
essential for the continued sustainakility of the business.

The Committee will also focus on succession plans for the
Board and key management and to oversee the actions

43

coming out of the board effectiveness questionnaires
that tock place in June 2022 to ensure they are effectively
implemented.

Jonathan Neale
Chairman. Neminations Committee
T August 2022

Activities of the Nominations Committee during the year

The Nominations Committee discharged its respensibilities during the year by:

Activities undertaken

““Areaof review

Board

¢ Led the search for a new Non-Executive Chairman to replace Reg Gett.
" ¢ Recommended the appointment of Jonathan Neale as Non-Executive Chairman.
appointments . . -

: J ¢ Recommendad Michael Tyarman to be appainted as Company Secretary.

Beerd partermene | ¢ Conducted arigorous board parformance evaluation exercise.
¢ Agreed the boord effectiveness review strateqy.

e Assessed the size and composition of the Board.
COuSmEIREs * Reviewed and approved the Committee’s terms of reference.

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Audit and Risk Committee report

Membership
The members of the Audit and Risk Committee and the
meetings attended in the year are:

Meetings
attended

John Behrendt (Chairman) 3/3

Jonathan Neale! 2/2
Pete Magowan 3/3

Reg Gott? 11

*Jonathan Neale was appointed on 15 November 2021.
2Reg Goit retired on 28 October 2021.

Roles and responsibilities of the Audit and

Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee operates within c
framework of approved terms of reference which
are reviewed annually along with its effectiveness;
recommendations made to the Board of any changes
required from the review. The terms of reference are
available on the Filtronic website, and include the
following roles and responsibilities:
¢ Monitor and make recommendations to the Board
in relation to the Company’s published financial
statements and other formal announcements relating
to the Company’s financial performance;
Advise the Board on whether the Committee believes
the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as @ whole,
are fair, balanced and understandable and provide
the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Company’s performance, business model and
strategy,
Monitor and make recommendations to the Board in
relation to the Company's internal financial controls
and financial risk management systems;
Consider the need for an internal audit function,
determine the scope of outsourced internal audit
activities, appoint a provider, agree fees and review the
results of these activities;
Make recommendations to the Board in relation to
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor and approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor;
Review and monitor the external auditor's
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process, taking into consideration the
relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements;
Monitor the extent to which the external auditor is
engaged to supply non-audit services; and
Ensure that the Company has arrangements in place
for the investigation and follow-up of any concerns
raised confidentially by staff in relation to the propriety
of financial reporting or other matters.
Review the company’s risk management systems and
processes to ensure their adequacy and regularly
review the risk register fo ensure it is complete and up
to date with appropriate risk mitigation measures in
place where required.

Dear Shareholder

During the year the Board gave additional responsibility
to the Audit Committee to oversee and report on risk
management resulting in the renaming of the Commitiee .
to the Audit and Risk Committee. Therefore, on behalf of
the Board, | am pleased to present the report of the Audit
and Risk Committee.

The Audir and Risk Committee continues 1o fulfil o vita
role in the Group's governance framewaork, providing
indepenclent challenge and oversight of the accounting,
financial reporting and internal conirol procasses,

risk managament, the infernal audit activity and the
relationship with the external audiror. This report outlines
how the Audit and Risk Committee has discharged its
responsibilities during the year and the key issues it has
considered in FY2022.

The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the number of
times it meets each year, having expanded the remit of
the Committee to includle risk management, and decicled
it will meet at least four times a year going forward.
Meetings are generally held immediately prior 1o o board
meeting to facilitate immediate and efficient reporting 1o
the Board, with additional meetings where necessary. The
Executive Directors may attend the meeting by invitation
whilst the external auditors artend when requested as do
the outsourced internal audit providars.

The Company outsources its internal audit activity to third
parties os it is not deemed appropriate given the size

of the Company to have its own internal audit function.
However, the Audit and Risk Committee considers
annually whether there is a need for an in-house internal
audir function 1o be established and, were it to conclude
that this would be more appropriate than the current
arrangements, would recommend this fo the Board.

The normal partern of meetings follows the public
reporting and audit cycle, with meefings fo consider the
external audit plan; the half year announcament and

the full year Annual Report and Accounts, the latter

with the external auditors’ observations and opinions.
There are at least two additional meefing in the year to
review the internal audit that has taken place in the year
and consider the kev risks of the Group, how they are
managed and review the adequacy of the arrangements
o mitigate those risks.

As Chair of the Committee, | maintain regular diclogue
with the Chief Financial Officer and have direct access
to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ("PwC"), the Company ‘s
external auditor. The Committee meets separately at
least once a vear with the external auditors without
others being present to facilitate open discussion and the
opportunity to discuss any concerns.

Next year the Committea will focus on continuing to
monitor risk managament systems with the internal audit
activity focussed on cybar security.

John Behrendt

Chairman, Audit and Risk Committee
TAugust 2022

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Activities of the Audit and Risk Commiittee during the year

During the year, the Audit and Risk Committee discharged its responsibilities by:

Area of review Activities undertaken

Review the Annual Report and Accounts, Interim Report and interim management statemants
pricr to Beard approval.

Consideration of whether the Annuol Report and Accounts is foir, balanced ond
understandable.

Fina an' Review the external auditor's detailed report to the Committee on the annual financial
reporfing statements.

Review of accounting policies and significant accounting judgemants and estimates.
Review of chonges in accounting stondards and their impact.

Review of the going concern basis of preparation of the financicl statements including
consideration of the Group’s latest business plan and three-vear cutlook, cash flow forecast and
corresponding sensitivities on downside scenarics.

Review of the external auditor’s plan for the audit of the Group’s financial statements, including
the identification of key risks.

Review ond approval of the external auditor's terms of engagement, remuneration and
independence.

Review of the external auditors’ compliance with ethical and prefessional guidance en audit
partner rotation.

Assessment of the effectiveness of the audit process.

External auditors

Recommendatien regarding reappointment of the external auditors.

Review of the Group’s risk management register.

Specific focus on risks in the semiconductor supply chain, cost of living and wage inflation, cyber
security as well as the risk of not fulfilling our strategic ebjective of broadening the customer

Risk management

. base.
and internal ) _ . . . . . .
| ¢ Review of the Group's internal financial controls operoted in relation to the business and
controls assessment of the effectiveness of those controls in minimising the impact of key risks.

Review the need for an internal audit function and determine what aspeacts of the Group's
operations should be subject to outsourced internal cudit scrutinv.

Review of the Committee’s terms of reference.
Troining on IFRS 15 (Revenue from contracts with customers) and IAS 38 (Intangible assets).

Exponded the remit of the Committee to includle risk management and renomaed it the Audit
ond Risk Committee.

Amended the number of meetings per vear following the expanded remit of the Committee.
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Key accounting matters Inventory valuation
The following key areas of risk and judgeément have Filtronic operates in an industry where developments
been identified and considered by the Audit and Risk in procluct fechxjoloqy and the hl_qh[\/i customer specific
Committee in relation to the business activities and nature of some inventory may result in inventory becoming
financial statements of the Group and Parent Company: slow-moving or obsolete. This in furn may mean that

G | N luati d inventory cannot be sold or sales prices for such inventory

g - o) . . . :

¢ Group-inventery valuation; an are discounted te less than the relevant inventory’s book
* Group - Goodwill . value.
¢ Parent Company -Carrving value of the investment in The Committee consiclered a paper from management :

subsidiaries. analysing this inventory by product and looked ot

projected future usage relative to current inventorv an
hand. It reviewed the provision for excess and cbsclete
inventory and noted that the level of provision and the
methedology applied was appropriate and consistent.

These issues were discussed with management and the
external auditor, in particular ot the pre-yeor end oudit
planning meeting and at the conclusion of the audit of the
financical statements.

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Audit and Risk Committee report continued

Carrying value of goodwill and the investment in

the subsidiary:

The Commiittee considerad the judgements made in
relation to the valuarion methodology adopted by
management and the model inputs used. These are set
outin notes 15 and 16 1o the financiol starements.

The Committee agreed with the judgements made by
management and concluded that the impairment of

the carrying value of the investment in the subsidiary in
the financial statements of the Parent Company was
necessary and ne impairment of goodwill in the financial
statements of the Group.

External auditor
The Committea considers thar PwC has carried out its

cluties as the auditor in a diligent and professional manner.

As part of the review of auditor independence, PwC has
confirmed that it is independent of the Company and

has complied with applicable auditing standards. PwC
has held office as auditor for four years and therefore

the Audit Partner is in accordance with professional
guiclelines of serving no longer than five years fo maintain
independence.

In assessing the auditor’s effectiveness, the Committee:

» Challenged the work done by the auditor to rest
management’s assumptions and estimates in the key
risk areqs;

» Reviewed reports receivad from the auditor on these
and other maiters;

* Received and considered feedback from management;

and

o Held private meeiings with the auditor that provided
the opportunity for open diclogue and feedback
between the Committee and the auditor without
managament being present.

Having completed its review, the Audit and Risk
Commitree is safisfied thar PwC remained effective and
independent in carrying out its responsibilities up to the
clate of signing this report.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Company’s management and the auditor confirmed
to the Audit and Risk Commiitee that they were not
aware of any material misstatements. Having reviewead
the reports received from management and the audiior,
the Commitree is satisfied that the key areas of risk and
judgement have been appropriately addressad in the
financial statements and that the significant assumptions
used in defermining the value of assets and liabilities have
been properly appraised and are sufficiently robust.

After careful consideration of the advice of the Audit

and Risk Committee, the Board has concluded that the
2022 Annual Report and Accounts is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the necessary information
for the Company’s shareholders to assess the Group's risks,
performance, business model and strategy.

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Directors’ remuneration report

Membership
The members of the Remuneration Committee and the
number of meetings attended are:

Meetings
attended

Pete Magowan (Chairman) 5/5

Jonathan Neale? 2/2
John Behrendt 5/5

Reg Gott 2 3/3

1 Jonathon Neale was appointed on 15 November 2021.
*Reg Gott retired on 28 October 2021

The Remuneration Committee compromises the Non-
Executive Directors, including the Chairman.

Role of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee’s role is to define and
make recommendations to the Board on the Group’'s
remuneration policy and the employment terms of
Executive Directors and senior management along
with the effective implementation of that policy. The
Committee is also responsible for the review and
approval of pay increases, performance related pay
arrangements and share incentive plans along with the
associated performance targets. The Committee’s full
terms of reference are reviewed regularly and approved
by the Board.

Dear sharsholder

On behalf of the Board. | am pleased to present the
Filtronic Directors’ remuneration report for the vear
endad 31 May 2022. The report explains the work of the
Remuneration Committee during the year and sets out
the payments and awards made to directors.

The Company, being listed on AN, is not required to
produce a comprehensive Directors’ remuneration report
or ta submit a remuneration policy to a binding vote.
However, the Board does wish te maintain fransparency
and demonstrate good governance so presents the
following remuneration report.

The Remuneration Committee is committed to structuring
the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and
senior management that are competitive and enable the
Group to attract, retain and motivate talented people
that can develop ond execute the Group's strategv. To
promote the long-term success of the Company, the
Executive Directors incentive benefits are performance-
based and earned only subject to the satisfaction of
performance conditions. These performance conditions
are aligned with the interests of the shareholders.

In the year, the Committee reviewed the basis of the
FY2023 performance-relatad bonus plon te ensure

it aligned with the interests of shareholders. As the
Company executes on its growth plans it was concluded
that the incentive scheme would be betier served by o
revenue-hased metric, moving away from the profit-
hased plan, with incentives given for achieving stretching
targets against the FY2023 strategic business plon. The
Committee is confident this will drive the right behaviours
in the organisation to deliver long-term shoreholder value
and ultimately increased revenue will lead to improved
levels of profit.

To support the long-range strategic plans and further
align the interests of the Executive Directors and key
management with shareholders, the Committee
introduced another employee share option plan ("ESOP?
in the yeor which vests in FY2024 based on meeting
stretching revenue targets.

The Committee also recognises that every employee

is key to delivery of our ambitious growth strategy. Qur
employees have been outstanding threughout the
pandemic, ond in handling the fallout from it such as the
global semiconductor shortages, demonstrating focus,
commitment and drive to continue to deliver to customers.
To recognise this, and incentivise employees to achieve
results likely to deliver share price appreciation, another
Save As You Earn ("SAYE") scheme was implemented in
the year where employees can exercise their option in
three years' time ot a 20% discount to the shore price the
day before grant. )

Salary increases in the year were awarded to the
Executive Directors and key management ot a rate of 5%

"which was appreved having undertaken abenchmarking

exercise of pav rises in businesses of similar nature and
size. The Committee also undertook an exercise to review

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

the benefits awarded ro employees including the car outcomes for the year, \We are committed fo maintaining
allowance scheme awarded 1o the Executive Directors an open dialogue with shareholders with regards fo

and management in the Group. After considleration, the remuneration and would welcome any comments or
Cormmittee approved the proposal to offer all employees concerns, relating to this report, thar shareholders may
in receipt of the benefit the option of converting their have.

car allowance into base salary. Both Richard Gibbs and

Michael Tyerman opted o convart their car allowance

benefit,

Pete Magowan
Chairman, Remuneration Comrmittee

The main activities of the Committee in FY 2022 are set out 7 Auausr 2022
in the rable below. | hope vou find this report gives a clear gust tes
account of the Committee’s approach and remuneration

Activities of the Remuneration Committee during the year
During the vear, the Remuneration Committee discharged its responsibilities by:

Area of review

Executive
Directors’
and senior
management
remunerotion

Share incentive
plans

Governance

Activities undertaken

» Set the remuneration for the Executive Directors and senior management as part of the annuc
pay review.

¢ Set the remuneration for Jonathan Neale on his appointment as a Non-Executive Chairman.

o Assessed and approved the FY2022 bonus ourcomes.

* Reviewed and approved the FY 2023 performance-related beonus plan changing the
performance criteria 1o a revenue based meiric.

» Considered and approved moving car allowances from a benefit info base salary.

* Approved the grant of share options under the Emplovee Share Option Plan {ESOP ) for the
Executive Directors and key management.

Approved the grant of share oprions under the Save as you Earn Plan {"SAYE") for the Executive
Directors and key management.

Assessed and approved good leaver ierms for eligible leavers.

Reviewed employee share scheme headroom availability.

Considered and approved the Annual Report and Accounts on remuneration.
Reviewed and approved the Committee’s terms of reference.

Detuails of the service contracts currently in place for directors are as follows:

Name Executive service agreement appointment date Key current terms Notice
period
Richard Gibbs Appointed ro the Board on 1 September 2020 Base salary £204,225 6 months

Chief Executive

Annual bonus

Officer Health insurance
Long-term incentives
Michael Tyerman  Appcintad to the Board on 1 April 2016 Base sulary £137.365 6 months

Chief Financial

Annual bonus

Officer Health insurance
Pension
Long-term incentives
Name Role Non-Executive terms of appointment date Fee Notice
period

Jonathan Neale Chairman and Nominations  Appointad to the Board on 15 November 2027 £80,000 & months
Committee Chairman

Pete Magowan  Remuneration Commitiee  Appointed to the Board on 19 November 2018 £40,000 3 months

Chairman
JohnBehrendt  Auditand Risk Committee  Appointed to the Board on 1 January 2021 £40,000 3 months
Chairman
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Certain sections constitute the audited part of the reports of the remuneration report.

Total single figure of remuneration for directors - audited
The directors total remuneration in respect of the vear under review is shown below and compared to the previous vear.

Total remuneration

Long-term excluding pension
Salary or fee Bonus Benefits incentive contributions

£000 FY2022 FY2021 FY2022FY20217 FY2022FY2021 FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021
Executive Directors
Richard Gibbs 189 135 75 42 17 15 9 7 290 199
Michael Tyerman 126 120 50 38 5 8 3 - 184 166
Non-Executive Directors
Jonathan Neale! 33 - - - - - - - 33 -
Reg Gott’ 25 100 - 14 - - - - 25 114
Pete Magowan 40 40 - - - - - - 40 40
John Behrendt 40 17 - - - - - - 40 17
Michael Roller - 17 - - - - - - - 17
Total 453 429 125 94 22 23 12 7 612 553

Honathan Neale was appointed to the Board on 15 November 2021,
“Reg Gott ratired on 28 October 2021.

Notes to the single figure table of remuneration for directors - audited

Taxable benefits

Toxable benefits in kind were amended in FY2022 as the benefit of a car allowance was transitioned into base salary
instead of baing given as a separate benefit to simplify the remuneration structure. The Executive Directors are still
provided with private health insurance and life assurance.

Incentive outcomes for FY2022
The Executive Directors were rewarded during the year for delivering profit targets aligned to the FY2022 business plan.

Annual performance-related bonus plan

An annual performance-related bonus plon has been introduced for the vear ending 31 May 2023 which will reword the
Executive Directors and key management cash bonuses for delivering stretching revenue targets aligned te the FY 2023
business plan and achievement of personal objectives that support the growth and development of the business.

The Executive Director can earn up to @ maximum of 50% of their base sclary. Pay-out is determinad by the
Remuneration Committee which has discretion to varv the bonus based on performance.

Long-term incentives

The Executive Directors have long-term incentives as part of the Company’s share eption plan. More details relating fo
this can be found on page 50 in the Management share option plan - audited’ section of the Directors’ remuneration
report.

Total single figure of pension benefits for directors - audited
The Executive Directors' total pension benefits in respect of the year under review are shown below and are compared to

the previous year.
Pansion contributions

£000 FY2022 FY2021
Michael Tyerman 11 11
Total 11 11

Contributions were made to the Company's defined contribution scheme.
Richard Gibbs elected not to join the Company’s pension scheme.

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Directors’ and relevant senior management holdings of Filtronic shares - audited

Direciors are not required but are expacted to have holdings in the ordinary share capital of the Company.

The interests of the directors, who were serving as at 31 May 2022, in the Company’s ordinary shares, which excludes
interests under the share option schemes, are sef out below:

2022 2021
Shares % Shares %
Richard Gibbs 425,000 0.2% 225,000 0.1%
Michael Tyerman 339,478 0.2% 339478 0.2%
Jonarhcin Necle 199,870 0.1% - -
Pete Magowan 750,000 0.4% 750,000 0.4%
John Behrendt 60.000 0.0% 60,000 0.0%
1,774,348 0.9% 1,374,478 0.7%
The above shareholdings include holdings of direcrors’ connected parties.
Management share options scheme - audited
The Executive Directors whe were serving at 31 May 2022 held the following options over the ordinary shares of the
Company:
Plan Exercise period Option price 2022 2021
Richard Gibbs . ESOP 25/09/2023—24/09/2030 8.00p 750,000 750,000
Richard Gibbs ESOP 24/06/2024—23/06/2031 11.12p 245,448 -
Richard Gikbs SAYVE 06/05/2024—05/11/2024 6.67p 35,622 -
Michael Tyerman  ESOP 01/03/2019—28/02/2026 537p 300,000 300,000
Michael Tyerman ESOP 24/06/2024—23/06/2031 11.12p 479,988 -
Michael Tyerman SAYE 06/05/2024—05/11/2024 6.67p 58,290

1,869,348 1,050,000

The ESOP scheme awarded fo Michaeal Tyerman and key management in 2016 awardad share options for delivering a
significant increase in the share price, this performance condition was met and the option vested. The ESOPs granted in
June 2027 to Richard Gibbs, Michael Tyerman and key management were granted for the delivery of stretched targets of
revenue with the options vesting at various incremental increases of agreed targets.

There are no performance conditions attached 1o the ESOP options granted to Richard Gibbs, vesting in 2023, other than
remaining in empleyment with Filtronic until the exercise period.

The Remuneration Committee is able to adjust the outcome at its discretion to ensure it is fair and appropriate, taking into
account the overall performance of the Group.

Richard Gibbs and Michael Tverman both optad to take part in the Company’s SAYE scheme which was offered to all
emplovees inthe yeor.

The closing middle marker price on 31 May 2022 was 10p, and on 31 May 2021 it was 9p. The range of middle market
share prices during the year ended 31 May 2022 was 13p—9p.

There were no changes in directors’ inferests between 31 May 2022 and 1 August 2022. The Company's register of
directors interests, which is open to inspaction at the Registered Office, contains full details of direcrors’ shareheldings.
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 May 2022,

Going concern

The Groug's business, and the factors likely to affect its
future development, performance and position are set out
in the Strategic report.

The revenue, trading results and cash flows are explained
in the Financial review on page 20.

After a review of forecasts including projections of
profitability and cash flows for the year to 31 May 2023
and a further two vears, the directors believe that the
Group has adequate resources to continue to operate

for the foreseeable future and that it is therefore
appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the consolideted and
Compaony financial statements. The basis of preparation,
in note 1, provides more detail on this.

Directors and their interests
The directors of the Company during the year, and up to
the date of this report, were as follows:

Richard Gibbs

Michoel Tyerman

Jonathan Neale (appointed on 15 November 2021)
Pete Magowan

John Behrendt

Reg Gott (retired on 28 October 2021)

Details of directors' interests in tha share capital of the
Company are set out in the remuneration reporton
page 50.

Jonathan Neale, having been appointed to the Board on
15 November 2021, offers himself for election at the
Annual General Meeting.

Michael Tyerman, retires by rotation, and being eligible,
offers himself for re-election ot the Annual General
Meeting.

Peta Magowan, retires by rotation, ond being eligible,
offers himself for re-election ot the Annual General
Meeting.

Top Investors
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Directors’ indemnity

The Company has in place directors’ and officers’
liability insurance on behalf of its directors and officers in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

Directors’ conflicts of interest
There are no declarations to be made undler Article 182 of
the Companies Act 2006.

Research and development expenditure
Research and development costs in the year before
capitalisation and amortisation relating to continving
cperations were £1.7m (2021: £1.7m), of which £nil was
copitalised (2021: £0.1m). Amortisation of development
costs in the year was £0.3m {2021: £0.2m).

Financial results and dividend

The results for the year are set out in the income statement
on page 59. The position at the end of the year is shown in
the balance sheet on page 61,

The directors are not recommending payment of
dividend (2021: £nil).

Significant events and future developments
There have been no significant events since the reporting
date. The Group's future developments are disclosad in the
Strategic Report on pages 3 to 32.

Share capital

The Company’s share capital consists of 0.1p ordinary
shares. The rights and obligations attached to sach share
are equal. Each share carries the right to one vote ot the
Annual General Meeting of the Company and carries no
right to fixed income. There are no limitations on holding
ortransfer of the shares. The Board has no powers fo
issue or buy back the Compony's shares, other than those
approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting held in October 2027.

Substantial shareholdings

Upto 31 May 2022, the Company had been netified,
by shareholders, in accordance with chapter 5 of the
disclosure and transparency rules, of the voting rights
they held as shareholders of the Compony. An analysis
of shareholders os ot 31 Moy 2022 (os disclosed by
shareholders via TR1) is set out in the table below. As ot
31 May 2022, the Company had issued share copital of
214,798,417 ordinary shares of 0.1p ecch.

Rank  Investor 31 May 2022 . %

1 Mark and Diana Dixon 54,000,000 2514
2 .0 .. Canaccord Genuity Group Inc. - 22,490,000 10.50
3 David and Monigue Newlands 19,521,021 G.09
4 River and Mercantile Asset Management LLP 11,353,451 5.3

5 Michael and Alice Bennett 7,054,761 3.28
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Directors’ report continuved

Political and charitable contributions

No contribuiions were made for polincal purposes (2021
£nil) The Group made charitoble donations of £100 in the
year (2027: £nil).

Treasury policy

The Group's reusury pelicy aims to manage the Group's
financial risk and to rwinuse rhe adverse effects of
foctoonons in the inancial markers on the volue of

e Group's financial assets and habiliries, on reporied
profrability and on the cash flows of the Group Nore 37
sets oui the paricular risks 10 which the Group is exposed,
und how these are monaged

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Megting of the Company will be held
on 27 Ociober 2022 at 11amai

Plexws,

Thomas Wiight Waoy,

Meipark,

Sedgehield,

County Durham,

TS213FD

Full derails of the business 1o be ransacied at the meenng
will be set out in the notice of the Annual General Meeting

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in

respect of the financial statements

The direciors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and Accounis and the financdiul siatements in
accordance wih applicable law and regulanion

Cutnpany luw requires ing direciors 1o prepare fniancial
siaternents for each fimancial year Under thot law the
diectors have prepared the Group and the Company
Ensmcial siatements in accordance with UK-adopied
internunonul accounting standards

Under compuny law, direciors must not approve the
finaincial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
w irug ond foin view of the stute of offairs of the group and
.ompany and of ithe profit or loss of ihe Group (o1 that
fnancial year In preparing the finanaal staternents, the
direciors we required 1o

o salect sitable uccounimng policigs and then aoply them
copsisiently,

o siate whether applicable UK-adopied international
accouning siondards hove been followed, subjaci 1o
any izl deporntures disciosed and eapicnned in the
fiemncin] stafeinents,

o ke judgrments and aucounting estimates that aie
reusananle and prudent. and

s prepute i fnoncaal statemsenis un the gumng conett
basis unless i is mappropriate 10 presume that the
Grouw and Company will continue i busmess

1 e deecion are respunsible for suteguardag e

aasers of the Group ang Company and nence for i3 oy

reusonuble steps fur the prevennon and derechion of frawd

and other irregulariies.

The direciors are ulso responsible for keeping adequaic
accounting records thar are sufficient 1o show and expluin
the Group's and Company's iransacrions and disclose with
reasonuble accuracy at any time the financial posinon of
ihe Group and Company ond enable them to ensure that
the finoncial statements comply wirh the Companies Act
2006

The duectors are responsible for the mainienance
ond integrity of ihe Company’s websita. Legislation in
the United Kingdorm governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial sictements may chffer from
legustation in other jurisdictions.

Directors' confirmations
In the case of each duecior in office ar the dare the
cirectors’ iepori is upproved:

e sofar asthe directoris aware, there is no relevant
cudit informarnon of which the Group's and Company’s
audilors are unaware; and

¢ they have token all the steps ihat they ought 10 have
taken as a direcion in order 10 make thernselves aware
of any relevant audit information and 10 esiablish ihat
the Group's and Company’s audiiors are awaore of thar
information.

Independent auditors

Price~aterhouseCoopers LLP has expressed a willingness
10 conhinue in office us the vuditor and a resolution 10
reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be proposed
at the forithcoming Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board

Michoel Tyerman
Company Secretary
1 August 2022

I\ —
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Independent auditors’ report

to the members of Filtronic plc
Opinion

In our epinion, Filtrenic plc's Group financial statements and Company finoncial statements (the “financial statements™):

e give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as at 31 May 2022 and of the Group's
profit and the Group's ond Company's cash flows for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accerdance with UK-adopted international accounting standards; and -
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financiol statements, included within the Annual Report and Accounts (the “Annual Repert™), which
comprise: the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 May 2022; the consolidated income statement

and consclidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and Company cosh flow statements, and the
consclidated and Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a description of the significant accounting pelicies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audlit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our epinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed entities, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Ovur audit approach
Overview
Audit scope

» Three full scope audit components have been identified including the Cempany. This approcich provided 100%
coverage over the Group's revenue.

o Allfull scope audits were performed by the Group engagement team.

¢ Analvtical review procedures were performed by the Group engagement team over all out of scope compenents.
Key audit matters

e Carrying value of goodwill and non-current assets (Group)

¢ Carrving value of investments (parent)

Materiality

e Overall Group materiality: £170,000 (2021: £155,000) based on 1% of revenue.

o Overall Company materiality: £108,000 (2021: £141,000) based on 1% of rotal assets.

o Performance materiality: £127,000(2021: £116,000) {Group) and £81,000 (2021: £106,000) (Company).

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and ossessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial

statements.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit

of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of materiai misstatement -

(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall

audit strategy; the allecation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engogement team. These matters,

and anv comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the .
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our epinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate apinion on these

matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Filtronic plc continued

Going concern, which was a key audit maiter last year, is no longer included because of the Group's recent performance,
financial forecasts and available cash and financing facilities. Otherwise, the key audit matters below are consistent with

lasi year.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of goodwill and non-current assets
(Group)

Refer to page 46 (Key accounting maiters) and note 16
to the financial statements. We focused on this area due
to the marerial goodwill balance held on the conselidated
balance sheet and the estimates and judgements
requirad fo determine the recoverable amount.

We considered the carrying value of goodwill and
non-current assets by reference to the 'value in use’
meodel prepared by management, which was basedt on
discounted cash flows.

We assessed management’s determination of CGUs
against technical guidance and considered whether

the impairment assessment was performed at the
appropriate level, considering management’s cwn internal
reporting for monitoring of goodwill. We tested the inputs
to the model to Board approved budgets, which included
growth rates and capital expenditure forecasts. We clso
tested the integrity of the model and its mathematical
accuracy.

We determined that the calculations were most sensitive to
growth and discount rate assumptions and calculated the
degree to which these assumpiions would need fo move
before any impairment was required.

We engaged with our valuation experis in order to cissess
the discount rate applied by reference to both the Group's
weighted average cost of capital and a comparator
Group.

We assessed both the short term and long-ferm growth
rafe assumptions against available market data for the
telecommunications infrastructure sector.

We also read the disclosures provided in the financial
statements regarding goodwill impairment testing,

and the associated disclosure of the critical accounting
estimates, and found these to be appropriate.

Based on the procedures we performed we were able to
obtain sufficient audit evidence in respect of the carrying
value of gocdwill and non-current assets.

Carrying value of investments (parent)

Refer to page 46 (Key accounting marters) and note

15 to the financial statements. \We focused on this area
clue to the marerial investments balance held on the
Company’s balance sheet and the judgement required to
determine whether or not there has been an impairment
trigger and, where there is an impairment frigger, the
estimates required to assess the recoverable amount of
invesiments. The investment relates to the filrer related
business linked fo Filtronic Wireless Lid and Filtronic
Wireless Inc, as held by Isotek {(Holdings) Limitedl.

We evaluated whether an impairment trigger was

present in accordance with the accounting framework
and concluded that it was appropricate for management
to prepare an impairment assessment to consider
recoverable amount, being the higher of value in use (VIU)
and fair value less cost to selt (FVLCTS).

We obtained management's impairment assessmeant,
which included a VIU model based on discounted cash
flows and a FVLCTS model based on a multiple of
forecast earnings.

We tested the inputs to the models by assessing forecast
cash flows against recent performance of the filrers
business and comparing to approved budgets. We also
tested the integrity of the medels and their mathematical
accuracy.

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Carrying value of investments (parent) (continued)
We obtained and reviewed industry and analyst
commentary on the future filters-related market agaoinst
which to assess the reasonableness of management's
assumptions, including the multiple used in management’s
FVLCTS model.

We determined that the FVLCTS model derived ¢ higher
recoverable omount and that it was most sensitive to

the assumption on the multiple applied, for which we
engaged with our valuations specialists to support cur
work and conclusions.

We reviewed the disclosures in the Annual Report and
Accounts for compliance with IFRS, particularly in relation
to sensitivity analysis given an impairmant has been
recognised.

Based on the procedures we performed we were able

to obtain sufficient and appropricte audit evidence in
respect of the carrying value of the investments balonce.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able te give an epinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking info account the structure of the Group and the Company., the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which thev aperate.

There are two components which required a full scope oudit of their financial information, due to their size and
contribution to the financial results of the Group. These were the trading entity within the UK, Filtrenic Breacdband Limired,
and in addition the trading entity in the US, Filtronic Wireless Inc.

Filtronic plcis olse subject to a full scope audit of its financial information, due to the separate presentation of these
financial statements within this report. All audit work supporting the Group audit opinion was performed by the PwC UK
engagement feam, with the exception of testing of physical inventory which was performed by a PwC team in the US.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced bv our application of materialitv. We set certain quantitative threshelds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us te determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of cur audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and dlisclosures and in
evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as o whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as o whole as follows:

Financial statements - Group Financial statements - Company
Overall materiality £170,000 (2021: £155,000). £108,000 (2021: £141.000).
How we determined it 1% of revenue A 1% of total ossets
Rationale for benchmark applied Based upon the Group's trading We believe that as a helding
performance in the vear, revenue Companv, the most apprepriate
is consideread to be the most stable benchmark for materiality is total
and appropriate benchmark in assets which is o generally uccepled
appraising financial performance, auditing benchmark.

and is a generally accepted
auditing benchmark.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall Group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across compenents was between £95,000 and £165,000. Certain
compeneants were audited to a local statutory audit materiality that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately fow level the probahility that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in
determining the scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions
and disclosures, for example in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 759 (2021: 75%) of overcill
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Filtronic plc continued

materialiny, amounting to £127,000 (2021: £116,000) for the Group financial statements andd £81,000(2021: £106,000)
for the Company financial statements.

In derermining the performance materiality, we considared o number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount in the middle of our
normal ranga was appropriate.

We agreed with those charged with governance that we would report to them misstatements identified during our ciudit
above £8,500 (Group audit) (2021: £7,780) and £5,400 (Company audit) (2021: £7,085) as well as misstatements below
those amounts thati, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons,

Conclusions relating to going concern

Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue fo adopt the going

concern basis of accounting included:

» Assessing manageament's base case and severe but plausible downside cash flow forecasts, including challenging
management on the key assumprions underpinning the models, which included sales forecasts, margin performance
and working capital assumpiions;

« Censidering the mitigating actions included in the savere but plausible downside scenario to consider whethar they
reflecred actions within ranagement’s control;

¢ Reviewing hisroric tradling results and looking back’ to compare them with management's ariginal budget for the
relevant period, 1o consider management's historical forecasting accuracy;

* Testing the mathematical accuracy and integrity of management's model: and

+ Considering the disclosures provided in the financial statements with respact to going concern for consistency wirh the
modlels that were subject to audit.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions

that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a

going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are autherised for issue.

In audliting the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in

the preparafion of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, bacause not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not & guarantee as to the Group's
and the Company’s ability fo continue s a going concern.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial starements and our
auditors’ repori thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial stafements
does not cover the other infermation and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing
s0, consicler whether the other informartion is matericlly inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent maiterial inconsistency
or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude wheather there is a material misstarement
of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude thai there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. Ve have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been includad.

Based on cur work undertaken in the course of the audit. the Companies Act 2006 requires us also fo report certain
opinions and matters as described below.
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Strategic report and Directors’ report

In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit. the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors’ Report for the vear ended 31 May 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accardance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment chtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic repert and Directors' Repert.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

A< explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
baing satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due te fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are respensible for assessing the Group's and the Componv's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so..

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
mcrterial misstotement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasenakle assurance is o high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (UK} will chways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
consiclered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasenably be expected te influence the econemic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances ef non-compliance with lows and requlations. We design proceduresin line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irreqularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures ore capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on cur understanding of the Group and industrv, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with
faws and regulations related to UK and US tax legislation, employment low and health and safety regulations, and

we consiclered the extent to which non-compliance might have o material effect on the financial statements. We alse
considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act
200&. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements
(including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting journal entries
ta manipulate financial performance, management bios through judgements and assumptions in significant accounting
eshimates and significant one-off or unusual transactions.. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team
included:

* Discussions with management and those charged with governance and review of board minutes, taking into
consideration known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;
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* Evaluation of management's controls designed to prevent and detect fraudulent financiol reporting;

» Testing accounting estimotes that we deemed to present a risk of material misstatement, including cissessing the dat,
methods and assumptions applied bv management in the development of each estimate:

* Identifying and testing journal entries using a risk-based targeting approach for unexpected account combinations; and

¢ Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to suppoerting documentation, where appropriate, to assess
compliance with applicable lows and regulations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely 1o become aware of instancas
of nen-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, the risk of not cletecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve delibercte concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusien.

Our qudit festing might include testing complete populations of certoin transactions and balances, possikly using data
auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting o limited number of items for testing, rather than testing
complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us fo draw a conclusion about the pepulation from which the sample is
selected.
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Filtronic plc continuved

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/cuditorsrespensibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and enly for the Company’'s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We de not, in giving these opinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or te any other person to whom this report is shown or info whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to vou if, in our opinion:

* we have not obrained all the information and explanations we require for our audir; or

¢ adequare accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« cerfain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by low are not made; or
* the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Ve have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

e GFB.c <

Tom Yeates (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaierhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Newcasile upon Tyne

T August 2022
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 May 2022 :

Group
2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Revenue 3 17,052 15,556
Adjusted earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and
exceptional items 2,807 1,773
Amertisation of intangible assets 16 (278) (209}
Impairment of development costs 16 - {45)
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment and right of use assets 17,18 (945) {247)
Adjusted operating profit 1,584 578
Exceptional items 5 391 64
Operating profit 4 1,975 542
Finance costs 11 (194) (437)
Finance income 12 111 -
Profit before taxation 1,892 211
Taxation 13 (424) (151)
Profit for the year 1,468 60
Basic earnings per share 14 0.68p 0.0%p
Diluted earnings per share 14 0.68p 0.03p

The profit for the year is attributakle to the equity shareholders of the Parent Company, Filtronic plc.

The notes on pages 66 to 92 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of

comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 May 2022

Group
2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Profit for the year 1,468 o0
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Items that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss:
Currency franslation movement arising on consoliclation 26 179 {98)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 1,647 {(38)

The total comprehensive income for the year is atiributable to the equity shareholders of the Parent Company, Filironic

ple.
Allincome receanised in the year was generated from continuing operations.
The notes on pages &b to 92 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 May 2022

51

Group
2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 16 1,495 1,716
Right of use assets 17 2,293 2,268
Property, plant and equipment 18 701 1,014
Deferred tax 19 868 1,218
5,357 6,216
Current assets
Inventories 20 2,598 2,190
Trade and other receivables 21 4,479 3,294
Cosh and cash equivalents 4,006 2,906
11,083 8,390
Total assets 16,440 14,606
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 2,993 2,380
Provisions 23 282 397
Deferred income 24 172 184
Financial liabilities 25 - 63
Lease liabilities 26 540 542
. 3,987 3,566
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income 24 130 128
Finoncial liabilities 25 - 76
Leose liabilities 26 1,280 1,478
1,410 1,682
Total liabilities 5,397 5,248
Net assets 11,043 9,358
Equity
Share capital 27 10,796 10,795
Share premium 28 11,060 11,039
Translation reserve 29 471) (650)
Retained earnings 31 (10,342) (11,826)
Total equity 11,043 9,358

The total equity is attributable to the equity shareholders of the Parent Company, Filtronic ple.

Company number 2891064.

The notes on pages 66 to 92 form part of these financial statements. The financial statements on pages 66 to 92 were

approved by the Board of Directors on 1 August 2022 and signed on its behalf by

Richard Gibbs
Chief Executive Offiget
1 August 2022

h<,

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC



62

Consolidated statement of
changes in equity
for the year ended 31 May 2022

Share Share  Translation Retained Total
capital premium resarve earnings equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Bailance at 1 June 2020 10,794 11,000 {552) {11,888) 9,354
Profit for the vear - - - 60 &0
New shares issued 1 39 - 40
Currency translation movament arising on consolidation - - (98) - (98)
Share-basad payments - - - 2 2
Balance at 31 May 2021 10,795 11,039 {650) {11,826) 9,358
Profir for the vear - - - 1,468 1,468
New shares issued 1 27 - - 22
Currency translation movement arising on consolidation - - 179 - 179
Share-based payments - - - 16 16
Balance at 31 May 2022 10,796 11,060 (471) (10,342) 11,043
Company statement of
® [ ]
changes in equity
for the year ended 31 May 2022
Share Share Retained Total
capital premium earnings equiry
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance ar 1 June 2020 10,794 11,000 (10,447 11,353
Loss for the vear - - {728) {728)
New shares issued 1 39 - 40
Share-based payments - - 2 2
Balance ar 31 May 2021 10,795 11,039 (11.167) 10,667
Loss for the year - - (3.434) (3,434)
New shares issued 1 21 - 22
Shara-based payments - - 16 16
Balance at 31 May 2022 10,796 11,060 (14,585) 7,271

The notes on pages é6 o 92 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 May 2022

Group

2022 2021

£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the yaar from continuing operations 1,468 60
Toxation 424 157
Finance income 111) -
Finance costs 194 431
Operating profit 1,975 642
Shore-based payments 16 2
Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment and right of use assets 945 941
Amortisatien of intongible assets 278 209
Impairment of intangible assets ’ - 45
Mavement in inventories (273) 626
Movement in trade and other receivables (1,7100) 1,489
Movement in trade and other payables 550 (1,026)
Movements in provisions ) (115) (712)
Chonge in deferred income (10) (255)
Tox received 19 495
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,285 2,456
Cash flows from investing activities
Copitalisation of development costs - {52)
Acquisition of other intongible assets (57) {69)
Acquisition of plant and equipment (61) 77
Acquisition of right of use assets (132) (106)
Proceeds on sale of assets - 12
Net cash used in from investing activities (250) (392)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (194) (225)
Proceeds from bank loans - 137
Repayment of bank loans (131) {209)
Exarcise of employee share options 22 40
Repcayment of laase liahilities (653) {666)
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings (8) (104)
Net cash used in financing activities (964) (1,033)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 1,071 1.031
Currency exchange movement 29 {153)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 2,906 2,028
Closing cash and cash equivalents 4,006 2,906

The notes on pages 66 to 92 form part of these financial statements.
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Company balance sheet
as at 31 May 2022

Company
2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 15 4,179 6,551
Intangible assets 16 72 58
4,251 6,609
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 21 6,321 7,403
Cash and cash equivalents 259 158
6,580 7,561
Total assets 10,831 14,170
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 3,560 3,503
Total liabilities 3,560 3,503
Net assets 7,27 10,667
Equity
Share copital 27 10,796 10,795
Share premiuvm 28 11,060 11,039
Retoined earnings brought forward 31 (14,585) (11,167)
Total equity 7,271 10,667

The Company made a loss in the year of £3,434,000 (2021:£728,000).
Company number 2891064.

The notes on pages 66 10 92 form part of these financial statements. The financial statements on pages 66 10 92 were

approved by the Board of Directors on 1 August 2022 and signed onits behalf by
Richard Gibbs

Chief Executive Officer
1 August 2022
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Company cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 May 2022

65

Company

2022 2021

£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year (3,434) (728)
Finance costs 1 1
Operating loss (3,433) (727)
Ameartisation of intangible assets 14 19
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 2,372 -
Share-based povments 16 z
Movement in trade and other receivables 1,082 (2,117)
Maovement in trade and other payables 71 2812
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 122 (1mn
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of intangible assets (28) (49)
Net cash used in investing activities (28) (49)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of share options 22 40
Payment of lease liahilities (14) {(13)
Interest paid (1) (1
Net cash generated from financing activities 7 26
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 101 34
Opening cash and cash equivalents 158 192
Closing cash and cash equivalents 259 158

The notes on pages 66 to 92 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 May 2022

1 Accounting policies
Reporting entity
Filironic plcis a public company limited by shares registered in England and Wales, domiciled in the United
Kingdom, and listed on AlM on the London Stock Exchange. The principal activity of the Company is design,
development and manufacture of high performance Radio Frequency ("RF”) tachnology.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 May 2022 have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

In accordance with corporate governance requirements and the statement of directors’ responsibilities, andl

as disclosed in the Directors Report, the directors have undertaken a review of forecasts and the Group's cash
raquiremenis to consider whether it is appropriate that the Group continues to adopt the going concern assumption.
At 37 May 2022, the Group had cash ar bank of £4m and access to undrawn invoice discounting facilities of £3m
and $4m in the UK and US respectively. Details of these facilities can be found in note 37.

As referred 1o in the Strategic report, the Board recognises the uncartain ecenomic and political environment that
the world faces and has reviewed the business cutlook to reflecr this unceriainty. Cash flow forecasts have been
prepared to model various scenarios over a three-vear period based on the Group's financial and trading position,
principal risks and uncertainties and strategic plans. A downside scenario was modelled where programme
curtailmenr and/or deloys may adversely affect forward-looking demand to levels lower than those initially
modelled in the base case scenario.

The scenarios modelled above demonstrate the Group has adequate cash and borrowing capacity for the

next rwelve months. Therefore, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis fo prepare the financial
statement

The financial statements have been prepared under the hisrorical cost convention except for forward foreign
exchange contracts that are accounted for on @ fair value basis.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the Group.

Basis of consolidation and foreign currency translation

The financial statements conscelidate the income statements, balance sheets and cash flow statements of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are oll entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies.
Subsidiaries are consolidared from the date on which control is rransferred o the Group, and are not consolidated
from the date rhoi control ceases. Intragroup transaciions and balances are eliminated on consalidartion.

In publishing the Parent Company financial statements here together with the Group financial statements, the

Company has taken advantage of the exemptions in s408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individuail

income statement and related notes that form part of these approved financial statements.

On consolidation, the financial statements of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than sterling are

translared into sterling as follows:

¢ The ussets and liabilities in thair balance sheets plus any goodwill are transloted af the rate of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet dare; and

¢ Theincome statements and cash flow stafements are translated at the average rate of exchange each month in
the financial year, which approximates the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transactions.

Currency translation movements arising on the franslation of the net investments in foreign subsidiaries are
recognised in the franskation reserve, which is a separate component of equity.

The functional currency of each Group company is the currency of the primary economic environment in which

the Group company operaies. The financial statements are presented in sterling which is the functional and
presenfational currency of the Company.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of each Group company
at the exchange rate ruling af the dare of the mansaction. Monetary assers and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses arising on the seftlement of such transactions and translation of monetary assets
and liahilities are recognised in the income statement.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue :

IFRS 15 establishes principles for determining when and how revenue arising from contracts with customers should
be recognised. Filtronic recognises revenue when it transfers goods or services te a customer with an amount of
considerotion expected to be received in exchange for fulfilling the performance obligation with the customer.

The Group reviews all income streams against the requirements of IFRS 15. Monagement undertakes an assessment
of all contracts and revenue streams acress the businass using the five-step approach specified by IFRS 15:

1) Identify the contract(s) with the customer;

2) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

3) Determine the transaction price;

4} Allecate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
5) Recognise revenue when (or as) a performance chligation is satisfied.

In determining the appropriate method of recognising revenue, management is required to make judgements

as to whether performaonce chligations are satisfied over a peried of time or at @ point in time. For performance
obligations that are sotisfied over a period of time, judgements are made as to whether the output method or

the input method is more appropriate to measure pregress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. if performance obligations are not satisfied over time, the Group recognises revenue af ¢ point in fime.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable for goods and services provided
or performed in the normal course of business net of value added tax or sales tax. The nature of cur revenue is
disclosed below:

Revenue relating to finished goods product

Scles of finished goeds product to customers are recognised when contrel of the product has transferred to the
custoemer and the performance cbligation has been satisfied at a point in time. This is usually when title passes,
aither on shipment or on receipt of goods depending on the delivery terms of the customer contract. The transaction
price is spacified in the customer contract.

Revenue relating to non-recurring engineering (“NRE")

NRE comprises contracts to provide engineering services, such as the design and development of a product,
funded by the customer. The transaction price of the contract is known from inception of the contract. Each contract
is reviewed to identify the number of distinct performance obligations and the transaction price is assigned
accordingly. usually by the value of work performed on an output method basis; outputs are tvpically milestones
within the development such as design reviews, reports and prototype products. Based on the performance of the
obligations in the contract being met, revenue is recognised over time. If relevant, an expected loss on a contract is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Share-based payments

The Group operates equity settled share option schemas, under which share options are granted to certain
employees. The fair value of the share options ¢t the date of gront was calculated using an option pricing medel,
taking into account the terms and conditions applicable to the option grant. The fair value of the number of share
options expected to vest was expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected vesting
period. At each reporting period, these vesting expectations were revised as appropriate. A credit is macdle to equity
equal fo the share-based payment charge in the financial year.

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are those significant items which are separotely disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence to
enable a full understanding of the financial results.

Investments in subsidiaries _ . o . o -
Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s financial statements at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Investments in subsidiaries are tested for impairmant when there is on indication of impairment.

Goodwill

Goeodwill thot arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is includled in intangible assets is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill, which is allocated te cash-generating units, is tested for impairment
at least annually and when there is an indication of impairment. The goodwill carrying value is written down to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of ¢ subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of thé profit or loss .
on disposal. :

— AW
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2022

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets
Allresearch costs are expensed as incurred.

Development costs chargeable to the customer are recognised as an expense in the same period as the associated
cusromear revenue.

Development costs incurred on projects requiring product qualitication rests 1o satisfv custemer specifications
are generclly expensed as incurred, reflecting the technical risks associated with meeting the resultant product
qualification rest.
Development costs incurrad on projects are capitalised where:

1) The technical feasibility can be tested against relevant milestones,

2) The probable revenua stream foreseen over the life of the resulting product can support the development, and
3) Sufficient resources are available to complete the development.

These capitalised costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected life of the associated preduct.

Once a new product is in volume production, further development costs are expensed as they arise as they are
incurred in response to continual customer demand to enhance the product functionality or to reduce product cost.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquirad by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured atf Cost less.
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impeirment losses.

Amortisation is calculared over the cost of the asset less its residual value.

Amortisation is recognised in the income statement on « straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use. since this most closely reflects
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

¢ Sofrware licence 410 5years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed af each financial vear end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Impairment charges

The carrving amounts of the Group’'s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed ar each reporting date fo determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assats that have indafinite
useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same tima.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its foir value less
coststo sell. In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the assert. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped fegether
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent

of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of asserts {the “cash-generating unit, or CGU"). For the purpese of
goodwillimpairment resting, CGUs o which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which
impairment is rested reflects the lowest level af which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting puriposes.

Animpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognisad in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in respact of
CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of anv goodwill allocated ro the units, and then fo reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognisad in prior pariods are assessed

at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreasad or no longer exists. An impairmant loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment foss
is reversed only o the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been derermined, ner of depreciation or amertisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Right of use assets and lease liabilities

The Group assesses whether a contract is alease at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right of use
asset and o corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets which includes the Group's leased office equipment such as
printers. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payment as an operating expense on & straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

The lease is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are net paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or the incremental borrowing rate. This is the rate when
itis not possible to determine the interest rate in the lease and represents what we would have to pay for a loan of
a similar item and term of repavment. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease
and decreased by pavments made. In the event of a change in future lease payments, the lease liability will be
remeasurad and the difference recognised in the right of use asset.

The Group remeasures the lease liability and makes a corresponding adjustment to the right of use asset whenever
there has been a lease payment change, the lease contract is modified or any other significant event.

The right of use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently af cost less accumulated depreciation and
impaoirment losses. The right of use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the period of the lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. Where there is reascnable certainty the Group will purchase the osset at the end of the
lease, the asset is depreciated over the useful fife. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.
Where property leases contain o break option the value of the lease liabilitv and right of use asset recognised on
the balance sheet requires judgement to determine the lease term. The Group recognises the full term of the lease,
ignoring the break option, as invariably the option will not be exercised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and less anv accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

e Fixtures ond fittings 2tc 10vyears
e Plantand equipment  3to 10 years
e Computer hardware 2to 4 years

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment when there is an indication of impairment. if impaired. the
carrying volues of the assets are written down to their recoverable amounts.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or scrappage of an asset is determined os the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and is recognised in income.

Inventories

Inventeries are stoted at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the weighted average cost of
materials and components. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and
sale,

Trade and other receivables -

Trade and other receivables are amcunts due from customers for goods and services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Thev are initicllv recorded at the transaction price and thereafter meagsured at omortised cost
using the effective interest method, less an allowance for expected credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the cash flow statement and statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash at bank ond short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Defined contribution pension schemes
Defined contribution pension schemes are operated for employees. Centributions are recognised as an expensain
the income statement as incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2022

1 Accounting policies (confinued)

Financial liabilities
Financial fiabilities comprise interest bearing borrowings and are inifially recognised ar fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost with any ner gains or losses, including any interest expense, recognised in profit or loss.

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the faxable income or loss for the year, using rares enacrad
or substantivelv enacted at the reporting date, and any adjusiment 1o tax payable in respact of previous years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxis the tax expacted to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method.
Deferrediax liabilities are generclly recognised for all taxable remporary differences and deferred rax assets are
recognised fo the exient thar it is probable that raxable profits will be available against which deduciible terporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognisad if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in @ business combination) of orher assets
and liabilifies in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered. -

Deferrec taxis calculated at the tax rates that are expacted to apply in the period when the licbility is sertled or the
asser is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement

of financial position date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates fo
irems chargead or credired in other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other
comprehensive income. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set
off current tax assets against current fax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Grants
Capital-based grants, when present, are included within deferred income in the balance sheer and cradited to the
profit and loss account over the estimated useful economic lives of the assets to which they relate.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in the profit or loss account as other
opearating income on a systemaric basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised.

Warrranty provision

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when there is o present legal or constructive obligation as a resuli of
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimared. A warranty provision is recegnised when products are sold basad on histerical warranty
data. The level of warranty provision required is reviewed on a product-by-product basis and adjusted accordingly
in light of actual experience.

Dilapidations and onerous leases
A provision for dilapidations and onerous leases is recognised in the balance sheet on a lease-by-lease basis and is
based on the Group's best estimates of the required cost to settle the relevant obligations.

Share capital

Ordinary sharesissued are classified as share capital in equity.

Dividends

Interim dividlends are recognised in equity in the financial year they are paid. Final dividends are recognised in
equity in the financial year they are approved by shareholders.

Forward currency contracts

Forward currency contracts are held at fair value. The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised
immediarely in the consolidated income statement.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Accounting developments and new standards

Atthe date of authorisation of these financial statements, new and revised standards issued but not yet effective
are set out below. It is anticipated the odoption of these standards and interpretations in future periods will have no
material impact on the financial statements of the Group. These have not been adopted in the Group's accounting
policies.

The following amendments are effective for the financiol year beginning 1 June 2022:

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37);

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16);

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (Amendmentsto IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41Y;
References to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3);

Disclosure of Accounting Pelicies (Amendmentsto IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2);

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8); and

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments 10 1AS 12);

There are no naw standards that have become effective in the year that affect the Group.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2022

2 Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates and judgements, that affect
the application of accounting palicies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
agccounting esiimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and
orher factors, includling expectations and best estimates of the future, that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from the expecied results.

The estimates and judgements that have a significant effect on the financial statements are considerad below.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are tested for impairment by reference to their recoverable amount relative to their
carrying value. In accordance with IAS 36, recoverable amount is determined as the higher of value in use ("VIU?),
determined based on the expacted cash genearated by the CGU to which the investment relates and fair value less
costs to sell "FVLCTS"). Both models are subject to unceriainties surrounding the EBITDA and cash flow forecasts
being used.

Goodwill and other intangibles—impairment

Goodwill and other infangibles are tested for impairment by reference to the expected cash generated by the cash
generating unit {'CGU"} or group of CGUs. This is deemed to be the best approximation of value, but is subject to
the same uncertainties as the cash flow forecast being used. The forecasts comprise forecasts of revenue, material
costs and overhead costs based on current and anticipated market conditions that have been considered and
approved by the Board. Whilst the Group is able to manage most of its costs, significant elements of the revenue
forecasts are inherently linked to global demand where uncertainty about both the timing and level of growth
ramains which is a key sensifivity.

The sensitivity analysis in respect of the recoverable amount of goodwill is presented in note 16.

Capitalisation of development costs

Intangible assets inclucle development cost assets which have been reviewed for impairment as at the reporting
date.

The recoverable amount of each technology development project has bean determined based on value in use
calculations, using cash flow projections in line with the expected useful economic life of each asset. The value in use
calculations are based on management approved risk-adjusted cash flow forecasts for each project cnd have been
discounted using a discount rate of 12%.

The key assumptions used in the cash flow projections relate to revenue and gross profit margin for ecich technoleav
and are based eon assumptions about expected customer demcaind which is inherently linked to the glebal demand
for the technology under developmeant where the timing and level of demand is subject to uncertainty. The Group
has carried out a sensitivity analysis on the impairment tests of each of these projects, using various reasonably
possible scenarios and concluded there to be no impairment risk.

Deferred tax asset

The recognition of deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carried forward depends on forecasts of the future
taxable profits of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group has assessed the recoverability of its deferred

tax assats by reference to Board approved budgers and cash flow forecasts. These forecasts require the use of
estimates and judgements about the future performance of the Company and its subsidiaries using the current
order book, forecasts and market knowledge.

Deferred tax assets have been recognised within Filironic Broadband Limited in the UK and Filironic Wireless Inc.

in the USA so a change fo ferecast customer demand in either of these subsidiaries would impact on the amount of
cleferred tax asset recognised. A 10% forecast redluction in the profitability of these subsidiaries would see deferrad
tax asset recognition reduce by an additional £125,000.
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3 Segmental analysis
Operating segments
IFRS 8 requires consideration of the identity of the chief operating decision maker (CODM within the Group. In line
with the Group's internal reporting fromework and management structure, the key strategic and operoting decisions
are made by the Chief Executive Officer, who reviews internal monthly management reports, budget and forecast
information as part of this. Accordingly, the Chief Executive Officer is deamed fo be the CODM.
The CODM has identified one operating segment within the Group as defined under IFRS 8. In turn, thisis the
only reportable segment of the Group as the entities in the Group have similar products and services, production
procasses and ecenomic characteristics. Therefore, there is no allocation of operating expenses, profit measures or
assets and liabilities to specific commercial markets.
Accordingly, the CODM assesses the performance of the operating segment on financial information which is
measured and presented in a manner consistent with those in the financial statements by reference to Group results
against budget.
The Group profit measures are adjusted operating profit ond adjusted EBITDA, both disclosed on the face of
the consolidated income statement. No differences exist between the basis of preparation of the performance
measures used by management and the figures in the Greup financial statements.

The Group has three customers representing individually over 10% of revenue each and in aggregate 81% of
revenue. This is split as follows:

e Customer A - 36% (20217 35%)

» Customer B -23% (2021: 33%)

e Customer C-22%(2021:19%)

Geographical information

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers and the nature of revenue recognised. Segment assets are based on the gecgraphical
location of the assets.

2022 20

Revenue by destination £000 £000
United Kingdom 7,489 4,693
Europe 3,421 4,178
Americas 5,313 4197
Rest of the world 829 2,488
17,052 15556

2022 2021

Split of non-current assets by location £000 £000
United Kinadom 5,109 5,293
Americas 248 Q23

5,357 6,216

Non-current assets relate to property, plant and equipment, right of use assets, goodwill and other intangible assets
and deferred tax.
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Notes to the financial statements continved
for the year ended 31 May 2022

4

Operating profit
2022 2021
£000 £000
Revenue from goods and services 16,580 14,375
Revenue from non-recurring engineering {"NRE") projects 472 1,181
Revenue 17,052 15,556
Material cost of goods sold A 5645 5462
Weiges and salaries 5532 5576
Social security costs 577 543
Pension costs 291 280
Share-based payments 16 2
Furlough payments received - (83)
Staff costs 6,416 6,318
Impairment of development costs - 45
Amortisation 278 209
Depreciaiion 945 941
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 1,223 1,195
Other operating income (329)  (345)
Non-salary relared exceptional items (391) {64)
Orther expenses 2,513 2,348
Total operating costs 9,432 9452
Operating profit 1,975 642

Davelopment costs of £nil wera capitalisad in the year (2021: £52,000).

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are costs that are separately disclosed due ro their material and non-recurring nature in order to
reflect managament’s view of the underlying business.
’

Operating costs are siated after crediting exceptional items as follows:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Antennd warrainty ' (339) -
Historic claim (52) (é4)

(391) (&64)

The antenna warranty itam relates to the Group's leaacy Telecoms Antenna Operation previously costed through
discontinued operations. The warranty period has now lapsed, and the provision was relecised unused.

A provision relating fo an historic claim was released unused and credited to the income starement as it related fo
the Telecoms Antenna Operation, sold in January 2020,
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6 Operatingitems
P 9 2022 2021

£000 £000
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation 945 G471
Resecrch and development costs in the income statement excluding amortisation 1,937 1,663
Amartisation of development costs (R&D) 259 182
Amartisction of other infangible assets 19 27
Foreign exchonge (gain)/loss (147) 205
7  Auditor's remuneration
The Company’s auditor is PricewaterhouseCcopers LLP. The auditer’s remuneration was as follows:
2022 2021
£000 £000
Company auditor:
Audit of the Group and Company financial statements 35 28
Componv auditor and their associates:
Audit of subsidiaries’ financial statements pursuant te legistation 75 75
Additional fees relating to prior year audit - 15
Other services relating to taxation - 1
110 119
8 Employees
The average number of employees comprised:
- 2022 2021
Number Number
Manufacturing 78 86
Research and development 26 24
Sales 5 5
Administration 15 i5
124 130
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2022

9 Compensation of directors

Details of the remuneration, pension entitlements and share options of the individual directors ¢re set out in the
Directors remuneration report on pages 47 1o 50. The compensation of the directors was:

2022 2021

£000 £000

Salary or fees 453 429
Bonus 125 94
Benefits 22 23
Long rerm incentives 12 7
Total remuneration excluding pension contributions 612 553
Pension contributions 11 11
623 564

The Directors remuneration is paid through the Company.

The schadule 5 disclosure requirements are included in the Directors’ remuneration report in the table entitled ‘Total
single figure of remuneration for directors - audited’ and the table entitled Total single figure of pension benefirs for
directors - audited. The elements that are audited are identified as such in that report.

10 Related party transactions

Identity of related parties
The Group has arelated partv relationship with its subsidiaries and with its directors.

Transactions with subsidiaries

The main fransactions berween the Company and its subsidiaries are management administration recharges to its
subsidiaries of £931,000(2021: £535,000) and a royalty charge of 1% of filters product sales to Filtronic Wireless
Limired of £38,000 (2021: £30,000). These infercompany fransactions are eliminated on consolidation.

The Company also acts as ¢ central service to distribute money around the Group to ensure subsidiarias are
adequartely funded fo meer abligations and o invest funds from subsidiaries where surplus cash exists. The total
figures for these fransactions along with the management and royalry charge can be seen in notes 21 and 22
through the movement in the Company's intercompciny receivables and payables.

The amount outstanding from subsidiary undertakings to the Company at 31 May 2022 totalled £6.3m (2021:

£7 4m). Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings by the Company at 31 May 2022 iotalled £2.8m (20217: £2.8m)

Transactions with key management personnel
Kev mancgement personnel are considered fo be the Executive Directors of the Company. The remuneration given
io these individuals is disclosed in the Directors remuneration report.

11 Finance costs

2022 2021

£000 £000

Interast expense on loans for plant and equipment -. 5
Interest expense for lease arrangements 127 136
Minimum service costs and interest charges on invoice discounting facilities 67 82
Revaluation of foreign currency denominated intercornpany balance - 207
194 437
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12 Finance income

2022 2021

£000 £000
Revaluation of foreign currency denominated intercompany balance 111 -

117 -
13 Taxation

2022 2021
Recognised in the income statement £000 £000
Current tax credit '
Qverseas taxation in the financial year - {15)
Adjustment in respect of prior year — R&D tox credit (24) (3771)
Total current tax credit (24) (386)
Deferred tox charge/(credit)
Change of tax rate (109) - :
Origination and reversol of temperary differences * 557 537
Total deferred tax charge 448 537
Income tox charge 424 151
The reconciliation of the effective tax rate is as follows:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Profit before taxation 1,892 211
Profit before taxation multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK (19%6) (2021:199%) 359 40
Disallowable items 155 213
Deferred fax asset not recognised 194 213
Enhanced R&D tax credit (270) (176)
Adjustment in respect of prior year R&D tax credit (24) 37D
Foreign tax not at UK rate 15 (13)
Deracognition of deferred tax asset 104 247
Rate change of deferred tax (109) -
Taxation 424 151 :

The main rate of UK corperation tax for the financial year wos 1996 whilst the US federal corporarte tax rate is 21%.
The deferred tax assets recognised in the year have been calculated at the rates expected to be in existence in the
pericd of reversal.

On 3 Marrch 2021, in the Budget, the UK Government anncunced that the corporation tax rate will increasc to

258 for companies with profits above £250,000 with effect from 1 April 2023, as well as announcing several other
changes to allowances and treatment of losses. These changes were enacted on 24 May 2021. -
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2022

14 Earnings per share Total
Group
2022 2021
£000 £000
Profit for the year 1,468 60
‘000 ‘000
Basic weighted average number of shares 214,726 213,397
Dilution effacr of share options 868 897
Diluted weighted average number of shares 215,594 214,294
Basic earnings per share 0.68p 0.03p
Diluted earnings per share 0.68p 0.03p

15 Investments in subsidiaries

Company
investmentsin
subsidiaries
£000
Cost

At 1 June 2020, 31 May 2021 and 31 May 2022 21,110

Impairment
At 1 June 202Qand 1 June 2021 {14,559)
fmpairment in the year {2.372)
At 31 May 2022 (16,931)
Carrying amount at 31 May 2021 6,551
Carrying amount at 31 May 2022 4,179

The investments in subsidiarias are assessed annually o determine if there is any indication that any of the
investrnents might be impaired. The assessment of the carrying amount is derived from the higher of the value in use
and the fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from

o

the continuing use of the cash generating unit {"CGU") to which the investment relates whilst the fair value less costs
io sellis the amount that a market participant would pay for the asset or CGU, less the costs of sale.

The carrying amount was calculated using the fair value less costs to sell model which refurned @ higher carrying
value based on the following key assumptions:

» The profits generated within the CGU based on past experience and actual operating results;

« Anassessment of recent market transactions corroborated by valuation multiples and quoted shave prices for
publicly traded companies.; and

e Appropriate costs that may be included in the ‘costs to sell’ such as legal and professional fees.

Based on the testing, an impairment charge was recognised in the year. The key sensitivity in the model is the

valuation multiple utilised fo compute the fair value less costs o sell. Had the valuation multiple changed by -/+ 1
then there would have been a further impairment charge or write back of £1,029,000.
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15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries are related parties.
The subsidiaries at 31 May 2022, which were owned bv Filtrenic ple, were os follows:

Country of Description of Proportion
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity held held Activity
Filtronic Broadband Limited! UK 1p ordinary shares 100% Design and manufacture
of microwave products for
telecommunication svstems
Filtronic Holdings UK Limited! UK £1 ordinary shares 100% Holding Company
Isotek (Holdings) Limited! UK Tpordinary shares  100% Holding Companv

Owned by Isotek (Holdings) Limited:

Filtronic Wireless Limited! UK Tp ordinary shares  100% Design and manufacture of
filters ond related products for
telecommunication systerns

Filtronic Wireless Inc.? USA US$1 ordinary shares 100% Design and manufacture of
filters and related products fer
telecommunication systems

Owned by Filtronic Wireless Limited:

Isotek Hong Kong Heldings  Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary shares 100% Holding Company
Limited?

Owned by Isotek Hong Kong Holdings Limited:

Isotek Telecommunications  China US$350,000 100% Design and manufacture
paid in share capital of filters and related preducts

Suzhou Limited? red
for telecommunication systems

'Plexus 1, NETPark, Thomas Wright Way, Sedgefield, County Durham TS21 3FD, United Kingdom
2700 Marvel Road, Salisbury, Maryland, 21801, USA

3RM 1501, C1 Grand Millennium Plaza (lower block), 181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

* Suzhou Industrial Park, 199 Sinegang Street, Oriental Gote Building 2, Reom 2201, Seat A172
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2022

16 Goodwill and other intangible assets

F Group —| Company

Otherintangibles Software  Development Software

Goodwill (core technology) costs costs Total costs-

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

~ Cost
At 1 June 2020 974 10,884 573 1,028 13,459 Q7
Addlitions - - 69 52 121 49
Disposals - - (305) (65) (370) (19
Exchange differences - - (14) - (14) -
At 31 May 2021 974 10.884 323 1,015 13,196 127
Additions - - 57 - 57 28
At 31 May 2022 974 10,884 380 1,015 13,253 155
Amortisation

At 1 June 2020 - 10,884 537 19 11,612 6%
Provided in the year - - 27 182 209 10
Disposals - - (305) {65) {370) a9
Impairment of intangible assets - - - 45 45 -
Exchange differences - - (16) - (16) -
At 31 May 2021 - 10,884 243 353 11,480 69
Provided in the year - - 19 259 278 14
At 31 May 2022 - 10,884 262 612 11,758 83
Carrying amountar31 May 2021 974 - 80 662 1,716 58
Carrying amount at 31 May 2022 974 - 118 403 1,495 72

Goodwill and other infangibles relate to the acquisition of Isotek (Holdings) Limited. Goodwill is allocated ro
the CGUs that were expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and which represents the lowesr
level within the Group at which the geodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. The Group tests
goodwill annually for impairment or mere frequently if there are indications that goodwill may be impaired.
The carrying value of intangible assets and goodwill has been assessed for impairment by reference to its value

in use. Value in use was determinad by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the
CGUs. The calculation of the value in use was based on the following key assumptions:

-

* Budgets incorporating pre-tax cash flows have been preparad to 31 May 2023 based on past experience, actual
cperating results, known future cash flows and estimates of future cash flows;

¢ Cash flows for a further four years have been prepared based on the Company s fong range plan rogether with
costinflation and additional overhead assumptions. A perpetuity factor has been applied based on the year o
31 May 2027, Along-term growth factror of nil was applied o the perpetuity cash flows; and

» The Group's pre-tax discount rate of 12% (2021:12%) was applied in defermining the recoverable amount of the
unif, being the estimated weighted average cost of capital for the CGUs.

Basad on the testing above the directors do not consider any of the remaining goodwill or intangible assets to be

impaired, even allowing for a reasonable degree of sensitivity to the underlying assumptions, including the discount

rate. .
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17 Right of use assets

Property Plant and
leases equipment Total
£000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 June 2020 1,333 1,727 3,060
Additions 330 233 563
Disposcls - {533) {533)
Exchange differences (37) (5) {40)
At 371 May 2021 1,626 1,422 3,048
Additions 66 512 578
Exchange differences 34 4 38
At 31 May 2022 1,726 1,938 3,664
Depreciation
At 1 June 2020 226 149 375
Provided in the year 285 393 678
Disposals - {256) (256)
Exchange differences (16) M an
At 31 May 2021 495 285 780
Provided in the year 331 232 563
Exchange differances 27 1 28
At 31 May 2022 853 518 1,371
Carrying amount ot 31 May 2021 1,131 1,137 2,26
Carrying amount at 31 May 2022 873 1,420 2,293

The Group's lease commitments are made up of property leases and plant and equipment. Plant and equipment
classified as a right of use asset is financed under asset finance agreements which usually require the Group to
make a deposit ogainst the machinery of 20%.

The Group leases office premises at its sites in Sedgefield and Yeadon in the UK, Salisbury, Maryland in the USA
and a virtual office space in Suzheu, China. Leases remaining are up to seven yeors.

In addition to the depreciation charges shown in the toble obove, the consolidated income statement includes the
following ameunts relating to leases:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Interest expense (included in finance cost) 127 136
Expense reloting to viable lease payments not included in lease
liabilities {included in operating costs) 7 14
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2022

18 Property, plant and equipment

H Group ! Company
Fixtures Plantand Computer Plant and
and fittings equipment hardware Total equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 June 2020 220 6,458 270 6,948 -
Additions 98 79 - 177 -
Dispasals (22) (2,716) (99) {2.837) -
Exchange differences (4) (55) m {60) -
At 31 May 2021 292 3,766 170 4,228 -
Additions . 3 51 7 61 -
Disposails - (4471) - {(441) -
Exchange differances 1 42 1 44 -
At 31 May 2022 296 3,418 178 3,892 -
Depreciation
At 1 June 2020 149 5,478 197 5,824 -
Depreciation 25 218 20 263 -
Disposails (21) (2,704) (99)  {2.829) -
Exchange differences (3) (46) - {49) ‘ -
At 31 May 2021 150 2,946 118 3,214 -
Depreciation 31 337 14 382 -
Disposals - (447) - {441) -
Exchange differences 1 35 - 36 R
At 31 May 2022 182 2,877 132 3,191 -
Carrying amount at 31 May 2021 142 820 52 1,014 -
Carrying amount at 31 May 2022 114 541 46 701 -
19 Deferred tax G
roup
2022 2021
£000 £000
Deferred tax assets
Opening balance 1,218 1,368
{Raversal)/origination of tax losses (585) 74
Utilisation of fax losses (309) {290)
Origination/{reversal) of capital cllowances 342 {322) -
Exchange differences 93 {112)
Change of rax rate 109 -
868 1,218

Deferred tax assefs within the UK and the USA have been recognised as the directors consider that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are defermined based on businass
plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group and the reversal of temporary differences.

Deferrad rax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probakble
rhat the related tax benefit will be realised; such deductions are reversed when the probability of future raxable
profits improves.
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Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Deferred tax assets which have been recognised: £000 £000 £000 £000
Depreciation in advance of capital allowances 415 73 - -
Tax losses carried forward 453 1,145 - .
868 1,218 - -

The deferred tax assets have not been recognised where the directors consider that it is unlikely that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. There is no expiry date for these unrecognised deferred tax
assets which are reassessed at each reporting date. These deferred tax assets are presented below:

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Deferred tax assets which have not been recognised: £000 £000 £000 £000
Depreciation in advance of capital allowances 1,397 1,732 510 455
Tax losses carried forward 15,775 11,724 13,917 9,772
Share options deferment 80 80 80 80
17,252 13536 14,507 13,307

20 Inventories

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 20M

£000 £000 £000 £QO0

Raw materials 3,548 3126 - -
Work in progress . 531 480 - -
Finished goods 264 133 - -
4,343 3739 - -

Inventory provision (1,745)  (1,549) - -
Inventories (net of provision) 2,598 2,190 - -

Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods and work in progress recognised in cost of sales in the
year amounted to £5,083,000(2021: £5,129,000).

The amount charged to the income statement in the year in respect of write-downs of inventeries is £196,000
{2027: £162,000). The amount credited to the income statement in the year in respect of reversals of write-downs of
inventories is £nil {(2021; £56,000).

21 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2022 12021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Irade receivables
Group receivables

3,512 2,737 - -

- 6,266 7,372

Other receivables and prepayments 967 557 55 31
4,479 3,294 6,321 7,403

There are no provisions for bad debt. The Group receivables in the Company were reviewed in the vear for expected

creditlosses in accordance with IFRS 9.

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free and pavable on demand.
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 May 2022

22 Trade and other payables

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade payables 1,825 1,299 78 70
Group payables - - 2,784 2,784
Other payables and accruals 1,168 1,081 698 649
2,993 2,380 3,560 3,503

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.

23 Provisions
Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

Warranty provision £000 £0QO £000 £000
Opening balance 342 1,053 - -
Used during the year (24) (526) - -
Released unused during the year (347) (116) - -
Charge for the year 117 11 - -
Exchange ditferences 1 (80) - -

135 342 - -

The provision for warranty relates to the unifs sold during the last rwo financial years. The provision is based on

astimates made from historical warranty data.

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Dilapidation provision £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 55 57 - -
Charge for the year 91 - - -
Exchange differences 1 (2) - -
147 55 - B

The Group leases physical facilifies at three sites in the UK and USA with each of these leases requiring the site to
be restored to its eriginal condition. The dilapidation provision reflects management’s best estimates and ability
o measure the likelv costs that may be incurred restoring rhe building to its eriginal stafe. The charge for the year
is expected to be utilised in the next financial year as it relates ta our site in Yeadon where we are reducing our

footprint by reclucing the amount of space we use.

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Total provision - £000 £000 £000 £000
Warranty provision 135 342 - -
Dilapidation provision 147 55 - -
282 397 - -
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24 Deferredincome

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000
Contract liabilities 134 146 - -
Capital grant 38 38 - -
Total current deferred income 172 184 - -
Contract liabilities 111 73 - -
Capital grant 19 55 - -
Total non-current deferred income 130 128 - -
Total deferred income 302 312 - -

Contract liabilities are invoices raised in advance of NRE werk completed for customers that will be recognised as

income once the performance obligation of the contract has been met. The majority of NRE contracts are invoiced
with @ proportion of the contract value upfront which is recognised as revenue, over time, across the life of contract
at each milestone based on the percentage of the overall contract value achieved of that performance ebligation.

A capital grant was secured in the prior year to assist with the purchase of plant and machinery to support the
production ramp of 5G XHaul products. The grant is being amortised over a period of four years with a remaining
life of 1.5 years.

25 Financial liabilities

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing bank loans and
borrowings which are measured at amortised cost.

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank locins—current - 55 - R
Obligartions under finance agreements—current - 8 - -
Total current financial liabilities - 63 - -
Bank loans—nen-current - 76 - -
Total non-current financial liabilities - 76 - -
Total financial liabilities - 139 - -

Terms and debt repayment schedule - Group Carrying  Carrying

Neminal amount amount

interest Date of 2022 2021

Currency rate maturity £000 £000

Bank loan usD 1.0% 10 February 2026 - 131
Total bank loans - 131
Finance agreements GRP 4.1% 37 Mav 2021 - 8
- 130

The bank loan with a maturity date of 10 February 2026 for $186,000 (£131,000) was o US Government loan

as part of the Paycheck Protection Programme ("PPP") to secure jobs in the USA during the Covid-19 pandemic.
The Company successfully applied to have the loan forgiven which was settled by the US Government in the vear,
recognised in Other Operating Income.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2022

25 Financial liabilities (continued)

Bank Finance

loans  agreements Total
Debt reconciliation - Group £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 June 2020 209 112 321
Proceeds from bank loans 131 - 131
Repayment of borrowings (17) (104) (121
Repayment of PPP bank loan {192) - e
Balance at 31 May 2021 131 8 139
Repayment of borrowings {8) {8)

N~
]

Repayment of PPP bank loan (131 (131)
Balance at 31 May 2022 - - -

L]

Other banking facilities

Ar 371 May 2022, the Group had an undrawn (2021: undrawn) invoice discount facility with Barclays Bank plc
("Barclays Bank”) of £3.0m which enables it fo borrow up to 70% of the debtor book in the UK. In addition to the
faciliry with Barclays Bank, the Group has a facility with Wells Fargo Bank of $4.0m enabling it fo borrow up 1o 85%
of the US debtor book which was undrawn (2027: undrawn).

26 Lease liabilities

Group
2022 2021
£000 £000
Opening lease liability 2,020 2,529
New leases entered inte during the year 445 457
Payments made during the year (653) (656)
Disposal of lease - {(279)
Exchange differences 8 zn

1,820 2,020

2022 2021

£000 £000
Lease liability pavable in lessthan a year 540 542
Current lease liabilities 540 542
Lease liability payable in one to five years 1,017 1.070
Lease liability payable in more than five years 263 408
Non-current lease liabilities 1,280 1,478
Total lease liabilities 1,820 2,020
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27 Share capital

Group and Company
ordinary shares of 0.1p each
Number

‘000 £000

At 1 June 2020 213,698 10,794
Exercise of share options 717 1
At 31 May 2021 214,415 10,795
Exercise of share options 383 1
At 31 May 2022 214,798 10,796

All shares are allotted, called up and fully paid. Holders of the ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends when
declared, and are entitled to cne vote per share at meetings of the Company.

28 Share premium

Group and

Company

£000

At 1 June 2020 11,000

Exercise of share options 39

At 31 May 2021 11,039

Exercise of share options 21

At 31 May 2022 11,060
29 Translationreserve

Group

£000

At 1 June 2020 (552)

Currency translation movement arising on consolidation (98)

At 31 May 2021 (650)

Currency translation movement arising on consolidation 179

At 31 May 2022 (471)

The translation reserve comprises foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign cperations.

30 Dividends

The directors are not proposing to pay a dividend for the year ended 31 May 2022 (2021: £nil).

31 Retained earnings Group  Company

£000 £000
At 1 June 2020 (11,888) (10,441)
Profit/(loss) for the year . 60 {728)
Share-based payments : 2 2
At 31 May 2021 (11,826) (11,167)
Profit/(Joss) for the year ‘ 1,468 (3,434)
Share-based payments : 16 16
At 31 May 2022 - (10,342) (14,585)

VVWW—
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Notes to the financial statements continued

32

for the year ended 31 May 2022

Share options

Sharesave plans

Seven sharesave plans have been offered to employees over the years, at the date of this report. The first six of the
schemes offerad to employees have now closed. Under these plans employees who join the plan can save up to
£500 per month for three years. The members of the plans are granted a number of share options basaed on the
amount they would save over the three years. At the end of the three years, the members have a six-month period in
which they can exercise the share options. The scheme has an exercise price calculated by reference to the average
of the middle market closing price of the shares on AlM for the dealing day immediately prior to the plan offer date.

Sharesave Plan—Scheme 7

Weighted average  Number of
exercise price 2022 options 2022
Grantect during the vear 6.67p 2,059,029
Cancelled during the vear 5.67p (160,836)
Outstanding at the end of the year 6.67p 1,898,193
Exercisable at the end of the year 8.67p -

Management incentive plans

The options granted in the year have spacific performance targets afrached fo them. The exercise price for an
option was the middie market closing price of Filironic plc's ordlinary shares as derived from AlM on the dealing day
prior fo issue.

The fellowing options under this scheme were outstanding af 31 May 2022

Ordinary shares of 0.1p Earliest date Latest date
2022 2021 Date granted exercisable exercisable Exercise price
1,250,000 1,633,334 01/03/2016 01/03/2017 28/02/2026 5.4p
300,000 300,000 11/04/2016 11/04/2017 10/04/2026 8.5p
200,000 200,000 28/03/2018 28/03/2019 27/03/2028 9.0p
200,000 200,000 11/02/2020 11/02/2021 11/02/2030 9.3p
750,000 750, 000 24/09/2020 24/09/2023 24/0%9/2030 8.0p
2,543574 - 24/06/2022 24/06/2025 24/06/2032 .p

5,243,574 3,083,334

The weighted average price of the outstanding options under this scheme at 31 May 2022 was 2p (2021: 6.80p).

Numberof share  Number of share

options 2022 options 2021

Outstanding af the beginning of the vear 3,083,334 3,839,584
Granted during the year 3,270,828 750,000
Cancelled during the year (727,255) {789,583)
Exercisad cluring the year (383,333) {716,667)
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,243,574 3,083,334
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,750,000 2.133,334
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33 Share-based payments Group and
Company

2022 2021

£000 £000

Share options expense 16 2

16 2

The share options expense is the fair value of the share options at the date of grant spread over the expected
vesting period of the share options. The fair value of the shore options at the date of grant was measured using the

Black=Scheles model.

The inputs to the Black-Scholes model and the weighted average fair volue of the share options granted during the

year were os follows:

Group and

Company
2022 2021
Number of share options granted 5,329,857 750,000
Weighted average share price 9.40p 8.00p
Expected volatility 50% 50%

Expected life

3.0years 3.Cyears

Risk-free interest rate 0.8% 0.8%
Weighted average fair value 2.5p 2.2p
Expected volatility is the estimate of the volatility of the share price over the expected life of the share options.
34 Pension costs
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Defined contribution schemes 291 280 43 41
35 Capital expenditure commitments
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date
but not provided in the financial statements 34 147 - -
36 Analysis of net cash/(debt
4 / ) 1June Cash  Other 31 May
2021 flow changes 2022
£000  £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 2,906  1,0Mm 29 4,006
Bank loans ) {131 131 - -
Lease liabilities - plant and machinery (835) 417 {445) (863)
Net cash when including all debt except property leases 1,940 1,619 {4106) 3,143
Lease liahilities - property leases {1,185) 236 (8) (957)
755 1,855 (424) 2,186

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2022

36

37

Analysis of net cash/(debt) (continued)

Reconciliation of cash flow to movement in net cash/(debt)
. 2022 2021

£000 £000

Movement in cash and cash equivalents 1,071 1,059
Movement in bank loans 131 7

Movement in lease liabilities - plant and machinery (28) 546
Movement in lease liabilities - property lease 228 (39)
Exchange differences 29 (7%}
Movement in net cash 1,431 1,465
Opening net cash/{debt) 755 {710)
Closing net cash 2,186 755

Cash atbank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. There are no resirictions on the
availability of the cash and cash equivalents at 31 May 2022 (2027: £nil).

IFRS 16 requires the recognition of property leases on the balance sheet which is classified as a debt item.

Financial instruments

Fair value

The carrying amount of all the financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value as described below.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balancas and bank deposits with a maturity of three months or less.
Trade and other receivables are all receivable in less than one year. Trade receivables are generally receivable within
90 davs.

The Group has access to a £3.0m sales invoicing facility with Barclays Bank and o $4.0m invoice factoring faciliry
with Wells Fargo Bank.

Trade and other payables are all payable in less than one year. Trade payables are generally payable within 90
davs.

Liquidity risk

The Group has cash at bank of £4.0m whilst the Company has cash ar bank of £0.3m.

Cash is held on bank deposit for varying periods from overnight to six months to ensure all liabilities can be met as
thev fall due.

The Group has access to a £3.0m sales invoicing facility with Barclays Bank and a $4.0m invoice factoring facility
with Wells Fargo Bank.

The sales invoicing facility with Barclays Bank cllows the Company to borrow 70% of the UK entities’ debtors
denominated in US dollars and sterling up o a value of £3.0m. The facility is due its next formal review in September
2022, although this can be reviewed at their discretion at any time.

The sales invoice factoring facility with Wells Fargo Bank allows the Company to borrow 85% of the US entifies’
clebtors denominated in US dollars up fo a value of $4.0m. The facility matures on 12 July 2023 when it will be due
for renewail.

The amount of cash available to the Group and the headroom available on debt facilities results in o low liquidity risk.
Credit risk

The exposure fo credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables in the balance sheet.

The credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents is considered to be low due to the cash being held at banks with
high credit ratings such as Barclays Bank and Wells Fargo Bank.
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37 Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk is primarily related to trade receivables. The Group's businesses are concentrated on long-term
relationships with @ small number of large and long-established OEMs, Overdue receivables are regularly
monitored and appropriate action is faken te collect payment. The Group has histerically incurred only low levels of
unrecoverable receivables. Therefore credit risk is consiclered to be low.

Trade receivables included the following amounts for the Group’s largest customers:

Group
2022 2021
£000 £000
Customer one 1,226 Q79
Customer two ) 830 02
Customer three 742 529
Other customars 714 227
3,512 2,737
The age of trade receivables that have not been previded for was os follows:
Group
2022 2021 .
£000 £000
Not past due 3,487 2,709
Past due less than three months 25 28

3,512 2,737

No trade receivables have been provided for in either FY2022 or FY2021.

The Company has no trade receivables.

Interest rate risk

Cash is generally held on shert-term bank deposits which earn interest ot variable money market deposit rates. At
31 May 2022, there was £nil held on short-term deposit. The remaining cash in the Group is held in very low interest
rate bank accounts. Sterling interest rates are very low and therefore interest rate risk is considlerad to be low.

The interest rate sensitivity of the expected annual inferest income/{expense) assuming o balance on deposit or
floan of £1,000,000 is as follows:

Expected Expected
annual  annual
interest  interest
income expense

£000  £000 3

U

1.5% 15 (15) &

0% 10 (10) i
0.5% 5 (5)
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Notes to the financial statements continved

for the year ended 31 May 2022

37 Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's and Company’s reporting currency is sterling, which is also the Company’s functional currency. The
funcrional currencies of the subsidiaries are sterling, US dollar and Chinese yuan.

The Group's results and financial position are affected by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

The Group has generated a surplus of US dollars during the year due to an increasing number of projects being

supplied in US dollars. Whilst the Group aims to maintain a natural hedge, it is not adequate to offsef the exposure
on currency risk. Therefore, the Group has used forward foreign exchange contracts to redluce the currency risk
from surplus US dollars. The nature of the Group's businessas means there is limited visibility of the currency
required in US deliars. Therefore, when forward contracts are used to reduce currency risk, they are usually only for
short periods of no more than six months. If the US dollar were to weaken significanily, this could materially recduce
the Group's revenue and operating profit. There were no forward contracts in place ot 31 May 2022 (2027: £nil).

Cashis mainly held in sterling and US dollars.
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk for cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and frade payables
was as follows:

Group
2022 2021
EUR RMB UsD EUR RMB usD
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 4 20 859 1 27 1,148
Trade receivables - - 2,194 9 - 1,738
Trada payables (6) - (740) {54) - (234)
Net exposure (2) 20 2,313 (44) 27 2,652

The sensitivity of the Group operating profit ro the US dellar to sterling exchange rate, assuming all other variables
remciin constant, is as follows:

If the US dollar had been 1% stronger/weaker against sterling throughout the year ended 31 May 2022, then the
Group operating profit would have been £55,000 higher/lower. The impact of other currencies is not maferial.

Capital management

The capital structure of the Group and Company consists of equity and debi. Equity comprises ordlinary share
capital and refained eairnings. Debt includes sales invoice financing facilities with large banks, asser finance and
lease liabilities.

The objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as @ going concarn in order to
maximise future returns for shareholders.

Cash flow is controlled by ongoing justification, menitoring and reporting of capital expenditure and regular
moniforing and reporting of operational costs.
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Glossary

4G:
5G:
SGNR:

Adjusted EBITDA:
AESA:
Backhaul:

B2B:
CAGR:
CRM:
CY:
D-band:
DSTL:
E-band:
EBITDA:
EMEA:
ERP:
ETSE
EW:

FM:

FY:
Gbps:
GEO:

GHz:
Gigabit:
HAPS:
10T:

1P:
Ka-band:
Ku-band:
LEO:
LMR:
LTE:
MarCom:
MES:
MMIC:
mmWave:
MOD:
NRE:
NSA:

NTN:
ODu:
OEM:
Open RAN:

4th Generation mobile networks

5th Generation mobile networks

5G New Radio is the global standard for a unified, more capable 5G wireless
air interface

EBITDA before exceptional items

Active Electronically Steered Array

The portion of a hierarchical telecommunications network that comprises the
inrermediate links between the core network and the small subnetworks at
the edge of the network

Business ro Business

Compound Average Growth Rate

Customer Relationship Management

Calendar year

130GHz o 175GHz

Department of Science and Technologv Leadership

71GHz 10 86GHz

Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation
Europe, the Middle East and Africa

Enterprise Resource Planning

Eurcpean Telecommunication Standards Institute

Electronic warfare represents the ability to use the electromagnetic
spectrum - signals such as radio, infrared or radar - to sense, protect and
communicate. At the same time, it can be used to deny adversaries the
ability fo either disrupt or use these signals

Frequency modulation. The modulation of a radio or other wave by variation
of its frequency

Financial year

Gigabits per second

Geostafionary, an altitude of about 22,300 miles

Gigahertz: 1019 Heriz

101G bits

High Aliitude Pseudo-Sarellites

Internet of Things

Intellectual Property

26.5GH:z - 40GHz

12GHz -18GHz

Low Earth Orbir

Land Mobile Radio

Long-Term Evolution

Marketing communications

Manufacturing Execution System

Monolithic Microwave Integrated Circuit

Millimetre Wave

Ministry of Defence

Non-recurring engineaering

Non-Stand Alone. The non-standalona (NSA) mode of 5G that depends on
the confrol plane of an existing 4G LTE nerwork for control functions
Non-Terrestrial Networks

Quideor Unif

Criginal Equipment Manutacturer

Open radio access network. A key part of a mobile network system that
uses cellular radio connections to link individlual devices to other parts of @
network
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OSAT:
pP25:

PoP:

Q-band:

QMS:
RAN:

RF:
RPO:
Rx:
SA:
SiP:

STRAP:
TRM:
TTA:
Tx:
V-band:

W-band:

Xhaul:

Outsourced Semiconductor Assembly and Test
Project 25: @ suite of standards for digital mobile radic communications designed
for use by public safety organiscations

Point of presence is the point at which two or more different networks or
communication devices build a connection with each other

33GHz to 50GHz
Quality Management System

Radic access network. The part of a mobile network that connects end-user
devices, like smartphones, te the cloud

Radio Frequency: a rate of oscillation in the range of around 3kHz to 300GHz
Recruitment Pracess Qutsourcer

Receive

Stand Alone 5G: the deployment of 5G without relving on the 4G LTE network

System in package. This is a number of integrated circuits enclosed in one or
more chip carrier packages that may be stacked package on package
Strategic Planning Process

Transmit Receive Module

Tower Top Amplifier

Tronsmit

40GHz to 75GHz

92GHz to 115GH:z

The common flexible transport solution for future 5G networks, integrating the

frenthaul and backhaul networks with wired and wireless technologies in a com-
men packet based transport network
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D filtronic

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. If you are in any doubt
about the contents of this document or the action you should take, you are recommended to consult
your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other appropriate independent professional
adviser duly authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the
United Kingdom or, if not, from another appropriately authorised independent professional adviser. If
you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares in the Company, please send this document
and the accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or
other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for delivery to the purchaser or
transferee, save that you should not forward or transmit such documents in or into any jurisdiction in
which to do so would constitute a violation of that jurisdiction's relevant laws. If you sell or have sold
or otherwise transferred only part of your holding of shares, you should retain this document and the
accompanying documents and consult the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or
transfer was effected.

Filtronic plc
(the “Company”)
(Registered in England and Wales No. 2891064)

Notice of Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) to be held on 27 October 2022

Notice of the Annual General Meeting of Filtronic plc to be held at the Plexus Building, NetPark,
Thomas Wright Way, Sedgefield, County. Durham, TS21 3FfD on Thursday 27 October 2022 at 11.00am
is set out on pages 5 to 6 of this document.



Filtronic plc
(Incorporated in England and Wales with
registered number 02891064)

Directors Registered Office
Jonathan Neale (Non-Executive Chair) NETPark
Richard Gibbs (Chief Executive Officer) Thomas Wright Way
Michael Tyerman (Chief Financial Officer) Sedgefield, Co Durham
Pete Magowan (Non-Executive Director) . TS21 3FD

John Behrendt (Non-Executive Director)

9 September 2022
To holders of ordinary shares of 0.1 pence each in the capital of the Company (“Ordinary Shares”)
Dear Shareholder,
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Filtronic plc (“the Company”)

1. Introduction

I am pleased to be writing to you with details of our AGM which we are holding on 27 October 2022
at 11.00am at the Plexus Building, NetPark, Thomas Wright Way, Sedgefield, Co Durham, TS21 3FD.
The formal Notice of AGM is set out on pages 5 to 6 of this document.

2. Business to be transacted at the AGM

Details of the resolutions which are to be proposed at the AGM are set out below. Resolutions 1 to 6
are proposed as ordinary resolutions and 7 is proposed as a special resolution. For an ordinary resolution
to be passed, more than half of the votes cast must be in favour of the resolution whereas for a spedal
resolution to be passed, at least three-quarters of the votes cast must be in favour.

Ordinary Resolution 1 -~ Annual report and accounts

In accordance with the requirements of section 437 the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act”), the directors are
required to present to the meeting the audited accounts and the reports of the directors and the auditor for
the financial year ended 31 May 2022 (“the 2022 Annual Report”). The 2022 Annual Report is available on
the Company's website.

Ordinary Resolution 2 — Election of Jonathan Neale as a director of the Company

Resolution 2 relates to the election of Jonathan Neale as a director of the Company. Following a formal
selection process we were pleased to announce Jonathan’s appointment as a Non-Executive Director on
2 November 2021. Jonathan’s term began on 15 November 2021. Under the Company’s Articles of
Association, a director so appointed holds office only until the next Annual General Meeting.



Jonathan was recently Chief Operating Officer of McLaren Group. Until his retirement he previously held
a number of executive roles with the McLaren Group including Chief Executive Officer of Mclaren
Racing F1. Prior to this, Jonathan was Managing Director of BAE Systems, UK — Hawk Military Aircraft.
Jonathan graduated from the University of Nottingham with an honours degree in physics and is a
Fellow of the Institute of Directors; a council member of the charity The Foundation for Science and
Technology; a Fellow of the Institute of Engineering and Technology; and a Chartered Engineer.

Ordinary Resolution 3 — Re-election of Michael Tyerman as a director of the Company

Resolution 3 relates to the re-election of Michael Tyerman as a director of the Company. Michael has
been the Company’s Chief Financial Officer since April 2016. He joined Filtronic in 2007 as Financial
Controller of Filtronic Broadband Limited and has held various positions within the Group since then.
Prior to joining Filtronic, Michael held various positions within Procter and Gamble, Huntsman and
Komatsu which included time working in the Benelux and Nordic regions. Michael is a Chartered
Management Accountant.

Ordinary Resolution 4 — Re-election of Peter (“Pete”) Magowan as a director of the Company

Resolution 4 relates to the re-election of Pete Magowan as a director of the Company. Pete was
previously an early employee and main board member of ARM Holdings, an Executive at Fidelity
International Ltd and General Partner at Alta Berkeley Venture Partners. Pete’s early operational
career was in sales and marketing at leading technology companies. He received a BSc degree in
Electrical and Electronic Engineering from UMIST and has a Diploma in Marketing. He is also a Non-
Executive Director of Solid State Group plc.

Ordinary Resolution 5 — Re-appointment of auditor and auditor’s remuneration

Theresolution proposes the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and, in accordance with standard
practice, gives authority to the directors to determine the remuneration to be paid to the auditor.

Ordinary Resolutions 6 and 7 - Renewal of directors’ power to allot shares

Resolution 6 - The Act provides that the directors may not allot ordinary shares (or grant rights to subscribe
for, or to convert any security into, ordinary shares) unless authorised to do so by the Company in general
meeting or by its articles. This resolution proposes that the directors are given authority to allot ordinary
shares {or grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, ordinary shares) up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £71,599 without obtaining further consent of the Company's shareholders. This is the
equivalent of one-third of the issued ordinary share capital as at [ ] August 2022, the latest practicable date
before publication of this notice. The authority will expire at the earlier of the close of the 2023 Annual
General Meeting and 31 December 2023 and will replace the authority granted to the directors at last year’s
Annual General Meeting.

In addition, the proposed new authority will allow the directors to allot new shares and other relevant
securities in connection with a rights issue up to a further aggregate nominal value of £71,599, equivalent to
one-third of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at [ ] August 2022, the latest practicable date
before publication of this notice. Once this resolution is passed the directors will have the authority in certain
circumstances to allot new shares and other relevant securities up to a nominal amount of £143,198
representing a total amount equal to two-thirds of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital.

The directors have no present intention of allotting, or agreeing to allot, any shares {or of granting, or
agreeing to grant, any applicable subscription or conversion rights) otherwise than in connection with the
Company’s employee share schemes, to the extent permitted or required by such schemes.
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Resolution 7 — The Act gives holders of ordinary shares, with limited but important exceptions, certain
rights of pre-emption on the issue for cash of new equity securities. The directors believe that it is in the best
interests of the Company that the Board of Directors should have limited power to allot some equity
securities for cash without first having to offer such equity securities to existing shareholders. The directors’
present authority, currently limited to rights issues (and similar offerings) and to allotments up to a nominal
value of approximately 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company, expires at the 2022 annual
general meeting.

This resolution seeks to renew this authority, subject to that same 10% limit, for a further period, expiring at
the earlier of the close of the 2023 Annual General Meeting and 31 December 2023. The power, if granted,
will relate to allotment in respect of rights issues and similar offerings (where difficulties arise in offering
shares to certain overseas shareholders and in relation to fractional entitlements and certain other
technical matters) and generally to allotments (other than in respect of rights issues and similar offerings) of
equity securities having an aggregate nominal value not exceeding £21,480 (representing approximately 10%
of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company). The Board of Directors has no present intention of
exercising this power but wishes to have the flexibility to do so in the future.

3. Covid-19

The health and wellbeing of employees, shareholders and the wider community in which the Company
operates is of the utmost importance to the Board. The Board is also committed to ensuring that
shareholders can exercise their right to vote and ask questions in relation to the AGM.

The UK’s Government guidelines currently do not prohibit mass gatherings or non-essential travel,
however we are aware that some shareholders may feel nervous about attending the AGM in person.
Please be assured that the Company will use all reasonable efforts to keep all AGM attendees safe
and, to do so, it reserves the right to request that members comply with the Company’s health and
safety policies and protocols in place from time to time. For those who do not attend in person,
shareholders are strongly encouraged to appoint the Chairman of the AGM as their proxy.
Shareholders can do this by utilising the method outlined in note 1 of the General Notes to the
Notice of AGM.

4. Recommendation from the directors of the Company

The directors of the Company consider that all the resolutions set out in the Notice of AGM are in the
best interests of the Company and its members as a whole and are likely to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. The directors unanimously recommend that you
vote in favour of all the resolutions, as they intend to do in respect of their own beneficial holdings.

Yours faithfully

Jonathan Neale
Chair, Filtronic plc



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 2022 Annual General Meeting of Filtronic plc will be held at the Plexus
Building, NetPark, Thomas Wright Way, Sedgefield, County Durham, TS21 3FD on Thursday 27 October
2022 at 11.00am for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following resolutions, 1
to 6 as ordinary resolutions and 7 as a special resolution:

Ordinary business

1.

To receive the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2022 and the reports of
the directors and the auditor.

To appoint Jonathan Neale as a director of the Company.

To re-appoint Michael Tyerman as a director of the Company.

To re-appoint Peter Magowan as a director of the Company.

To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor of the Company to hold office to the

conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at which accounts are laid before shareholders
and to authorise the directors to determine the auditor’s remuneration.

Special business

6.

(@)

(b)

Directors’ authority to allot shares (Ordinary Resolution)

That, in substitution for all subsisting authorities, the directors be generally and unconditionally
authorised, in accordance with section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”), to exercise
all powers of the Company to allot ordinary shares of 0.1p each in the capital of the Company
or grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, ordinary shares of 0.1p each in the
capital of the Company:

up to an aggregate nominal amount of £71,599; and

up to a further aggregate nominal amount of £71,599 provided that: (i) such shares or rights are
equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act); and (ii) they are offered by way of a rights
issue to the holders of ordinary shares in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their
existing holdings of ordinary shares (and to the holders of other equity securities if this is required
by the rights of those securities or, if the directors consider it necessary, as permitted by the
rights of those securities), but subject to the directors having the right to make such exclusions or
other arrangements as they deem necessary or expedient in relation to treasury shares,
fractional entitlements, record dates, legal or practical problems under the laws in any territory
or jurisdiction, the requirements of any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange or any other
matter;

and so that this authority shall expire on 31 December 2023 or, If earlier, at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2023 but so that the Company may, before
this authority expires, make any offer, agreement or arrangement which would or might require
shares to be allotted or rights to be granted after such expiry and the directors may allot shares
or grant rights pursuant to such offer, agreement or arrangement as if the authority had not
expired.

Disapplication of statutory pre-emption rights (Special Resolution)
That, subject to the passing of resolution 6, the directors be generally empowered pursuant to
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(b)

section 570 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) to allot equity securities (as defined in section
560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution 6 as if section 561 of
the Act did not apply to the allotment but this power shall be limited to:

the allotment of equity securities where such securities have been offered (but in the case of the
authority granted under paragraph (b) of resolution 6 by way of rights issue only) to holders of
ordinary shares in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their existing holdings of
ordinary shares (and to the holders of other equity securities if this is required by the rights of
those securities or, if the directors consider it necessary, as permitted by the rights of those
securities) but subject to the directors having the right to make such exclusions or other
arrangements as they deem necessary or expedient in relation to treasury shares, fractional
entitlements, record dates, legal or practical problems under the laws in any territory or
jurisdiction, the requirements of any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange or any other
matter; and

the allotment of equity securities, otherwise than pursuant to the power granted under
paragraph (a) of this resolution, up to a maximum nominal amount of £21,480;

and so that this power shall expire on 31 December 2023 or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2023 but so that the Company may, before
this power expires, make any offer, agreement or arrangement which would or might require
equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot equity securities
pursuant to such offer, agreement or arrangement as if this power had not expired.

By order of the Board Registered Office

Michael Tyerman Co Durham
Company Secretary TS21 3FD
9 September 2022

NETPark
Thomas Wright Way
Sedgefield




General Notes

1.

w

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies
to attend, speak and vote instead of her/him/them. Amember may appoint more than one proxy
in relation to the meeting, provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached
to a different share or shares held by that member. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company but must attend the annual general meeting to represent you. To appoint a proxy, go
to www.signalshares.com. If you need help with voting online or require a paper proxy form,
please contact our Registrar, Link Group by email at enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk, or by telephone
on 0371 664 0300. Calls are charged at the standard geographic rate and will vary by provider.
Calls outside the United Kingdom are charged at the applicable international rate. Lines are
open 9.00am — 5.30pm Monday to Friday excluding bank holidays in England and Wales.

Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the time by which
a person must be entered on the register of members in order to have the right to attend and
vote at the annual general meeting is the close of business on 25 October 2022 (being not more
than 48 hours prior to the time fixed for the meeting) or, if the meeting is adjourned, such time
as is specified by the directors being not more than 48 hours {excluding non-working days) prior
to the time fixed for the adjourned meeting. Changes to entries on the register of members after
that time will be disregarded in determining the right of any person to attend or vote at the
meeting.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service may do so by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST
Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s) who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

in order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the
appropriate CREST message (a “CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s ("Euroclear UK & Ireland”) specifications and
must contain the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual.
The time of receipt of a proxy appointment or an instruction to a previously appointed proxy will
be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST
Applications Host) from which the issuer's agent (CREST ID RA10) is able to retrieve the message
by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST.

In the case of joint holders of a share, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in
person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders. For
this purpose, seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the holders stand in the
register of members in respect of the joint holding.

Copies of (a) the executive directors’ service contracts; (b) the non-executive directors' letters of
appointment; (c) a statement of the directors’ share interests and (d) the Articles of Association
of the Company will be available for inspection during normal business hours at the Company’s
registered office from the date of this notice until the close of the meeting (Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays excepted). These documents will also be available for inspection at the place
of the annual general meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to, and during, the Annual General
Meeting.



The issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at the date of this notice is 214,798,417
ordinary shares with a nominal value of 0.1p each.

Explanatory notes in relation to the resolutions to be proposed at the meeting are set out in the
fetter from the Chair (please see pages 2 to 4 above).

Information regarding the meeting is available from www filtronic.com.
We will notify our shareholders of any changes to the AGM arrangements in the usual way

and recommend that you look out for any updates on the Company’s website (Investors
section) at www.filtronic.com.




@ filtronic

Dear Shareholder

Publication of the Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 May 2022
and
Notice of Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 2022

| am pleased to notify you that the above documents have been published on our website
www. filtronic.com. The Annual Report and Accounts can be found under the Financial Reports &
Presentations section and the AGM Notice can be found under Annual General Meeting.

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 27 October 2022 at 11.00am at the Plexus Building, NETPark,
Thomas Wright Way, Sedgefield, Co. Durham TS21 3FD.

Coronavirus (“Covid-19")

The AGM is an important event in the Company’s corporate calendar. It provides the Board of
Directors (“the Board”) with an opportunity to meet and engage with shareholders. The health and
wellbeing of employees, shareholders and the wider community in which the Company operates
is of the utmost importance to the Board. The Company will use all reasonable efforts to keep all
AGM attendees safe, and to do so, it reserves the right to request that members comply with the
Company’s health and safety policies and protocols in place from time to time.

The Board is also committed to ensuring that shareholders can exercise their right to vote and ask
questions in relation to the AGM. Whether or not attending in person, shareholders are still
strongly encouraged to appoint the Chairman of the AGM as their proxy. Shareholders can do this
by utilising the method outlined in note 1 of the General Notes to the Notice of AGM. Alternatively,
if you would prefer a paper proxy, please contact our Registrars, Link Group, by email or telephone
{contact details are set out overleaf). Should a shareholder have a question that they would have
raised at the meeting if they had attended, we ask that they send it by email to:

investor.relations@filtronic.com. Answers to questions will, where possible, be published on our

website following the AGM.

We will notify our shareholders of any changes to the AGM arrangements in the usual way and
recommend that you look out for any updates on the Company’s website {Investors section/Annual
General Meeting) at www._filtronic.com.

Filtronic plc

Registered office: Contact:

Plexus 1, NETPark, Thomos Wright Way, Tel: + 44 (0) 1740 618800
Sedgefield, County Durham, TS21 3FD Web: filtronic.com

Ragistored in England and Wales, compony number: 2891064



D filtronic

Proxy voting

Please vote by completing and submitting your form online through the website of our registrar,
Link Group at www.signalshares.com to be received no later than 11am on Tuesday 25 October

2022,

To vote online, please log into your Signal Shares share portal account or register for Signal Shares
if you have not already done so. To register for the Signal Shares share portal, you will need your
investor code which can be found on your share certificate. Once registered, you will be able to
vote immediately. Voting by proxy prior to the meeting does not affect your right to attend the
meeting and vote in person, should you wish.

Contact details .

)
If you are unable to locate any of the documents on the Company’s website, need help with voting
online or require a paper proxy form to be sent to you, please contact Link Group by email at

enguiries@linkgroup.co.uk, or by telephone on +44 371 664 0300*.

If you have any questions for the Board relating to the AGM business, please contact me, as early
as you can before the meeting, by email at michael.tyerman@filtronic.com.

Yours faithfully,

Michael Tyerman
Company Secretary

*Calls are charged at the standard geograbhic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside the
United Kingdom are charged at the applicable international rate. Lines are open 9.00am —
5.30pm Monday to Friday excluding bank holidays in England and Wales



